
 
 

Board 29 July 2020 
Virtual Meeting  
 

AGENDA 
1.  Reminder to switch off mobile phones      
2.  Apologies for absence   
3.  Declarations of Interest   
4.  Urgent Items which Board Members wish to raise, not elsewhere on the agenda 
5.  Health and Safety Update  

  Page: Presented 
by: 

6.  To approve the Minutes and confidential Minutes of the meeting 
held 22 May 2020 and Matters Arising 
 

1 - 4 Chair  

CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS FOR DECISION  
 

7.  Partnership Progress Report  
 

 J Haley 
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8.  Annual review of BCT Committees 
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Chairs  
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17 - 39 J Clifford 

10.  Review of Governance Documents  
 

40 - 42 J Clifford  
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- Economic Regulations 
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43 – 56 P Pollard   

12.  Annual Accounts including Value for Money Metrics  
 

57 - 64  J Clifford  

CONFIDENTIAL FOR INFORMATION  
 

13.  Management Accounts 
 

 J Clifford  

14.  Audit and Risk Committee Minutes & Actions  
- 6 May 2020  
- 21 July 2020 (To Follow)  
 

 J Clifford  

15.  Customer Scrutiny Committee Minutes & Actions  
 

 P Pollard 

16.  Governance and Remuneration Committee Minutes & Actions   
 

  

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

  

17.  CE Monthly Progress Report  
 

65 - 83 J Haley  

18.  Quarterly Performance Update  
 

84 – 103 P Pollard 

19.  Quarterly Investment Programme Update Including Confidential 
Appendix A   
 

104 - 112 M Bell  

20.  AOB 
 

  

21.  Date and time of the next meeting: Annual General Meeting 23 September 2020 5pm 
Board to follow at 6pm – 8pm  

 



  
 

 
Minutes of Board 13 May 2020 4:30pm 
Via Conference Call 
 
Board Members Present: Geraldine Kay (Chair), Gordon Bell, Christine Stobbs, Keith Tallintire, 
Nigel Emmerson, Victoria Beattie, Annette Patten, Caroline Prince, Nicola Snowdon, Anthony 
Itiat, Nick Kemp and Amanda Senior. 
 
BCT Officers Present: Jill Haley (CE), Philip Pollard (DoO), James Clifford (DoF), Michelle Bell 
(DoP) and Jaime Flinn (taking minutes)  
 
Observers: None  

 
1. WELCOME 

 
1.1 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  

 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

2.1 There were no apologies.  
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 
 

There were no new declarations of interest. 

4. URGENT ITEMS WHICH BOARD MEMBERS WISH TO RAISE 
 

4.1 
 

There were no urgent items arising.  
 

5. HEALTH AND SAFETY (H&S) VERBAL UPDATE  
 

5.1 All H&S updates were covered under item 10 of the agenda. 
 

6. APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING 
 

6.1 
 

The Minutes of the last Board meeting held on 25 March 2020 were agreed as a correct 
record.  
 

7. QUARTERLY STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER (SRR) UPDATE  
 

7.1 The Director of Finance and Resources (DoF) stated that the SRR was reviewed by the 
Audit and Risk Committee (A&RC) on 28 April 2020, it was advised that there has been 
one score change to SR6 – Serious Business Disruption, the score has been increased 
from low to high given the strong likelihood that lockdown/isolation will continue into the 
summer.  
 

7.2 The DoF stated that in early March, prior to lockdown measures being put in place, the 
BCT management team tested the Business Continuity Plan, completing a walkthrough 
of the potential impact Covid-19 could have on BCT operations.  
 

7.3 It was requested during the additional A&RC meeting on 6 May 2020 that an additional 
Covid-19 Risk Register be implemented and linked to the SRR to be reported to the 
A&RC.  
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7.4 The Chair of the A&RC commented that the Committee did a comprehensive review of 
the SRR at the meeting. 
 

7.5 The CE stated that the Regulator of Social Housing had advised Registered Providers 
(RPs) to expect pretty tough “going concern” questions from our external auditors in 
relation to stress testing. Also, that it will be difficult for organisations to revise their 
business plans and financial forecasts, based on what the world currently looks like 
because the next 18 months would be very unpredictable. The Chair of the A&RC stated 
that the internal and external auditors attended the meeting on the 28 April and it was 
agreed that the Business Plan and Stress Testing reports to Board would provide 
assurance on this point.  
 

8. QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PROGRAMME UPDATE  
 

8.1 The Director of Property and Development (DoP) presented the report which provided 
an update to Board on the delivery of BCT’s Investment Programme.  
 

8.2 It was advised since writing the report there have been further changes and both Dunn 
Terrace External Upgrade and the Lift Replacement Programme have started back on 
site this week with safe systems of work in place. The DoP confirmed that the installation 
of communal fire doors identified in the Byker Wall Fire Risk Assessments and included 
in the Dunn Terrace contract, will start by the end of the month.  
 

8.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.4 

The DoP advised Board of a value for money (VFM) opportunity to bring forward 110 
external doors identified in BCT’s stock condition survey, which are included in the 
investment programme up to 2025.  This VFM opportunity would include the door 
replacements in the Dunn Terrace External Upgrade contract, which has been 
competitively procured with a door supply chain in place. It was recommended that RNJ 
be appointed to commence the surveys of these doors.  
 
The DoP discussed the conversion opportunity of three commercial units at: 

 The former District Heating Office on Raby Street; 
 The unit at 66 Northumberland Terrace, a boarded-up shop unit; and 
 The unit at 71 Dunn Terrace, currently used by Foundation Futures who have 

surrendered their tenancy. 
Based on the stage 1 designs and estimated costs, the project will create four properties 
for affordable rent and subject to a successful grant application to Homes England, this 
development opportunity will produce a positive NPV by year 20.  
 

8.5 An independent rental valuation of 82 Raby Street has been carried out which was a 
Hobby Room conversion that has proven difficult to occupy due to an ongoing noise 
transmission problem from the adjacent substation. Newcastle City Council (NCC) has 
agreed the rental valuation and expressed an interest in leasing the unit as an office.  A 
lease is now being developed and a change of use planning application submitted to 
NCC.   
 

8.6 The Board agreed to: 

 Appoint RNJ partnership LLP to commence surveys of the external door 
replacements identified in the BCT stock condition survey;  

 Appoint RNJ Partnership LLP to proceed to stage 2 for the conversion of three 
commercial units;  

 Submit an application to Homes England for affordable homes grant funding 
for the conversion of three commercial buildings into four properties, recycling 
the grant from 82 Raby Street ; and 
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 Submit notice to the tenant at 66 Northumberland Terrace to surrender their 
periodic tenancy.  
 

8.7 The Chair stated that it is reassuring that work has started again on the Estate.  
 

9. BIANNUAL H&S UPDATE AND APPROVAL OF H&S POLICES 
 

9.1 The DoP presented the report, which provided an update on H&S activity for quarter 3 
and 4 2019/20. It was advised that there is a substantial amount of detail covered in the 
report, especially due to the Government’s Covid-19 restrictions currently in place. 
 

9.2 It was advised that there were three areas of compliance that had not been completed 
by the end of March 2020 due to the Government’s lockdown and suspension of 
services. It was confirmed that the communal asbestos surveys and emergency lighting 
works have now been complete, however Karbon Solutions Ltd (KSL) had stood down 
the Electrical Installation Condition Reports (EICR) programme. 
 

9.3 The DoP confirmed that at the end of March 2020, there were 39 property EICRs 
outstanding and 2019/20 EICR programme is 92% complete. It was reported to A&RC 
that BCT has been experiencing issues with KSL completing the outstanding EICRs due 
to the risk level of working in occupied properties. Despite efforts to secure another 
contractor to deliver this work it has not been possible to get the risk level down to an 
appropriate level for both the electrician and the tenant. BCT staff are currently 
contacting tenants to rebook the appointments for June and July and asking if tenants 
have any concerns regarding their electricals or smoke detection. Any repair concerns 
are then being scheduled as emergency appointments.  
 

9.4 It was advised that 1423 properties have been accessed across the Estate to inspect 
historic and redundant gas pipework supplies with only four properties outstanding.  BCT 
now has comprehensive information on which properties have a gas supply and an 
annual check of pipework with a live supply will be carried out until Northern Gas 
Network confirm the gas supply has been removed.   
 

9.5 BCT’s H&S Policy, Water, Electrical, Fire and Gas Safety policies, available in Virtual 
Board Room for Board members, were discussed as part of their annual review. Minor 
amendments have been made to reflect internal audit feedback and changes to 
legislation, with all amendments, tracked changed. As the meeting was held virtually it 
was not possible to sign the H&S policy, the Chair agreed her electronic signature could 
be used on the report. 
 

9.6 During quarter 4 there has been a number of Government fire safety announcements, 
and a summary was provided in the report. The main recommendation to bring to the 
Board’s attention was BCT evidencing that timber on buildings, particularly decorative 
balconies, meet the required standard and are not a source of fuel for the spread of fire 
externally on buildings. This has been included as a recommendation on recent Fire 
Risk Assessments (FRA) and is included in BCT’s SRR. BCT is currently investigating 
options and cost implications. 
 

9.7 The Chair stated this was a very thorough report which provides excellent assurance to 
the Board that BCT takes the H&S on the Estate seriously.  
 

10. CHIEF EXECUTIVE (CE) MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT  
 

10.1 The CE presented the report, which provided an update on progress since the last 
meeting, as well as any relevant, regional or national developments. 
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10.2 An update was provided on actions from the March Board meeting, the Chair and CE 

had hoped to meet with Pat Ritchie, CE at NCC, unfortunately due to lockdown 
measures this was not possible. The Chair wrote a lengthy communication to Pat Richie 
in April, however no reply had been received to date and that this may be due to Pat 
being extremely busy during the current pandemic. Amanda Senior stated that she had 
also provided a briefing to Pat Ritchie and was waiting for a reply, it was agreed Amanda 
would contact Pat again to confirm that she has received the communication from the 
Chair and that there were no outstanding issues.  
 

10.3 The CE advised she had been involved in a webinar with the Regulator of Social 
Housing (RSH) regarding the Coronavirus Operational Response Survey, it was 
discussed that there are no emerging concerns coming from the RP sector and that it is 
in a good financial state. The main areas of concern to be monitored were reduced 
income collection rates, rising cost of repairs and investment, loss of sales income (n/a 
to BCT) and possible difficulties in raising future finance.  The next Financial Forecast 
Return would be delayed until the Autumn.   
 

11. 2019/20 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT INCLUDING QUARTER 4 UPDATE 
 

11.1 The Director of Operations (DoO) delivered a presentation, summarising the operational 
and financial performance of BCT for 2019/20. Board members were directed to the 
scorecard at Appendix A. Key points from the discussion were; 

 The income collection rate was 98.55% for the year, which is above the BCT 
Business Plan target of 98%. 

 At year end 688 tenants were in receipt of Universal Credit (UC) increasing by 133 
claims throughout the year.  This number has increased to 717 at the end of week 
four 2020/21 with an additional 52 tenants in receipt of UC since the start of the lock 
down period; 

 Re-let times have reduced to 30.7 days at year end in comparison to last year at 34.2 
days which is in line with the Board target of 30 days.  

 Cost per void at year end was £2563 which increased by £140 from the previous 
year, within the overall cost there has been £62,000 rechargeable repairs as well as 
major and structural voids that have been 20% more in number than routine voids; 

 Total average cost per repair was £94, an increase of £5 from last year, however is 
still below the median of £106; and 

 A comparison of income collection, tenancy terminations and average re-let times 
showing continued improvement since services were brought in house was provided 
to Board.   

 
11.2 The Chair wished to thank the BCT team for their effort and hard work throughout the 

year as the results demonstrated very good progress and excellent performance.  
 

12. AOB 
 

12.1 There were no other items of business. 
 

 The meeting adjourned at 5pm to allow the confidential session to take place.   
 
 
 
 
…………………………. 
Chair of Byker Community Trust Board  
29 July 2020 
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Board 29 July 2020  
 

Title: Annual Review of Committees 
 

Report By: The Chairs of the Committees 
 

FOR DECISION  
 

Business Implications 

Risk The annual review reports from Committee Chairs provide assurance to the 
Board that the Committees are carrying out their delegated authority 
effectively and in line with the Board’s priorities. 

Financial and Value for Money The Audit and Risk Committee report gives assurance to the Board that all 
financial information has been scrutinised prior to it being reported to Board.  

People/Consultation BCT’s governance documents and this report are published on the BCT 
website and are open to public scrutiny. 

Equality and Diversity This report sets out the exploratory work begun by Governance and 
Remuneration Committee on data analysis regarding equality and diversity in 
the year. 

Environment Implications None 

Contractor Implications The Audit and Risk Committee Report gives assurance to the Board on the 
performance of key contractors – Internal and External Audit. 

 

 
1. 

 

Recommendations 
 

1.1 
 
 

The Board is recommended to: 

 Receive an update from the Committee Chairs; and  

 Confirm that the Committees are effectively discharging their Terms of Reference. 
 

2. Synopsis 
 

2.1 The Committees are reviewed including: 

 the work of the Committees during the year; 

 membership and attendance; and  

 an outlook for the year ahead.   
 

2.2 The Board is asked to confirm each Chair’s assessment of effectiveness. 
 

3. Assessments 
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 

The Committee assessment are set out in the appendices: 
 

A Audit and Risk Committee 

B Governance and Remuneration Committee 

C Customer Scrutiny Committee 
 

4. 
 

Contact Officer - If you have any questions about this report that you would like clarifying 
before the meeting, you can contact James Clifford by telephone on 0800 5335 442 or 
email james.clifford@bykerct.co.uk  
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Appendix A - Audit and Risk Committee (A&RC) 
 
1 
 

Terms of Reference 
 

1.1 The role of A&RC is to: 

 Approve and manage the internal audit plan; 

 Manage the external audit; 

 Manage Risk on behalf of the Board; 

 Scrutinise annual accounts and other financial information for the Board; and 

 Review the inputs and assumptions of the base Business Plan prior to stress-testing. 
 

2. Work of the Committee during 2019-20 
 

2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
2.3. 
 
2.3.1 
 
 
 
 
2.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
2.4 
 
2.4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.5 
 
2.5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
2.6 
 
2.6.1 
 
 

During 2019-20, the focus of the Committee has been to build on the changes made during 
2018-19 and make continuous improvements to the systems of risk management and 
internal audit at BCT.  The work undertaken has further improved the internal control 
environment at BCT and increase the level of assurance for the Board.   
 
The following work has been undertaken during the year: 
 
Approve and manage the internal plan 
 
The audit plan for the year included audits for the remaining key areas of property 
compliance, ensuring that Board received assurance on these major items as early as 
possible. The internal audit programme was fully completed apart from the ICT audit which 
was unavoidably delayed until 2020-21. 
 
The Committee received 7 internal audit reports during the year, 5 of which provided 
reasonable assurance and 2 provided substantial assurance.  The audits for the year 
included a check back to ensure that management had implemented previous 
recommendations.  The head of the internal audit team provided an overall positive opinion 
on the controls at BCT. 
 
Manage the external audit and scrutinise the annual accounts. 
 
The Committee completed the scrutiny of the 2018-19 accounts and gave the Board clear 
recommendations on the treatment of District Heating and McCloud pension transactions.  
The Board and the Committee has approved the annual plan for the 2019-20 accounts. 
The Committee has assured itself that MHA Tait Walker remain independent from 
management, and this independence is strengthened by the fact that MHA Tait Walker 
undertakes no non-audit work from BCT.  
 
Manage Risk on behalf of the Board 
 
The Committee scrutinises the strategic risk register through quarterly updates and 
monitors risk mitigation actions.  Once per year the Committee reviews the operational risk 
registers maintained by the members of Executive Team, and in July 2020, the Committee 
reviewed BCT’s COVID-19 Risk Register, and the risk register attached to the Partnership 
Project Plan.  
 
Scrutinise and other financial information for the Board 
 
The A&RC also scrutinises the BCT management accounts in detail each quarter before 
they are presented to the Board. 
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2.7 
 
2.7.1 
 
 
 
 
2.8 
 
2.8.1 
 
 
2.9 
 
2.9.1 
 

Review the inputs and assumptions of the base Business Plan prior to stress-testing 
 
The Committee reviews the inputs and assumptions prior to the Business Plan updates.  In 
2020, this included a detailed discussion about the operating headwinds that BCT could 
face during the COVID-19 pandemic and beyond.  The Committee designed a rigorous 
stress test to be applied to the base Business Plan.  
 
Policy Review 
 
During the year, the Board reviewed the following policies prior to approval by the Board 

 Anti-money laundering and counter fraud. 
 
Insurance 
 
The Committee has overseen the procurement of a one-year extension for BCT’s main 
insurance policies, and new insurance against cyber crime and data loss.  
 

3. Membership and Attendance 
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The following table sets out the attendance at the Committee for the year: 
 

Audit and Risk  

Committee 
Member 

07-May 23-Jul 12-Nov 21-Jan 

C Stobbs Y Y Y Y 

J Coulter  Y Y 
    

G Bell Y Y Y Y 

A Taylor N N 
    

V Beattie Y N Y N 

K Tallintire  
  

Y Y Y 

A Senior  
    

Y N 
 

3.2 
 
3.3 

Following the May 2020 meeting, Amanda Senior stepped down from the Committee. 
 
The Chair would welcome more members to join the Committee to reduce the risk of non-
quorate meetings.  
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4. The Year Ahead  
 

4.1 
 
 

Progress through the Internal Audit Plan will continue which will broaden and deepen the 
level of assurance for the Board.  Internal audits planned for 2020-21 include: Health and 
Safety, budgetary controls, stock condition data, anti-social behaviour and performance 
management information.  The ICT audit will take place (delayed from 2019-20). 
 

4.2 The Committee will oversee the external audit of the 2019-20 annual accounts. 
 

4.3 The Committee will review the following policies before they are presented to Board for 
approval: 

 Financial regulations; 

 Procurement rules; 

 Buy Back policy; and 

 Internal control framework. 
 

4.4 The Committee will review adherence to the Governance and Viability Standard, the Value 
for Money Standard and the Rent Standard and recommend an overall statement on the 
strength of internal controls which will be included in the annual accounts.  
 

4.5 The Committee stands ready to carry out any detailed scrutiny of partnership due diligence, 
should this be required by the Board. 
 

5. Committee Effectiveness 
 

5.1 The Committee has reviewed itself against the Audit Committee effectiveness checklist 
found at Appendix A(ii). 
 

5.2 Having reviewed the work of A&RC, the membership and the forward plan, the Chair 
concludes that the Committee continues to discharge its duties under the Terms of 
Reference effectively. 
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Audit and Risk Committee – Self Assessment Checklist 

Appendix A(i)  

 
 
Area / Question 

 
Yes 

 
No 

 
Comments/Action 

 
Composition, establishment and duties 

 
Does the audit committee have written terms of 
reference that adequately define the committee’s 
role in accordance with relevant guidance (from the 
NHF Code of Governance) 

 
 

Y 

 

 

 

 

 
Have the terms of reference been adopted by 
the governing body? 

 

Y 
 

 

 
Are the terms of reference reviewed annually to take 
into account governance developments and the 
remit of other committees within the organisation? 

      Y  

 

 
Are committee members independent of 
the management team? 

Y 

 
 

 

 
Are the outcomes of each meeting; the actions taken 
and the committee's view on the organisation’s 
systems of internal control reported to the next 
governing body meeting? 

Y  

 

 
Does the committee prepare an annual report on 
its work and performance in the preceding year 
for consideration by the governing body? 

Y  

 

July Board. 

 
Does the committee assess its own 
effectiveness periodically? 

Y  
As part of the annual report to 
Board.  

 
Has the committee established a plan of matters to 
be dealt with across the year? Y  

There is a Committee forward 
plan, but this could be 
considered more formally by the 
committee. 

  
Are committee papers distributed in sufficient time 
for members to give them due consideration? 

Y  
 

 
Has the committee been quorate for each meeting 
this year? 

Y  
 

 
Compliance with the law and regulations governing the Registered Providers 

 
Does the committee review assurance and 
regulatory compliance reporting processes? 

 

Y 

  

Through the internal audit 
programme. 
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Does the committee have a mechanism to 
keep it aware of topical, legal and regulatory 
issues? 

Y  

 

 
Internal control and risk management 

 
Has the committee reviewed the robustness and 
effectiveness of the content of the organisation’s 
assurance framework? 

Y  

 

 
Has the committee reviewed the robustness and 
content of the draft annual governance 
statement before it is presented to the governing 
body? 

Y  

 

 
Is the committee’s role in reviewing and 
recommending to the governing body the annual 
report and accounts clearly defined? 

Y  

 

 
Does the committee consider the external 
auditor’s report to those charged with governance 
including proposed adjustments to the accounts? 

Y  

 

 
Internal audit 

 
Is there a formal ‘charter’ or terms of reference, 
defining internal audit’s objectives, responsibilities 
and reporting lines? 

Y  Part of the Annual Plan. 

 
Does the committee review and approve the 
internal audit plan at the beginning of the financial 
year? 

Y   

 
Does the committee approve any material changes 
to the plan? 

Y   

 
Is the committee confident that the audit plan is 
derived from a clear risk assessment process that 
links closely to the assurance framework? 

Y   

 
Does the committee receive periodic progress 
reports from the Head of Internal Audit? 

Y   

 
Does the committee effectively monitor the 
implementation of management actions arising 
from internal audit reports? 

Y   

 
Does the Head of Internal Audit have a right of 
access to the committee and its Chair at any time? Y   

 
Is the committee confident that internal audit is free 
of any scope restrictions and, if not, has it considered 
the impact of these on the annual Head of Internal 
Audit opinion? 

 

 

Y   
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Is the committee confident that internal audit is free 
from any operational responsibilities or conflicts of 
interest that could impair its objectivity? 

Y  
Declared by the head of internal 
audit. 

 
Does the committee hold periodic private 
discussions with the Head of Internal Audit? 

 N But available at all times.  

 
Has the committee evaluated whether internal 
audit complies with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards? 

Y  

 

 
Has the committee agreed a range of internal audit 
performance measures to be reported on a routine 
basis? 

Y  

 

 
Does the committee receive and review the Head of 

Internal Audit’s annual opinion? 
Y  

 

 
External audit 

 
Do the external auditors present their audit plans and 

strategy to the committee for agreement and 

approval? 

Y  

 

 
Does the committee receive and monitor actions 

taken relating to prior years’ reviews? 
Y  

 

 
Does the committee review the external auditor’s ISA 
260 report (the report to those charged with 
governance)? 

Y  

 

 
Does the committee review the external auditor’s 
value for money conclusion? 

Y  
 

 
Does the committee review the external 
auditor’s opinion on the quality account when 
necessary 

Y  

 

 
Does the committee hold periodic private 
discussions with the external auditors? 

 N But available at all times. 

 
Does the committee assess the performance of 
external audit? 

 N Not formally. 

 
Does the committee require assurance from 
external audit about its policies for ensuring 
independence? 

Y   

 
Has the committee approved a policy to govern the 
nature and value of non-audit work carried out by 
the external auditors? 

 N 

 

But the audit team updates on 
this annually as part of their 
independence assurance. 

 
Does the committee receive information on all 
non- audit work undertaken by external audit? 

Y  
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Does the committee review the proportion of audit 
and non-audit work every time the external auditors 
change? 

 

 

 

 

Y  

 

 

 

 

 
 
Counter (or anti-) fraud and security 

 
Does the committee receive periodic reports 

about counter fraud and security activity? 
 N By exception only. 

 
Does the committee receive and review an 
annual report on counter fraud and security 
activity? 

 N 

 

 
Annual report and accounts and disclosure statements 

 
Is the committee’s role in the approval of the 
annual report and accounts clearly defined? 

Y 

  

 
Is a committee meeting scheduled to discuss 
proposed adjustments to the accounts and issues 
arising from the audit? 

Y 

 

At accounts scrutiny meeting. 

Does the committee specifically review: 

• Changes in accounting policies? 

• Changes in accounting practice due to 
changes in accounting standards? 

• Changes in estimation techniques? 

• Significant judgements made in preparing 
the accounts? 

• Significant adjustments resulting from 

the audit? 

• Explanations for any significant variances? 

Y 

  

 
Does the committee ensure it receives explanations 
for any unadjusted errors in the accounts found by 
the external auditors? 

Y 

  

 
Does the committee receive and review a draft of 
the organisation’s annual governance statement? 

Y 
  

 
Does the committee receive and review a draft of 
the organisation’s annual report and accounts? 

Y 
  

 
Does the committee receive and review the 
evidence required to demonstrate compliance with 
regulatory requirements. 

Y 

 The Value for Money and 
the Governance and 
Viability Standards. 

 
Other issues 

 
Does the committee provide a summary report of 
its meetings to the next available governing body 
meeting? 

Y 

  

 
Has the committee reviewed its performance in 
the year for consistency with its: 

• Terms of reference? 

• Programme for the year? 

Y 
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Appendix B – Governance and Remuneration Committee (G&RC) 
 
1. 
 

Terms of Reference 
 

1.1 The role of G&RC is to: 

 Consider in detail matters of governance;  

 Advise on nominations to the Board, and review Board member skills and succession 
planning; 

 Approve key HR and equality policies and benchmark employee salaries;  

 Approve the salaries of the Chief Executive and Board Members; and 

 Review regularly its own effectiveness. 
 

2. Membership and attendance 
 

2.1 The following table sets out the attendance at the Committee for the year: 
 

Governance and Remuneration  

Committee 
Member 

09-May 16-Jan 

G Bell Y Y 

N Emmerson N Y 

J Coulter Y   

N Kemp  N Y 

G Kay N Y 

K Tallintire   Y 

 
 

2.2 The Committee had one non-quorate meeting in the year, but returned to full strength in 
January after new Board members joined the Committee.  
 

3. Work of the Committee during 2019-20 
 

3.1 
 
3.2 
 
3.2.1 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
3.3.1 
 
 
 
3.3.2 
 
 

The following work has been undertaken during the year: 
 
Consider in detail matters of governance 
 
The Committee reviewed in detail the self-assessment against the NHF Code of 
Governance and the Scheme of Delegations in 2019. 
 
Advise on nominations to the Board, and review Board member skills and succession 
planning. 
 
At the May meeting the Committee reviewed the application from Keith Tallintire and 
received an update on the process of advertising for and selecting Tenant candidates to be 
put forward for election at the Annual General Meeting. 
 
Committee members carried out interviews with all potential Board candidates and made 
recommendations to the Board on their progress through the selection process. 
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3.4 
 
3.4.1 
 
 
 
3.4.2 
 
 
 
3.4.3 
 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
3.5.1 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
3.6.1 
 

Approve key HR and equality policies and benchmark employee salaries; 
 
Over the May and January meetings, the Committee reviewed the full suite of BCT HR 
policies including a new redundancy policy and whistle blowing policy.  These policies 
were subsequently approved by the Board. 
 
Employee salaries were benchmarked to the median for the sector in the prior year.  In 
January, the Committee approved an inflationary increase for employees which was within 
the Business Plan expectations. 
 
The Committee considered reports on the Gender Pay Gap and other equality and 
diversity measures for BCT employees.  The reports highlighted some interesting data and 
potential areas of concern, but it was agreed that the number of employees at BCT was 
too small of a sample to draw concrete conclusions. 
 
Approve the salaries of the Chief Executive and Board Members;  
 
At the January meeting the Committee approved an inflationary pay rise for the Chief 
Executive within the Business Plan expectations.  Board member remuneration was 
introduced in the year prior and will be reviewed again next year. 
 
Review regularly its own effectiveness 
 
The Committee Chair has reviewed its effectiveness and submits the findings to Board in 
this report. 
 

 
4. The year ahead  

 
4.1 
 
4.1.1 
 
 
 
 

 
4.1.2 
 

The Committee has a busy programme for the year ahead. 
 
At the June meeting the Committee reviewed 

 Data Protection policies 

 Governance policies 

 The Board Effectiveness Survey 

 The Chair of the Board’s report on the Board member appraisals.  
 
Future meetings will again review employee, Chief Executive and Board remuneration. 
 

4.2 There may be a role for the Committee in assessing the proposed transfer arrangements 
for employees and Board members in the event of a successful Partnership Project. 
 

5. Committee Effectiveness 
 

5.2 Having reviewed the work of G&RC, the membership and the forward plan against the 
Terms of Reference, the Chair concludes that the Committee continues to discharge its 
duties effectively. 
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Customer Scrutiny Committee (CSC) 
 
1. 
 

Terms of Reference 
 

1.1 The purpose of the CSC is to: 

 Review and set service standards in line with budget parameters; 

 Monitor performance on complaints and customer satisfaction; 

 Encouraging further tenant involvement across the Estate; and 

 Review the Committee’s effectiveness. 

 
2. Work of the Committee during 2019-20 

 
2.1 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
 
2.5 

During 2019-20, the Committee has remained focussed upon recruiting members, 
considering standard agenda items, receiving performance information, identifying training 
needs and undertaking a programme of service reviews.  
 
The CSC have completed a review of BCT’s Complaints and Compliments policies and 
procedures and were supported in doing so with training from the Centre for Public Scrutiny 
(CfPS). This resulted in a new policy and procedure being agreed by BCT with effect from 
January 2020. 
 
The CSC have continued to receive quarterly performance reports and have an established 
format for how the information is presented that has enabled members to gain a more 
thorough understanding of the information and service delivery.   
 
The CSC have been involved in considering the content of the National Housing Federation 
document “Together with Tenants” and formulated a response to the consultation. Three 
members of the CSC have been involved in a sub-regional working group alongside officers 
and tenants from other housing providers in the North East. 
 
The CSC were involved in overseeing the delivery of the successful Family Fun Day in July 
2019 and the Tenants Conference in October 2019. 
 

2.6 The CSC were a driver of BCT’s successful application to achieve Customer Service 
Excellence (CSE) and were involved in a focus group with the CSE assessor during the 
assessment process in February 2020.  
 

3 Membership and Attendance 
 

3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The following table sets out the attendance at the Committee for the year: 
 

Customer Scrutiny Committee  

Committee 
Member 

13-
May 

05-
Aug 

05-
Dec 

20-
Feb 

A Patten Y Y Y Y 

S Sheraton  Y Y Y Y 

C Prince     Y N 
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3.2 

N Snowdon     N N 

F Ford    Y Y Y 

M Ford N N Y Y 

H Warren   Y Y Y 

A Itiat   N Y Y 

T Longmead     Y Y 

 
 
Vacancies arising from the non-attendance of CSC members during 2018/19 were filled from 
the pool of CSC observers in order to reduce the risk of non-quorate meetings. This exercise 
was completed at the meeting in May 2019.  
 

4. The Year Ahead  
 

4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
4.4 
 
4.5 

In 2019-20, the CSC will continue to receive quarterly performance reports and monitor 
information and trends relating to complaints that are received by BCT. 
 
The CSC will conclude the scrutiny review of BCT’s Repairs and Maintenance service, which 
was delayed due to Covid-19. The CSC will also identify and agree upon an operational area 
of the business to undertake a further scrutiny review.   
 
The CSC will also play a role in BCT’s consultation exercises that will help to shape future 
investment and corporate planning activities. 
 
The CSC will identify any further training needs.  
 
The CSC will also oversee the delivery of the BCT Summer Activity Programme, which will 
be delivered during August 2020 and the BCT Tenants Conference to be held in October 
2020 (subject to Government Covid-19 Guidelines).  
 

4.6 The CSC will oversee the results and outcomes of the BCT mystery shopping programme.  
 

5. Committee Effectiveness 
 

5.1 Having reviewed the work of the CSC, the membership and the forward plan, the Chair 
concludes that the Committee continues to discharge its Terms of Reference effectively. 
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Board 29 July 2020 

 
Title: BCT Strategic Risk Register Update Q1 
 
Report By: James Clifford, Director of Finance and Resources  
 
FOR DECISION 
 

Business Implications 

Risk Strategic Risks are owned by the Board and the Risk Management Framework 
is a vital part of the Board’s assurance that BCT is properly managed. 

Financial and Value for Money Managing risk effectively reduces likelihood and impact of financial loss and 
promoting value for money.  There are specific strategic risks related to 
reduced income, increased costs and fraud. 

People/Consultation BCT considers how tenant priorities can be delivered. Various communication 
channels are in place to appropriately communicate and consult with 
customers.  

Equality and Diversity A strategic risk relates to the effectiveness of BCT’s engagement with tenants, 
and this includes giving every tenant an opportunity to contribute. 

Environment Implications The risks of Health and Safety (H&S) incidents and reduced demand for the 
Estate are identified. 

Contractor Implications Contractor risk has been identified separately and controls put in place to 
review and check that their work conforms to BCT’s standards and policies.   

 

 
1. 

 
Recommendations 
 

1.1 The Board is recommended to review actions since the last update. 
 

2. Synopsis 
 

2.1 BCT’s Strategic Risk Register (SRR) has been updated to reflect changes which have 
occurred since the May 2020 meeting. 
 

2.2 The SRR has been reviewed in detail by the Audit and Risk Committee (A&RC) on 21 July 
2020. 
 

3. Strategic Risk Register - Actions and Changes 
 

3.1 New strategic risks 
 

3.1.1 None. 
 

3.2 
 

Score changes 
 

3.2.1 It is suggested that SR13 Litter, waste management, fly tipping should be downgraded 
from High (score 9) to Medium (6).  This reduction in score is recommended as the new 
cleaning contractor is performing well, and there is a much lower prominence of litter and 
waste complaints to BCT since April 2020. 
 

9.

Page 17 of 112



 

4. Covid-19 Risk Register 
  

4.1 At the July meeting, A&RC reviewed the Risk Register maintained by Executive Team to 
assist the return to normal on-site operations.  No changes were suggested.  
 

5. Partnership Project Risk Register 
 

5.1 A&RC has also reviewed the Risk Register attached to the project to deliver the necessary 
steps towards Partnership.  No changes were suggested.  
 

6. 
 
6.1 

Contact Officer 
 
If you have any questions about this report that you would like clarifying before the meeting, 
you can contact James Clifford by telephone on 0800 5335 442 or email 
james.clifford@bykerct.co.uk   
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Strategic Risk Register 2020-21 
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Risk Scoring:  All risks are scored in terms of likelihood and impact as follows 

Impact 

 Minor Moderate Major Critical 

Service Delivery / 
Business Interruption 

 Loss of service for 1 day. 

 Limited impact on customer 
satisfaction. 

 4 days business disruption. 

 Impact on the organisation 
resulting in reduced 
performance with targets not 
being met. 

 Organisation existence is not 
threatened, but could be 
subject to significant review. 

 1 week business disruption. 

 Major service interruption / 
breakdown in delivery of key 
services and or core activities 
leading to reduction in 
performance in key service 
areas. 

 

 1-month business disruption. 

 Critical failure / service 
interruption resulting in 
inability to deliver key 
services and core activities – 
emergency action required.   

 Significant long-term impact 
on customers and customer 
satisfaction. 

Reputational 

 No effects on reputation. 
 

 Headline local article. 

 Temporary reputational 
damage. 

 Regional media. 

 Regional reputational 
damage. 

 National coverage. 

 Sustained reputation 
damage.  

 Regulator intervention. 

Legal/ Regulatory/ 
Health and Safety 

 Minimal chance of change to 
HCA governance or financial 
viability standard grading. 

 Minor injury. 

 Likely downgrade to HCA 
governance or financial 
viability standard. 

 Expected downgrade to RSH 
governance or financial 
viability standard.  

 Moderate injury requiring 
medical attention. 

 Expected downgrade to RSH 
non-compliant G3 or V3. 

 Major injury or Fatality. 

Financial 
 0.5%-1% of annual turnover 

Value - £45k-90k. 
 1-3% of annual turnover 

£90k-£270k. 
 3%-5% of annual turnover 

£270k-£450k. 
 Greater than 5% annual 

turnover £450k+. 

ICT/Data Security 

 Loss of non-critical files, data 
or records. 

 Recoverable loss of business 
critical files (no personal 
data). 

 Large loss or theft of 
business data.   

 Severe inability to access 
critical files, data or records. 

 Loss of personal data (not 
sensitive). 

 Non-recoverable loss of 
critical data or records. 

 Loss of highly sensitive 
personal data. 

Personnel 

 Difficulty recruiting or 
replacing staff in critical key 
positions within reasonable 
timeframes. 

 Perceived inequality. 

 Inability to attract and retain 
key personnel  

 Inequality issue raised by 
member of staff. 

 Low retention rates of key 
personnel. 

 Disciplinary action or 
complaint about inequality. 

 Sudden or unexpected loss 
of a number of key 
personnel. 

 Serious Employment 
Tribunal. 

Assets  
 

 Routine minor property 
damage. 

 Significant but temporary 
damage to assets or property 
/ facilities. 

 Sustained damage to assets.   

 Repairs or replacements 
lasting more than two 
months. 

 Long-term and permanent 
loss of critical 
assets/buildings. 

Environmental  
 Environmental damage 

reversible over the short-
term. 

 Environmental damage 
reversible over the medium-
term. 

 Major environmental 
damage, reversible with long-
term remediation. 

 Major environmental 
damage, reversible over long 
term or irreversible. 
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Likelihood 
 

Very Likely  Very likely to happen more than once within the current year 

Likely  Likely to happen once within the current year  

Possible Possible to happen every 1 - 3 years 

Unlikely  Unlikely to happen every 3 – 5 years  

 

 

The risks are combined to give an overall risk score: 
 

 Impact 

MINOR MODERATE MAJOR CRITICAL 

 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

Very Likely  
MEDIUM 

4 
HIGH 

8 
CRITICAL 

12 
CRITICAL 

16 

Likely 
LOW 

3 
MEDIUM 

6 
HIGH 

9 
CRITICAL 

12 

Possible  
LOW 

2 
LOW 

4 
MEDIUM 

6 
HIGH 

8 

Unlikely   
LOW 

1 
LOW 

2 
LOW 

3 
MEDIUM 

4 
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Summary table 
 

Risk No. Description 
2019/20  

Q4 
2020/21  

Q1 Change 

SR1 BCT cannot deliver its vision to make Byker an estate of choice  HIGH (9) HIGH (9) - 

SR2 BCT does not collect enough income HIGH (9) HIGH (9) - 

SR3 BCT expenditure is too high MEDIUM (6) MEDIUM (6) - 

SR4 Serious Health and Safety Incident HIGH (8) HIGH (8) - 

SR5 Business Disruption HIGH (8) HIGH (8) - 

SR6 Data Breach LOW (4) LOW (4) - 

SR7 District Heating Failure LOW (4) LOW (4) - 

SR8 Failure / withdrawal of key partner or contractor MEDIUM (6) MEDIUM (6) - 

SR9 Fraud LOW (4) LOW (4) - 

SR10 Failure of Governance controls or regulatory breach LOW (4) LOW (4) - 

SR11 BCT cannot attract or retain key personnel MEDIUM (6) MEDIUM (6) - 

SR12 Anti-Social behaviour MEDIUM (6) MEDIUM (6) - 

SR13 Litter, waste management, fly tipping.  HIGH (9) MEDIUM (6) -3 

SR14 New housing White Paper and strengthening the RSH powers on consumer regulation HIGH (8) HIGH (8) - 
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Risk Maps 
 

 

 

  

Q1 
Impact 

MINOR MODERATE MAJOR CRITICAL 

 

L
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 

Very Likely   
SR4 SR5  

SR14 
  

Likely  SR8 SR12 SR13 SR1    SR2   

Possible   
SR6 SR7 SR9 

SR10 
SR3   SR11       

Unlikely       

Q4 
Impact 

MINOR MODERATE MAJOR CRITICAL 

 

L
ik

e
li

h
o

o
d

 

Very Likely   
SR4 SR5  

SR14 
  

Likely  SR8 SR12 
SR1    SR2  

SR13 
 

Possible   
SR6 SR7 SR9 

SR10 
SR3   SR11     

Unlikely       

9.
 A

pp
en

di
x 

A

Page 23 of 112



SR1 
BCT cannot deliver its objectives of making Byker an ‘Estate 
of Choice’, ‘Contributing to a Thriving Byker’ and ‘Ensuring 
that BCT’s Community Ethos is Sustained’   

FINANCIAL 
REPUTATIONAL 

Description 
BCT is unable to make the Byker Estate an “estate of choice”.  Demand for properties continues to be 
low, turnover of properties continues to be high and tenants do not score the Estate or BCT highly.  
Budget limitations prevent transformational change of the Byker Estate and reputation. 

Risk 
Manager 

Chief Executive, Director of Operations. 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Tenancy turnover:  
Q1 – 6.76% 
Amber: 14.0% 
Red: 16.0% 

Days to let (after works): 
Q4 – 8.8 days 
Amber:  
Red:  

Length of tenancy: 
Q1 – 8.7 years (average) 
Amber:  
Red:  

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
VERY LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
CRITICAL 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Customer Scrutiny 
Committee, Tenant 
Engagement Framework. 

 Comms and Marketing 
plan. 

 Voids policy and standard. 

 Environmental upgrade 
programme. 

 KPIs reported to Board. 

 Trends in property refusal 
reasons. 

 Demand trends for BCT 
properties. 

 CCV data. 

 Environmental Upgrade 
Consultation. 

 STAR (Survey of tenants and 
residents). 

 Internal audit of voids 
procedure. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
HIGH (9) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 Board has approved in March Karbon Homes’ (KH) prospectus in reply to BCT’s 
partnership requirements, allowing BCT and KH to begin formal discussions about 
partnership. 

 Delay to delivering BCT’s investment programme due to COVID-19 (CV19) with 
contractors closing sites. 

2020/21 Q1 

 All BCT sites carrying out external works remobilised during Q1.  Delays remain 
remobilising district heating internal improvements and internal decent homes omits 
whilst safe systems of work are agreed.  

 BCT and KH colleagues are preparing an outline business case for approval by both 
boards in September 2020.  The OBC will set out the transformation investment in the 
estate and the approach that KH will take to maintain the community ethos of Byker.  

 Tyne and Wear Homes has reopened and BCT properties are being re-let.  We are 
continuing to experience a very low level of tenancy terminations. 

 In supporting the Thriving Byker Partnership BCT have provided resources and a 
different programme of summer events. 

 BCT continue to offer support to community groups on the Estate. 

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 Increased marketing to raise positive awareness of the Byker Estate. 

 Continued analysis of customer data and insight. 

 To ensure that BCT is listening and learning from customer complaints, 
the Customer Scrutiny Committee introduced a new complaints procedure in 2020 and 
they will be analysing complaints on a quarterly basis. A customer complaint action 
learning session will be organised for the Customer Scrutiny Committee. 

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 BCT Board would review the strategy and further options for delivery. 
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SR2 BCT does not collect enough income FINANCIAL 

Description 

Financial risk that BCT does not achieve income levels required to fund the Business Plan 
including stock transfer promises and other Corporate Plan actions. Risk of breaching loan 
covenants. 
Risks come from reforms to benefit system, poor rent collection performance, empty homes, 
statutory rent reductions to 2020, and future uncertainty on rent levels. 

Risk 
Manager 

Director of Operations 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Collection rate: 93.61% 
Amber: 97% 
Red: 96% 

Void rent loss: 1.72% 
Amber: 1.8% 
Red: 2.0% 

No. of tenants in receipt of 
Universal Credit.  
739 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
CRITICAL 

TOTAL: 
CRITICAL 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Rent collection policy. 

 Pre-tenancy training. 

 Void procedure. 

 Welfare support officers 
recruited. 

 Performance reports to 
Board and Exec. 

 Analysis of UC data. 

 Benchmarking. 

 Performance data 
reconciled to financial 
data. 

 Review of voids procedure by 
TIAA (year 2). 

 Relevant reports and actions 
from internal audit of KH rent 
collection processes. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
HIGH (9) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 BCT has collected more income (98.5%) than is required to meet the needs of the 
business plan, however it is expected that the impact of CV19 on collections rates will 
not be observed until Q1 20/21.  Enforcement action may be difficult given the 
Government’s cessation of the court activity and an unwillingness to compound hardship 
caused by CV19. 

 Sharp increase in UC cases, 16 new cases during week 52 which is comparable with an 
average monthly increase. 

 Currently 29 voids unable to let due to CV19 and the suspension of T&W homes.   
2020/21 Q1 

 BCT has collected 93.61% of income in the first quarter (97.72% last year). This can be 
attributed to a reduction in 200 direct debits in April, an additional number of 53 tenants 
claiming UC. By the end of the quarter the monthly collection rate returned to normal.  
The total number of collected direct debits has returned to the usual value pre CV19. 
Further analysis of the tracking would suggest that if there are no similar problems, we 
are on track to achieve 98% collection rate by the end of the year.  The unknown risk to 
this is the impact of the furlough scheme.  

 300 vulnerable tenants have been contacted weekly plus an additional 325 monthly 
calls, to offer tenancy support including welfare and benefit advice.  

 Monitor reductions in direct debits, other payment methods and Universal Credit 
applications. 

 EEA nationals need to apply for pre-settled or settled status prior to July 2021 otherwise 
they will not be able to work or claim benefits and therefore may not be able to pay their 
rent. 

 Grant funding bid requesting £90k has been submitted to Homes England towards the 
conversion of 3 commercial units into 4 homes for affordable rent.  

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 BCT will support all of the potential tenancies at risk due to EEA citizen rights situation. 

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 No direct mitigations identified to improve performance in short term. 

 Indirect mitigations from cost reduction actions. 
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SR3 BCT expenditure is too high FINANCIAL 

Description 

Financial risk that BCT expenditure is higher than assumed in the Business Plan meaning investment 
plans and viability are at risk, loan covenants at risk.  Risk comes from poor budget control or 
planning, unplanned price increases (including inflation and Brexit impact), unforeseen spending 
requirements, interest rate increases. 

Risk 
Manager 

Director of Finance and Resources 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Recurring variance to 
operational budgets: 
Amber: £50k adverse  
Red: £100k adverse 
 

Price changes: 
Inflation and interest rate headlines 
Notifications from suppliers 
Sector news – prices increases, material shortages. 
Tender prices exceeding expectations. 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
MEDIUM 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Procurement policy. 

 Basic expenditure 
controls. 

 Contract management 

 Budget control meetings. 

 Treasury management. 

 Closure of DB pension 
scheme to new entrants. 

 Management accounts. 

 Business Plan updates. 

 Scenario testing the 
business plan. 

 TIAA audit business plan 
process, and expenditure 
controls. 

 External Audit review quality 
of information in financial 
statements. 

 Review of BP inputs by 
Abovo. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
POSSIBLE 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
MEDIUM (6) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 Increase in costs on cleaning contract exceeds the budget set in February but budget 
provision is being found from other areas.   

 The Bank of England interest rate has been cut to 0.10% and PWLB rates have been 
cut by 1.00%.  These reductions will have a positive effect on BCT’s future cost of 
borrowing. 

 Expecting a reduction in the cost of repairs due to CV19 in Q1 20/21, as only emergency 
repairs are being undertaken. 

 There is a risk that there will be a rise in labour and materials costs due to the loss of 
suppliers and smooth supply chains. 

2020/21 Q1 

 Interest rates and inflation are at historical lows. 

 No material additional funding announced for the social housing sector during the 
Chancellor’s Spring Statement. 

 As expected, there was a of saving in the KSL management accounts for Q1 mainly due 
to delivering an emergency and essential repairs service only during this period.  

 Minor costs only in preparing the BCT office for a return to work on site. 

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 Use of contingency budgets to meet demand.  

 Close monitoring of any rising costs in labour or materials through the supply chain.  

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 The list of potential cost reduction mitigations prepared for review at stress-testing 
workshop. 
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SR4 Serious Health and Safety Incident 
HEALTH & 
SAFETY, 

REPUTATIONAL 

Description 
Risk that of serious injury/death resulting from H&S compliance failure.  Reputational 
damage following.  Risk comes from: Fire, Gas, Asbestos, Electrical faults, Legionella, 
structural or other issues. 

Risk 
Manager 

Director of Property and Development 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Properties with a valid 
gas safety certificate 
(for cooker)  
Q1 97% 

Properties with a valid 
gas safety certificate 
for live pipework  
Q1 99%  

No. of RIDDOR 
reported incidents.  
Q1 Zero 

No. of consecutive 
days without an injury. 
91 

Amber: 99% 
Red:     98% 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
CRITICAL 

TOTAL: 
CRITICAL 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Gas safety certificate 
programme. 

 Rolling compliance 
programme completed by 
professionally. competent 
contractors. 

 Fire Safety checks, 
sprinkler added to design 
spec. 

 FRA actions monitoring 
sheet. 

 Sample check of gas 
safety. 

 Internal review of 
compliance data by 
NEBOSH qualified 
Technical Services 
Manager. 

 H&S reports to Board bi-
annually and updates to all 
Board meetings on H&S 
compliance.  

 Any high-risk FRA actions 
immediately reported to 
Board. And progress of 
FRA actions reported to 
Board quarterly. 

 TIAA review of Asbestos 
policy & procedures (Year 
one). 

 External fire risk 
assessments of all buildings 
with communal areas in 
accordance with legislation.  

 Insurance provider review of 
plans and procedures. 

 Transparency of H&S 
reporting and fire risk 
assessments on website. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
POSSIBLE 

IMPACT: 
CRITICAL 

TOTAL: 
HIGH (8) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 RIDDOR incident reported to Board March 2020 on the lift replacement contract. 

 Full review of health and safety compliance has been carried out due to CV19.  The 
majority of compliance requirements are continuing.  Where contractors have 
furloughed their staff BCT has reviewed the risk of the compliance area and 
implemented precautionary measures or arranged other contractors to carry out these 
works.  

 Electrical installation condition report (EICR) programme suspended during March 
2020 due to contractors ceasing work.  BCT are exploring how to resume the EICR 
programme using external contractors.  At the end of March 2020 the were 39 
outstanding EICR tests which will be prioritised in Q1 20/21. 

 Internal audit completed on gas safety and electrical testing during March, which 
resulted in reasonable assurance overall assessment. 

2020/21 Q1 

 All health and safety compliance requirements delivered Q1 with the exception of 
EICRs and water temperature checks, which will resume in Q2.  

 EICR programme to resume Q2 implementing safe systems of working to complete the 
69 outstanding EICRs due up to the end of Q1 2020/21 and to commence the 2020/21 
programme.  

 BCT has completed a full review of the EICR access process in partnership with KSL.  

 All BCT contractors delivering works in accordance with revised risk assessments and 
method statements implementing safe systems of work. 

 BCT Health and Safety and Wellbeing Committee established.  First meeting to be held 
Q2 with bi-annual updates to Board.   
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 BCT Board reviewed and approved the annual update of BCT’s health and safety 
policy, gas safety policy, water safety policy, electrical safety policy and fire safety 
policy.  

 All non-accesses for gas safety inspections due to tenants shielding or isolating from 
CV19 are closely monitored. In accordance with Government advice gas safety 
inspections have  been rescheduled for after tenants isolation period and 
comprehensive records have been kept of all access attempts and communication with 
tenants.  Board have been kept up to date with the situation by the CE as part of the 
monthly CV19 briefing note. 

 A separate CV19 risk register was established in Q1 including health and safety of staff 
and customers which is reported to ARC and reviewed monthly. 

Possible 
new control 
actions 
 

 BCT continue to review all best practice or emerging legislation as a result of the 
Government’s Building Safely Programme.  

 Internal audit of health and safety policy (incl codes of practice) and lifts to be carried 
out during 2020/21. 

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 Direct mitigations if incident should happen include insurance cover, investigation work, 
and communication strategy.   
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SR5 Serious Business Disruption 

SERVICE 
DELIVERY 

REPUTATIONAL 
ICT 

Description 
Risk that BCT cannot carry out business due to failure of premises (including adverse 
weather), ICT resources, personnel resources. 

Risk 
Manager 

Chief Executive 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Weather warnings, ICT virus threats, news of widespread sickness, planned downtime 
and closures. 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOODD: 
VERY LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
CRITICAL (12) 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Working from home ability. 

 Emergency contact 
schedule. 

 Recovery plans to get BCT 
operational again. 

 ICT continuity plans at KH. 

 Walkthrough testing of 
plans. 

 Internal audit of business 
continuity. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
VERY LIKELY  

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
HIGH (8) 

Actions and 
updates 

 All critical, vital and important areas now complete in the Business Continuity Plan. 
2019/20 Q3 

 Business continuity plan was the subject of an internal audit in Q3.  Result was 
substantial assurance.  There was a recommendation for a formal walkthrough of the 
plan with key staff, this has been scheduled for Q4.  

2019/20 Q4 

 Formal walkthrough carried out of the business continuity plan by the Wider 
Management Team on 4 March 2020 using CV19 pandemic as a scenario.  

 Following government guidance, BCT implemented the Business Continuity Plan and 
put in place homeworking measures for staff from 23 March 2020.  

 Communication sent to every household and additional messages posted to the BCT 
website and social media channels advising tenants of service delivery options.  

 Stakeholders and contractors kept informed.   
2020/21 Q1 

 All appropriate office and estate working risk assessments have been completed in 
line with Government advice.  

 A CV19 risk assessment has been developed which will be shared with audit and risk 
committee.  

 A staff health & safety and wellbeing committee was established, to help review 
BCT’s office remobilisation plan and risk assessments.  A staff working at home 
survey was carried out in May 2020 and findings reported back to staff via team brief 
and individuals with areas of concern. 

 The procedure for use of the BCT office (CV19) is now in place and full remobilisation 
is planned during September 2020. 

 CORS survey on business disruption completed each month for the Regulator of 
Social Housing.  

 Weekly review of staff workloads during the business disruption period. 

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 Bi-annual disaster recovery drills to review areas of serious business disruption 
(currently annual). 

 Annual review of disaster recovery arrangements (currently 2yrs). 

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 Direct mitigations if incident should happen include Disaster Recovery Plan including 
communication plan to staff and customers. 
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SR6 Data Breach 
ICT/DATA 
SECURITY 

REPUTATIONAL 

Description 
Risk that there is a loss of sensitive or large-scale data from BCT, or BCT does not follow 
GDPR principles in its handling of personal data. 

Risk 
Manager 

Company Secretary 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Proliferation of subject access requests, notification from contractor that is a data 
processor for BCT, customer complaint, supplier complaint. 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
HIGH 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Data protection policy. 

 Privacy statement. 

 Code of conduct. 

 Data breach plan. 

 DPIA actions (not yet 
complete). 

 GDPR action plan. 

 Review of DPIAs and 
process notes. 

 TIAA to review GDPR 
compliance in year 2. 

 External review of 
readiness and 
documentation. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
POSSIBLE 

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
LOW (4) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 Internal audit of GDPR controls carried out in Q4, received reasonable assurance.  

 Staff have been reminded of the importance of GDPR especially while homeworking 
 Since home working commenced, all staff have received further training on GDPR 

when homeworking. 
2020/21 Q1 

 Cyber security insurance now in place. 

 Governance and remuneration committee received an update on progress against 
GDPR actions arising from internal audit.  

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 DoF leading work to continually improve data protection measures. 

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 Data breach plan. 

 During the CV19 pandemic, the district heating continues to be operated as normal 
including the operation of the biomass boiler and CHP plant. 

 Cyber security insurance. 
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SR7 District Heating Failure 

BUSINESS 
INTERRUPTION 
REPUTATIONAL 

HEALTH & SAFETY 

Description 
Widespread or prolonged loss of heat supply from the District Heating plant/system.  
Loss of heat to homes of residents, offices, causing reputational damage and potentially 
health damage to residents. 

Risk 
Manager 

Director of Property and Development. 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Drop in water pressure 
highlighted by building 
management system. 

Increased number of 
repairs required. 

Adverse weather 
forecasts. 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
HIGH 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Residential heat supply – 
outsourced. 

 Building management alert 
system. 

 Upgrade and maintenance 
to pipework. 

 Back up boilers. 

 BDHS disaster resilience 
plan. 

 Proactive £2.6m 
investment to deliver 
upgrade to remaining 
pipework 

 Budget provision for major 
repairs 

 Review of performance 
information by BCT. 

 BCT employ consultant to 
coordinate Dist Heat 
works. 

 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
POSSIBLE 

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
LOW (4) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 Discussions re: funding for the remainder of the secondary mains continues. Savills 
valuation received and shared with NCC Q4.  Meeting held with NCC and Trowers to 
commence review of district heating legal documentation.  

 Due to government guidance relating to CV19 work package 3 has been temporarily 
suspended.  

2020/21 Q1 

 Work package 3 continues to be temporarily suspended.  Working with contractor to 
review risk assessments and method statements to prepare for works to resume in 
Q2.  

 Leak identified on the primary mains network.  Repair programme for Q2 will be 
funded through the Residential Heat Supply Agreement.  

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 More frequent disaster recovery drills. 

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 NCC disaster recovery plan specific to district heating systems. 

 Back up boilers off site, separate to main plant room.  Temporary heat source to 
whole estate.  

 Supply of electric fan heaters in stock for vulnerable residents. 
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SR8 Failure / withdrawal of key partner or contractor 
SERVICE DELIVERY 

Reputational 

Description 
BCT relies on partners to deliver many of its functions including repairs, compliance work, 
concierge, ICT, financial systems.  BCT should maintain a productive but challenging 
relationship with partners. 

Risk 
Manager 

Chief Executive 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Verbal/unofficial feedback from partners, “soft” information on partners (e.g. profit 
warnings, downgrades, press releases) accounts information, strategy announcements.  
Poor contractual performance. 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
MEDIUM 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Contract documents. 

 Regular contract 
management meetings. 

 Financial monitoring of 
contract performance. 

 CE is Director on Karbon 
Solutions Board and 
reports back to BCT 
Board. 

 IDA of service provider 
carried out by RSH. 

 VFM assessment of 
service provided under 
contract by 3rd party. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
MEDIUM (6) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 Increased risk of contractors coming into financial difficulty due to suspension of 
construction sites. 

 BCT’s main contractors are having difficulty with supply chains and sub-contractors 
furloughing staff. 

 Kingdom Services were issued with notice of BCT’s intention to terminate the 
cleaning contract as of 31 March 2020.   

 Mini tender exercise concluded with the appointment of NCC as the new cleaning 
contractors as of 1 April 2020.  

2020/21 Q1 

 Regular contact with BCT contractors to discuss any issues arising due to the impact 
of CV19.  

 BCT’s main contractors continue to have difficulty in sourcing certain materials in the 
supply chain, in particular plaster and PPE.  

 New Byker Wall cleaning contract began in Q1 delivered by NCC and is running 
smoothly.  

 Executive Team monthly meetings and CE quarterly board meetings with KSL.    

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 Stronger due diligence prior to appointment of large contractors to reduce 
counterparty risk to be picked up in new Financial Regulations. 

 Disaster recovery plan to be expanded to cover failure of all major contractor 
relationships.  

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 Access frameworks or work with other local partners to cover gaps in service delivery.  
Look for UK suppliers in case of Brexit issues.  Activate penalty clauses in contracts 
where they exist. 
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SR9 Fraud 
FINANCIAL 

REPUTATIONAL 

Description 
BCT employee or Board member defrauds BCT of cash or other assets unlawfully, or 
behaviour is unfairly influenced through bribery or incentives. 

Risk 
Manager 

Company Secretary 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Unexplained transactions, growing debtors, reconciliation errors, change in employee 
behaviour, unusual contract awards. 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
MEDIUM 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Financial regulations, 
spend and procurement 
controls. 

 Separation of duties. 

 Declaration of interests. 

 Regular financial 
reconciliations. 

 Hospitality policy. 

 Fraud/ Whistle-blower 
policy. 

 Review of hospitality and 
interests. 

 2nd review of 
reconciliations. 

 TIAA audit financial 
policies. 

 External Audit report on 
unusual items. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
POSSIBLE 

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
LOW (4) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 No identified fraudulent activity during the quarter.   

 Fraud training was planned for March, but has been suspended due to lockdown. 
2020/21 Q1 

 No identified fraudulent activity during the quarter. 
 Fraud training to be delivered during Q2.  

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 Continue to document and review financial processes to improve controls. 

 Recent audit recommendations (training) will be put in place in Q2.   

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 Investigation, police action, employee suspension for suspected fraud.  Actions to 
recover funds.  
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SR10 Failure of Governance controls or regulatory breach 
REGULATORY 

REPUTATIONAL 
FINANCIAL 

Description 
BCT employees or Board members act beyond their delegated authority, or BCT fails to 
follow regulations or the law due to poor or badly-defined governance rules potentially 
leading to downgrade or fines. 

Risk 
Manager 

Company Secretary 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Confusing Governance documents, uncertain delegations and authorities. Unclear 
processes for completing regulatory returns or setting rents.   

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
HIGH 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Internal Control 
Framework including risk 
management. 

 Scheme of delegations. 

 Clear governance 
documents  

 Annual review of: Sector 
Risk Profile, Regulating 
the Standards and internal 
governance documents. 

 Regulatory returns – key 
controls document. 

 Company Secretary to 
advise on decision-making 
processes. 

 Regulation self-
assessments and annual 
report to tenants. 

 HQN review of 
governance.  

 Internal Audit (Regulatory 
returns audit Oct-18). 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
POSSIBLE 

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
LOW (4) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 RSH has indicated a more lenient approach with providers regarding data 
submissions and proactive engagement. 

 RSH has issued a new questionnaire to discover providers’ response to health and 
safety compliance during the CV19 pandemic.  

 RSH warning of the importance of maintaining delegations rules when working 
remotely.  Board and committee are working as normal through video and telephone 
conferencing. 

 Approval of KH’s response to BCT Prospectus, allowing BCT and KH to begin formal 
discussions about partnership.  RSH being kept up to date with progress.   

2020/21 Q1 

 No data submission errors in returns to RSH. 

 FFR due by 30 September 2020, SDR due to 31 October 2020. 

 BCT are reviewing all governance documents prior to July 2020.   

 All Board members have completed a board effectiveness survey, annual appraisals 
and collective feedback/training has been compiled into an action plan monitored by 
the CE and Chair.  

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 Ongoing review of control documents and sign off of controls by responsible director. 

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 Investigation and resulting actions.  Informing relevant authorities.   
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SR11 BCT cannot attract or retain key personnel PERSONNEL 

Description 
BCT unable to retain or attract employees or Board members who individually or as a 
group have the required skills and experience. 

Risk 
Manager 

Chair, Chief Executive 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

High staff/Board turnover, difficulty recruiting to key posts.  High staff sickness.  Sector 
news about skills shortages.  Exit interviews. 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
POSSIBLE 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
MEDIUM 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 BCT pension and other 
benefits. 

 Competency framework 
and appraisal system to 
identify issues. 

 Absence management. 

 Staff turnover KPI. 

 Staff sickness KPI. 

 Regular independent 
review of terms and 
conditions. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
POSSIBLE 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
MEDIUM (6) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 All BCT recruitment on hold as a result of CV19. 

 Board member terms of office will be extended beyond the September AGM as 
necessary while partnership discussions are concluded.  

2020/21 Q1 

 BCT recruitment continues to be on hold.  

 All Board members have had an appraisal with the Chair and their feedback will form 
the basis of an action plan to be delivered by the Chair and CE. 

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 

 The training program for Board members is now refreshed to be implemented during 
2020-21 

 

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 If recruitment is an issue: review conditions of employment and other advertisement 
routes. 

 If turnover is an issue, get feedback from employees leaving, consider accruing 
benefits for long service. 
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SR12 Anti-Social Behaviour 
REPUTATIONAL  

SERVICE DELIVERY 

Description 
Antisocial behaviour on the Estate causes misery for residents, reputational damage, 
increasing turnover of properties, repair costs and low demand. 

Risk 
Manager 

Director of Operations 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Customer complaints, informal and formal.  Higher turnover, difficult to let properties in 
particular areas, high external repairs in certain areas.  Feedback from customer care 
visits. 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
VERY LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
HIGH 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Tenancy enforcement  

 ASB policy. 

 New locks added to 
communal areas. 

 Education and 
engagement with 
community. 

 Involved in YEIHA. 

 Statutory enforcement 
powers. 

 Review numbers of ASB 
cases 

 Review cases for patterns 

 Internal audit of ASB 
procedures. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
MEDIUM (6) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 Reported breaches of government guidelines relating to CV19 

 Increased risk of domestic violence for BCT tenants. 
2020/21 Q1 

 Updated ASB policy approved by Board in Q4 and implemented from Q1.  

 Continued new breaches of government guidelines in relation to social 
distancing/CV19. 

 Increase in noise related activity complaints. 

 No noted increase in reports of domestic violence.  

 Housing Management are applying all tools available to handle current ASB issues 
across the Estate. 

 There are options available for tenants to report any ASB breaches as part of home 
working arrangements.  

 BCT is proactively contacting vulnerable tenants to help prevent ASB or domestic 
violence. 

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 BCT involved in the delivery of Best Summer Ever, which will target between 60 – 80 
young people per day with the aim of reducing ASB. 

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 More enhanced communications with tenants and press, escalation with Police 
Commissioner. 
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SR13 Litter, waste management, fly tipping. 
REPUTATIONAL  

SERVICE 
DELIVERY 

Description 
Refuse collection, litter and street cleaning service delivered by NCC does not meet 
tenant’s expectations, causing reputational damage to BCT. Tenants are not clear where 
responsibility for these services lies. 

Risk 
Manager 

Director of Operations 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Customer complaints, informal and formal.  STAR Survey feedback.  Feedback from 
customer care visits. Visible signs of reduced or missed service. Increase in Grounds 
Maintenance work load managing litter. 

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
VERY LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
HIGH 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Waste management 
guidance included 
regularly in newsletters. 

 Tenants empowered to 
contact NCC and log 
complaints. 

 Regular meetings with 
NCC to discuss waste 
management. 

 Complaints and 
compliments. 

 Customer Care Visits. 

 TARAs.  

 Customer Scrutiny 
Committee oversight. 

 STAR survey 
commissioned to gain 
insight into tenant’s 
opinions. 

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
MEDIUM (6) 

Actions and 
updates 

2019/20 Q4 

 Increase in reports of fly-tipping and litter during last 2 weeks of March 2020. 

 Grounds maintenance team continuing to monitor fly-tipping on BCT land and empty 
litter bins.  

 Estate wide provision of skips in January 2020 to deal with excess Christmas waste.  
2020/21 Q1 

 Grounds Maintenance team have continued to work during Q1 with minimal reports of 
fly tipping on BCT land.  

 Award of the cleaning contract to NCC which has better aligned management of 
external bin areas.  

 BCT instructed NCC to carry out an initial deep clean by new contractor to bring 
Estate up to a good standard. 

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 Further work with tenants’ groups to develop waste management and recycling 
champions. 

 Better waste management and recycling to be facilitated through the Environmental 
Upgrade investment. 

Mitigations  Possible options for BCT to increase expenditure on litter control. 
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SR14 
New housing White Paper and strengthening the RSH powers 
on consumer regulation 

FINANCIAL  
REPUTATIONAL 

HEALTH & 
SAFETY 

Description 
New primary legislation or changes to the consumer standards require BCT to increase 
expenditure and implement further compliance or controls.  

Risk 
Manager 

All Exec 

Early 
warning 
indicators 

Government announcements, consultations, Grenfell enquiry, Regulator announcements 
and meetings, industry press.  

Gross Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
VERY LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MAJOR 

TOTAL: 
CRITICAL 

Current 
Controls 

1st Line of Defence 2nd Line of Defence 3rd Line of Defence 

 Adopt best practice for fire 
and electrical safety. 

 Annual consumer 
regulation review. 

 Fire stopping measures 
approved by Board.  

 Customer scrutiny 
committee and review of 
complaints policy. 

 Annual gas safety checks.  

 Horizon scanning. 

 Internal audit. 

 Transparency.  

Net Risk 
Score 

LIKELIHOOD: 
VERY LIKELY 

IMPACT: 
MODERATE 

TOTAL: 
HIGH (8) 

Actions and 
updates 

Possible new legislation: Customer 

 Consumer regulation on tenant engagement, involvement and decision making.  

 New KPIs on consumer matters. 

 Introduction of Housing Ombudsman Complaint Handling Code.  
Property 

 New decent homes standard, with potential increase focus on energy efficiency.  

 Increased compliance requirements in relation to electrical safety and fire. 

 Fit for Human Habitation Act, leading to an increase in disrepair claims.  

 Grenfell building enquiry – potentially result in increased fire safety measures to the 
external fabric e.g. protecting balconies with fire retardant paint.  

 Potential concern about the fire resistance of timber frame buildings and the impact 
on tenant safety and property valuation.  

 Building management requirements emerging from the Grenfell enquiry which will 
impact on BCT buildings.  Also, potential to expand this requirement to multiple 
occupancy buildings and review the stay put guidance.  

2019/20 Q3 

 Tenant developed complaints policy and procedure approved by Board. 

 BCT signed up to adopt ‘Together with Tenants’ and also be a member of ‘North East 
Tenants’ Voice’.  

2019/20 Q4 

 Government published Fire Safety Bill March 2020 which will be reviewed, and 
measures implemented where required.  

 The government has announced there will be a new building safety regulator under 
the authority of the HSE.  

 Regulator has relaxed some aspects of consumer standards during the CV19 
response.   

 The Government has published advice regarding property access and health and 
safety obligations during the CV19 pandemic. 

2020/21 Q1 

 Board updated on all recent announcements as part of the Governments Building 
Safety Programme as part of the Q3&Q4 2019/20 H&S update.  

 BCT has commenced applying intumescent paint to external timber work and 
cladding to the blocks included in the Dunn Terrace external upgrade scheme.  

 To ensure that BCT is listening and learning from customer complaints, 
the Customer Scrutiny Committee introduced a new complaints procedure in 2020 
and they will be analysing complaints on a quarterly basis. A customer complaint 
action learning session will be organised for the Customer Scrutiny Committee. 
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 Publish complaints and other consumer KPIs to the BCT website updated quarterly 
following performance reporting cycles. 

 Commenced a review of the energy performance of BCT stock.  

Possible 
new control 
actions 

 BCT is reviewing the painting programme and the cost impact of applying fire 
retardant paint to the next paint cycle of all communal blocks. 

 A CE review of The Housing White Paper will be reported to Board when it is 
published (expected by the end of 2020). 

 The Housing Ombudsman’s Complaint Handling Code is being reported as part of the 
CE report in July 2020. 

 A new section in the Annual Report to Tenants in 2020 will focus solely on customer 
complaints.  

Mitigations 
(if risk 
happens) 

 Prioritise expenditure on meeting legislative requirements at the expense of other 
investment priorities.  

 Ensure records are kept documenting access attempts to complete necessary 
compliance checks in BCT properties. 
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Board 29 July 2020 

 
Title: Governance items 
 
Report By: James Clifford, Director of Finance and Resources  
 
FOR DECISION 
 

Business Implications 

Risk Board policies and responsibility for Board membership are the Board’s 
responsibility. 
 

Financial and Value for Money The report sets out a common sense and value for money proposal to extend 
Board member terms of office for retiring members. 
 

People/Consultation Two of the policy documents and the issue of Board member terms of office 
have been discussed at Governance and Remuneration Committee. 
  

Equality and Diversity The Board member policy includes a section on diversity of Board members. 

Environment Implications None identified. 

Contractor Implications None identified. 
 

 
1. 

 
Executive Summary 
 

1.1 There are two sections to this report.  The first recommends that Board formally approves all 
the steps required to extend the terms of office for three Board members who are scheduled 
to retire at the September Annual General Meeting (AGM).  This will avoid the need for 
Board recruitment during the short period before the partnership project is due to complete.  
The second seeks approval for minor changes to Board governance documents. 
 

1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix Documents (in Virtual Boardroom) 
 

A Board standing orders 

B Board membership policy 

C Statement of Governance Principles 

D The Scheme of Delegations 
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 The Board is recommended to:  

 Take the actions in section 3.5 to extend the terms of office for three Board members 

 Approve the minor changes to governance documents 
 

3. Board Member Terms of Office 
 

3.1 Following discussion at Governance Remuneration Committee, the Board agreed in January 
that the Terms of Office, for three retiring Board members, should be extended.   
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3.2 The Company Secretary has investigated the necessary steps in the BCT Rules to achieve 
this outcome and the following extracts from the BCT Rules pertain to the question of Board 
member terms of office: 
 

 D11   Each Board member …shall be elected for a fixed term of office expiring at the 
conclusion of the annual general meeting.  The fixed term shall be for a term of three annual 
general meetings…No fixed term shall be set which would cause the relevant Board member 
to serve beyond their ninth consecutive annual general meeting... save where the Board 
agrees that circumstances exist where it would be in the interest of the Association 
for a Board Member to service for a longer period. 
 
D12.1   At every annual general meeting each Board Member elected under rule D11 who 
has served their fixed term shall retire from office excepting that not less than one third of the 
Tenant Board Members and one fifth of the Independent Board Members shall retire from 
office. 
 
D12.2   Any Board Member retiring under rule D12.1 having completed nine years' 
continuous service (or nine years' continuous service plus any extended period agreed 
by the Board under rule D11) … shall not be eligible for re-appointment or re-election 
for at least one full term of office. 
 
D13.1 Board Members elected under rule D11 will be elected in accordance with open and 
transparent selection criteria and election procedures set out in any Board membership 
policies adopted by the Board from time to time. These may provide for prospective 
candidates to be approved by the Board before they are eligible to stand for election 
as Board Members. 
 
D13.4   If at elections the number of candidates for election as Tenant Board Members does 
not exceed the number of Tenant vacancies on the Board the Chair shall declare those 
candidates to have been duly elected. If at elections the number of candidates for 
election as Independent Board Members does not exceed the number of Independent 
vacancies on the Board the Chair shall declare those candidates to have been duly 
elected. 
 

3.4 From the above Rules it is clear that: 

 The Board has the powers to extend Terms of Office of Board members beyond 9 years; 

 The annual retirement of Board members is required by the Rules, however the 
retirement and re-election can be uncontested if there are no new candidates for Board 
positions; and 

 The Board can take on to itself the powers to approve candidates for election to the 
Board. 

 
4. 
 
4.1 

Conclusion 
 
Taking account the above Rules the following actions are recommended: 

 The Board should formally extend the terms of office for the following Board members; 
o Nick Kemp 
o Annette Patten 
o Gordon Bell 

 Approve the Board member policy including a specific amendment to ensure that the 
Board has authority to approve Board member candidates; 

 Formally agree that it is in the interest of BCT that no new Board member candidates will 
be accepted until after April 2021; and 
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 Put forward one tenant and one independent Board Member (not listed above) for 
retirement and uncontested re-election at the AGM in September 2020. 

 
5. Board Policy Documents  

 
5.1 Three Board policy documents have been reviewed for Board approval.   

 The Board standing orders 

 The Board membership policy (previously reviewed by G&RC) 

 The Statement of Governance Principles (previously reviewed by G&RC) 

 The Scheme of Delegations (previously reviewed by G&RC)  
 

5.2 Following on from the previous discussion the following wording has been added to the 
Board membership policy: 
 
“The Board has the authority to ‘approve or not’ candidates for Board membership, in the 
best interests of BCT and in accordance with the desired characteristics for Board members, 
and in achieving a mix of skills and experience on the Board.” 
 

5.3 Aside from the change above, only minor changes have been made to the governance 
documents which are stored for reference in VBR. 
 

6. 
 
6.1 

Contact Officer 
 
If you have any questions about this report that you would like clarifying before the meeting, 
you can contact James Clifford by telephone on 0800 5335 442 or email 
james.clifford@bykerct.co.uk   
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Board 29 July 2020 

 
Title: BCT’s Self-Assessment against:-  

1. The Regulatory Standards  
2. National Housing Federation Code of Governance  

 
Report By: Philip Pollard, Director of Operations 
 
FOR DECISION 
 
Business Implications 

Risk  Board have responsibility for seeking appropriate assurance that all of the 
Regulatory Standards are being met. Failure to meet the Regulatory 
Standards could have a detrimental impact upon the Regulator of Social 
Housing governance assessment of BCT.  

Financial and Value for Money  BCT are required to complete and publish an annual Value for Money (VfM) 
self-assessment under the Economic Standards. BCT also aim to achieve VfM 
in everything we do.  

People/Consultation  The Consumer Standards require that BCT ensure that tenants have a voice 
in the shaping of service delivery and are involved in the scrutiny and 
monitoring of services.  

Equality and Diversity  The Consumer Standards require a non-discriminatory approach to be 
considered and implemented within service delivery.  

Environment Implications  The Neighbourhood and Community Standard requires that BCT provides a 
clean and safe neighbourhood and communal areas associated with homes.   

Contractor Implications  BCT adopts a strategic partnership approach with all its contracting partners 
to ensure their commitment to delivering BCT’s Mission, Vision and Values. 
Maximising VfM in the delivery of quality homes and services with our 
contracting partners. BCT also places a focus upon the need for community 
investment to be included within contractual arrangements where appropriate.  

 
1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 Registered Providers of Social Housing (RP’s) are subject to Regulatory Standards as 

set out by the Regulator of Social Housing (RSH).  This report is a regulatory 
requirement and an annual agenda item that details the key areas that make up the 
Regulatory Standards. BCT self-assess against the standards and identify any future 
actions in order to ensure compliance.  
 

1.2 ‘Regulating the Standards’ (March 2020) outlines the RSH’s operational approach to 
assessing providers’ compliance with the Economic and Consumer Standards. The 
RSH’s principal focus is on promoting a viable, efficient and well-governed social 
housing sector able to deliver homes that meet a range of needs. 
 

1.3 This report details the key areas that make up the Regulatory Standards and outlines 
BCT’s self-assessment. The Regulatory Standards consist of: 
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1.3.1 Economic Standards: 

 Governance and Financial Viability 

 Value for Money (VfM) 

 Rent  
 

1.3.2 Consumer Standards: 

 Home 

 Tenancy 

 Neighbourhood and Community  

 Tenant Involvement and Empowerment 
 

1.4 BCT’s self-assessment against the Regulatory Standards is set out in sections 4 and 5 
of the report. 
 

1.5 A self-assessment against the National Housing Federation Code of Governance has 
also been undertaken and is set out in section 6 of the report. 
 

1.6 Appendix Documents 

 
 
 
 
 

 

A   Self-assessment against the Regulatory Standards 

B    Self-assessment against the National Housing Federation Code of 
Governance 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 The Board is recommended to discuss and agree the content of the report including: 

 The self-assessment against the Regulatory Standards and identified actions in 
Appendix A (available in VBR). 

 The self-assessment against the National Housing Federation Code of Governance 
in Appendix B.  

 
3. Background Information 

 
3.1 Regulatory Standards are classified as either Economic or Consumer Standards and 

under the “co-regulation” regime, BCT is required annually to undertake a self-
assessment of its compliance against these standards. 
 

3.4 Economic Standards are monitored by the RSH and RP’s are expected to monitor their 
own performance against the Consumer Standards. Board have responsibility for 
seeking appropriate assurance that all of the Regulatory Standards are being met. 
 

3.5 BCT’s Executive Team have completed a self-assessment against all of the Regulatory 
Standards to identify any gaps and/or weaknesses which BCT may have (Appendix A).  
Where gaps and/or weaknesses have been identified, an appropriate action has been 
proposed which when completed will ensure future compliance with the appropriate 
Regulatory Standard.   
 

4. Assessment against the Economic Standards 
 

4.1 In Regulating the Standards, the economic regulation objectives are stated as:  

 To ensure that registered providers of social housing are financially viable and 
properly managed and perform their functions efficiently and economically;  

 To support the provision of social housing sufficient to meet reasonable demands 
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(including by encouraging and promoting private investment in social housing);  

 To ensure that VfM is obtained from public investment in social housing;  

 To ensure that an unreasonable burden is not imposed (directly or indirectly) on 
public funds; and  

 To guard against the misuse of public funds. 
 

4.2 Audit and Risk Committee (A&RC) received a report on 21 July 2020 and concluded that 
BCT is compliant with the Standard. 
 

5. Assessment against the Governance and Viability Standard 
 

5.1 The Governance and Financial Viability Standard sets out our specific expectation that 
providers must: 

 Certify their compliance with the Standard in their annual accounts; and 

 Communicate in a timely manner with the regulator on material issues that relate to 
non-compliance or potential non-compliance with the standards. 

 
5.2 A&RC received a report on 21 July 2020 and concluded that BCT is compliant with the 

Standard. 
 

6. Assessment against the Value for Money Standard  
 

6.1 The VfM Standard sets a specific expectation that the published evidence in a provider’s 
statutory accounts should enable stakeholders to understand: 

  Performance against its own VfM targets and any metrics set out by the regulator, 
and how that performance compares to peers; and 

 Measurable plans to address any areas of underperformance, including clearly 
stating any areas where improvements would not be appropriate and the rationale for 
this. 

 
6.2 A&RC received a report on 21 July 2020 and reviewed an analysis of BCT’s housing 

stock profitability to help improve the understanding of costs and income for different 
stock types and locations. The Committee concluded that BCT is compliant with the 
Standard.  
 

7. Assessment against the Rent Standard 
 

7.1 A new rent standard was introduced from 2020.  It allows for a maximum increase in 
rents of Consumer Price Inflation (CPI) +1% to social and affordable rents.   
 

7.2 BCT has applied the maximum rent increase and is compliant with the Standard. 
 

8. Assessment against the Consumer Standards 
 

8.1 
 
 

‘Regulating the Standards’ outlines the RSH’s operational approach to assessing 

housing providers’ compliance with the Economic and Consumer Standards. The 

consumer regulation objectives are stated as: 

 To support the provision of social housing that is well-managed and of appropriate 

quality;  

 To ensure that actual or potential tenants of social housing have an appropriate 

degree of choice and protection; 

 To ensure that tenants of social housing have the opportunity to be involved in its 

management and to hold their landlord to account; and 
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 To encourage registered providers of social housing to contribute to the 

environmental, social and economic well-being of the areas in which the housing is 

situated. 

 

8.2 The Home Standard requires RP’s to meet all applicable statutory requirements for the 

health and safety of the occupants in their homes (including, but not limited to Gas 

Safety, Fire Safety, Electrical Safety, Asbestos, Legionella and Lift Safety). 
 

8.3 In terms of the Home Standard, BCT meet with the required outcomes and the specific 

requirements. It should be noted however that 11 properties who omitted from the 

Decent Home Standard (DHS) internal works currently do not meet the DHS internally 

due to electrical works, however all work has been programmed to be undertaken during 

2020/21. In addition, 62 BCT properties had an outstanding Electrical Installation 

Condition Report (EICR) where completion has been impacted upon by Covid-19 

Government restrictions. Work to complete EICR’s recommenced in July 2020 and it is 

hoped that this work will be completed by September.  
 

8.4 The Tenancy Standard aims to ensure that all RP’s let their homes in a fair, transparent 

and efficient way considering the needs and aspirations of tenants and potential tenants. 

RP’s are required to offer tenancies or terms of occupation that are compatible with the 

purpose of the accommodation, meet the needs of the individual households, create 

sustainable communities and make the best use of their housing stock.  
 

8.5 The Neighbourhood and Community Standard requires RP’s to work in partnership with 

other relevant agencies to address issues such as the cleanliness of the area and anti-

social behaviour. The Standard, in line with the regulator’s general approach, envisages 

that such issues are best dealt with locally. 

 

8.6 The Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Standard is intended to ensure that tenants 
can hold their landlord to account. It sets out how RP’s should engage and interact with 
their tenants, how they should handle complaints, and the importance of taking tenants’ 
needs into account. 
 

8.7 BCT have undertaken a self-assessment against the Consumer Standards (attached at 
Appendix A in VBR) and are fully compliant with all the required outcomes and specific 
requirements of the Consumer Standards. 
 

9. National Housing Federation Code of Governance Self-Assessment 
 

9.1 The Governance and Viability Standard requires housing associations to adopt a Code 
of Governance and include a statement of compliance to that code in its Annual 
Accounts.  Housing associations should also explain any areas of non-compliance.  BCT 
has adopted the National Housing Federation Code of Governance (2015). 
 

9.2 The self-assessment (Appendix B) was firstly reported to A&RC on 21 July 2020 and the 
Committee concluded that BCT is compliant with all the requirements of its adopted 
code. 
 

10. 
 
 

Contact Officer  - If you have any questions about this report that you would like 
clarifying before the meeting, you can contact Philip Pollard by telephone on 0800 533 
5442 or email philip.pollard@bykerct.co.uk 
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Appendix C – Self-Assessment against the NHF Code of Governance (2015) 

July 2020 

Requirements Compliant? Notes and Actions 
Section A - Compliance with this code 

Main requirement   

Organisations which adopt this code must publish an annual statement of 
compliance with the code in their annual financial statements, and make a 
reasoned statement about any areas where they do not comply. 

Y Statement of compliance to be approved by 
Committee for inclusion in the Financial 
Statements and Reports. 

Provisions   

A1 Where a statement of non-compliance is needed, it must: N/A N/A– recommend statement of full compliance.  

(1) be published in the organisation’s annual financial statements; N/A N/A– recommend statement of full compliance. 

(2) be specific to the particular circumstances of the organisation; N/A N/A– recommend statement of full compliance. 

(3) explain why and how the principles of good governance are being 
upheld; and 

N/A N/A– recommend statement of full compliance. 

(4) set out in summary any plans for the achievement of compliance with 
the code. 

N/A N/A– recommend statement of full compliance. 

A2 Where the formal constitution of an organisation conflicts with this code, 
the constitution must take precedence. 

N/A N/A– recommend statement of full compliance. 

Section B - Compliance with this code 

Main requirement   

The board must be effective in the strategic leadership and control of the 
organisation and act wholly in its best interest. Board members must 
ensure that the interests of the organisation are placed before any personal 
interests. 

Y See specific items below 

Provisions   

B1 The core purpose of the board is to determine vision and strategy, 
direct, control, and scrutinise an organisation’s affairs. Where the 
organisation has staff, operational management of the organisation must 
be delegated to them, and the board must hold them to account. 

Y These principles are enshrined in the BCT 7 
Guiding Principles, Scheme of Delegations 
(Matters Reserved for Board). 

B2 All members of the board, executive and non-executive, share the 
same legal status and have equal responsibility. Each must act only in the 
interests of the organisation and not on behalf of or representing any 
constituency or interest group. Board members must ensure that the 
interests of the organisation are placed before any personal interests, 
whether commercial or otherwise. 

Y This expectation is set out in the Board Member 
Role profile, Code of Conduct, and reinforced by 
the Chair.  Register of interests are maintained to 
help identify potential conflicts. 
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Requirements Compliant? Notes and Actions 
B3 It is for each organisation to decide on its best board composition; in the 
case of a subsidiary within a group, this may be a matter for the group 
parent organisation. 

Y The Board completed a review of the board 
composition in 2018 and recommended changes 
to be approved by the Shareholders. 

B4 Board members who are executive staff must be in a minority. Boards 
should have at least five members and no more than twelve, including any 
co-optees and any executive board members. 

Y There are no Executive members of the Board.  
BCT Board is generally limited to 12 members. 

B5 A majority of those present must be non-executive board members for a 
board meeting to be quorate. 

Y All Board members are non-executive. 

B6 The roles of chair (and vice chair or senior independent director, if there 
is one) of the board and main committees must not be held by an 
executive. 

Y All Board members are non-executive. 

B7 The board must appoint a company secretary (or a person with that 
function) with a clear accountability to the board, to advise it on compliance 
with the organisation’s constitution, this code, and other statutory or 
regulatory requirements particularly as relating to their position as board 
members, company directors, and/or charity trustees as applicable. 

Y The Director of Finance and Resources holds 
this position. 

B8 Organisations with shareholders who elect the board must review their 
policies for admission to shareholding membership on a regular basis and 
with a view to supporting compliance with this code. 

Y The Policy for the Admission of Shareholders 
was reviewed and approved by Board in May 
2018. 

Section C - Essential functions of the board and chair 

Main requirement   

Each board must be clear about its duties and responsibilities. These must 
be formally recorded and made available for all existing and potential board 
members. Each board must be headed by a skilled chair who is aware of 
his or her duties as leader of the board. 

Y The duties of Board members is set out in the 
Board Member role profile.  The BCT Chair is 
experienced chairperson with extensive 
knowledge and experience of housing regulation 
and governance. 

Provisions regarding the board   

C1 The essential functions of the board must be formally recorded. In 
addition to matters set out in law and in the organisation’s constitution 
these will include as a minimum: 

Y Board’s duties are set out in the BCT Rules. The 
Scheme of Delegations explicitly states the 
matters reserved for Board.   

(1) setting and ensuring compliance with the values, vision, mission and 
strategic objectives of the organisation, ensuring its long-term success; 

Y As above 
 

(2) setting a positive culture, with strong customer focus; Y As above 
 

(3) ensuring that the organisation operates effectively, efficiently and 
economically; 

Y As above 
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Requirements Compliant? Notes and Actions 
(4) providing oversight, direction and constructive challenge to the 
organisation’s chief executive and executives; 

Y As above 
 

(5) the appointment and, if necessary, the dismissal of the chief executive; Y As above 

(6) satisfying itself as to the integrity of financial information, approving 
each year’s budget, business plan and annual accounts prior to publication; 

Y As above 
 

(7) establishing, overseeing and reviewing a framework of delegation and 
systems of internal control; and 

Y As above 
 

(8) establishing and overseeing a risk management framework in order to 
safeguard the assets and reputation of the organisation. 

Y As above 
 

C2 The board must formally record a schedule of those essential functions 
and other significant matters which are specifically reserved for the board’s 
decision and which cannot be delegated. 

Y As above – recorded formally in the Scheme of 
Delegations. 
 

Provisions regarding groups   

C3 The board of a parent organisation in a group structure must ultimately 
have the responsibility and the clear powers to direct and if necessary 
intervene in the governance of its subsidiaries. 

N/A Not applicable to BCT 

C4 The board of the parent organisation must determine how and whether 
this code should apply to each of its subsidiaries. 

N/A Not applicable to BCT 

C5 The constitutional relationship and arrangements between parent and 
each subsidiary must be formally recorded. 

N/A Not applicable to BCT 

C6 The board of the parent organisation must approve the group’s plans 
and budgets, and hold the subsidiary boards accountable for delivery of 
their objectives. 

N/A Not applicable to BCT 

Provisions regarding the chair   

C7 The chair is responsible for leadership of the board, and ensuring its 
effectiveness. The particular duties and responsibilities of the chair must be 
formally recorded. 

N/A The Chair’s duties are set out in the BCT Rules 
and the Scheme of Delegations. 

Section D - Board skills, renewal and review 

Main requirement   

Recruitment to board vacancies must be open and transparent and based 
on the board’s considered view of the skills and attributes required to 
discharge its functions. The board must select or appoint new members 
objectively on merit and must undertake regular appraisals of its members 
and of the board as a whole. 

Y Board has set out a clear basis for Board 
recruitment and applications are advertised and 
open to all eligible candidates.  Board maintains 
a skills matrix to identify gaps that may be filled 
by training or recruitment. 

Provisions regarding renewal   
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Requirements Compliant? Notes and Actions 
D1 Boards must have a strategy for their own renewal which is based on 
an agreed statement of the skills, qualifications and attributes required, and 
balances the need for experienced members with that for new thinking and 
independent challenge. This statement should be reviewed regularly, and 
whenever the organisation is about to undertake new activities or become 
exposed to new risks. 

Y BCT Board has considered current gaps in its 
Skills and Experience. Recruitment to the Board 
seeks to fill these gaps where possible. 

D2 Maximum tenure must be agreed for all non-executives which must in 
total be nine years or fewer, composed of two or more consecutive terms of 
office. This maximum tenure must apply to all board member service with 
an organisation or its predecessors or its subsidiaries. 

Y As set out in the BCT Rules, 9 years total 
composed of 3 terms of 3 years.  

D3 Where a member comes to the end of an individual term of office and is 
eligible for reappointment, this must be subject to consideration of the 
member’s appraised performance and skills, and to the wider needs of the 
board at that time. 

Y As set out in the BCT Rules. 

D4 A member who has left the board after serving the maximum tenure 
must not be reappointed for at least one full term of office. 

Y As set out in the BCT Rules. 

D5 In considering its composition and renewal the board must have regard 
to the need for a board which includes people from diverse backgrounds 
and with diverse attributes, to help ensure healthy debate and challenge, 
and a range of perspectives. 

Y The Board seeks a wide range of attributes, skills 
and experience – not just traditional technical 
and professional expertise. The Board retains at 
least 3 tenant members to ensure challenge and 
perspectives from local residents. 

Provisions regarding nomination and election   

D6 Where the board members are elected by a wider shareholding 
membership, the organisation must support its shareholders so they can 
play an informed role in the election of board members. 

Y The Chair and Company Secretary advises the 
Shareholders during election of Tenant Board 
Members.  Applications for Board member 
elections are reviewed by the Board. 

D7 Where the organisation’s constitution provides for one or more board 
members to be nominated or directly elected, the organisation must ensure 
that those coming forward bring skills and experience that meet the needs 
of the board, and that they are fully aware in advance of the responsibilities 
that they will undertake. New board members must not be appointed 
without undergoing a due selection and assessment process to establish 
their suitability. 

Y All Board Members must adhere to the Board 
Membership Policy.  All new Board members are 
given a detailed induction including an 
expectation of the time commitment and 
behaviours required. Board Member applications 
are scrutinised by GRC prior to approval by 
Board.   
 

Provisions regarding learning and development   
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Requirements Compliant? Notes and Actions 
D8 So they can discharge their duties all new board members must receive 
a properly resourced induction, and ongoing learning and development 
during their tenure. 

Y All Board members receive an induction and 
continuous training is arranged for the whole 
Board.  Training is reviewed annually following 
the Board Effectiveness Survey and appraisal 
process, to best meet the needs of the Board and 
its members. 

D9 A full and rigorous appraisal process for the individual members of the 
board and its committees, including the chairs, must be carried out at least 
every two years. 

Y The Chair carries out annual appraisals and 
reports back to Board on the findings (July 2020). 

Provisions regarding board payment   

D10 If the organisation is paying board members it must ensure that it has 
an objective mechanism for establishing payment levels. This will normally 
be the responsibility of a committee responsible for remuneration, using 
independent advice and benchmarking as required. 

Y BCT introduced median remuneration levels in 
2019 after consideration of an independent 
report which set out the benefits and 
recommended a level of Board remuneration 
benchmarked to the sector. 

D11 Payment to non-executive board members must be:   

(1) permitted by law and by the organisation’s own constitution; Y  Yes. 

(2) in the best interests of the organisation; Y  Yes, as considered by the Board in conjunction 
with independent advice. 

(3) reasonable and proportionate to the organisation’s size,  complexity and 
resources; 

Y  Yes. The remuneration levels are benchmarked 
to similar organisations in the sector. 

(4) linked to the carrying out of the specified duties of the post, against 
which performance must be reviewed; and 

Y  Yes, Chair and Committee Chairs receive higher 
levels of remuneration. 

(5) fully disclosed on a named basis in the organisation’s annual financial 
statements. 

Y  Yes – the directors’ remuneration note to the 
accounts has been expanded to detail the 
payments to all Board members. 

Section E – Conduct of board and committee business 

Main requirement   

The board must act effectively, making clear decisions based on timely and 
accurate information. Committees may be established where the board 
determines that they will provide expertise and enable it to deliver effective 
governance and manage risk. 

Y Board has reviewed its arrangements fully during 
2017-18 and implemented decisions in May 2018 
regarding Committee structure and 
responsibilities. 
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Requirements Compliant? Notes and Actions 
 
 

Provisions relating to the board   

E1 The board must have formally recorded terms of reference to ensure 
that its conduct is transparent, effective and in the interests of the 
organisation. 

Y These are set out in the BCT Rules. The Scheme 
of Delegations and the Board Standing Orders. 

E2 Board and committee meetings should, wherever possible, be based on 
full agendas and clearly presented and accurate documents circulated to 
members well in advance of meetings. Decisions and the main reasons for 
them must be recorded in the meeting minutes. 

Y BCT minutes and reports meet this requirement. 

E3 Urgent decisions between board meetings must be taken in accordance 
with proper, formally recorded and predetermined arrangements. 

Y BCT Scheme of Delegations sets out the process 
for urgent decisions. 

E4 All boards and committees must consider their effectiveness annually 
and how they conduct their business, including: 

  

(1) their governing instruments, delegations, regulations, standing orders, 
structures, systems and other formal documentation; 

Y These documents are review each year. 

(2) the timing and frequency of meetings; Y This is reviewed as part of the Board standing 
orders. 

(3) the format of their agendas, papers, minutes and communications; Y This will be reviewed following the Board 
effectiveness survey and Board member 
appraisals. 

(4) their collective performance as a decision-making body; and Y As part of the annual effectiveness review carried 
out in April 2020. 

(5) their compliance with this code and their legal duties. Y As part of this review. 

There must be a formal review of these matters at least every three years, 
to ensure best practice, and that documentation is compliant with the latest 
legislation and regulations. 

Y As part of the Governance review 2018 

Provisions relating to committees   

E5 The chair of the board must not chair the committee responsible for 
remuneration, nor that responsible for audit. 

Y The Chair does not Chair these Committees. 

E6 Paid staff of an organisation must not be members of the committees 
responsible for nominations, remuneration, audit or risk. 

Y There are no employees as members as 
Committees. 

E7 Each committee must have formally recorded terms of reference 
approved by the board, and must report regularly to the board on its work 
and the exercise of any delegated authority it has been given. 

Y ToR are in place for each Committee, minutes 
are made available to Board for each Committee 
and an annual report from each Committee Chair 
is received by the Board. 

11
. A

pp
en

di
x 

B

Page 52 of 112



Requirements Compliant? Notes and Actions 
Section F – Audit and risk 

Main requirement   

The board must establish a formal and transparent arrangement for 
considering how the organisation ensures financial viability, maintains a 
sound system of internal controls, manages risk and maintains an 
appropriate relationship with its auditors. 

Y Board has approved risk management, stress-
testing, and internal controls frameworks.  Audit 
and Risk Committee approves the Internal Audit 
Plan.  

Provisions relating to audit   

F1 There must be effective internal controls and appropriate systems for 
business assurance, so that the board can have confidence in the 
information it receives. 

Y  
Board regularly reviews its key policies and these 
are tested by a programme of internal audits 
each year. 
 

F2 The organisation’s external auditors must be independent and effective. Y Evidenced by the statement of audit 
independence that is considered by Board. 

F3 All but small non-developing organisations must have a committee 
primarily responsible for audit, and arrangements for an effective internal 
audit function. Other organisations must make effective arrangements for 
discharging these functions. 

Y Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) has a focus on 
audit, have appointed an internal audit team and 
agreed an audit plan. 

F4 The committee responsible for audit must bring independent scrutiny 
and challenge to provide the board with assurance, and exercise oversight 
of the internal and external audit functions. 

Y ARC is responsible for IA and EA oversight.  
ARC independently manages risk and 
assurance, as evidenced in the Terms of 
Reference. 

F5 The committee responsible for audit must meet regularly and its 
minutes must be available to all members of the board. The reasons for the 
decisions taken must be recorded in the minutes and presented to the 
board for noting or endorsement. 

Y ARC meets quarterly and detailed minutes are 
made available to Board.  

F6 The committee must be able to meet with the external auditors without 
executives or other paid staff being present at least once a year. 

Y Provision for this is made in the Terms of 
Reference of the Committee. 

F7 The chair of the committee responsible for audit must either be a 
member of the board or have clear arrangements for reporting to the board. 

Y Yes, a member of the Board. 

F8 The voting members of the committee responsible for audit must not 
include the chair of the board or any executives. 

Y The Chair attends ARC but is not a voting 
member. 

Provisions relating to risk   

F9 The board must identify and regularly review the individual and 
combined material risks faced by the organisation and make plans and 
strategies to mitigate and manage them effectively. 

Y The Board considers strategic risks quarterly 
including recommendations from ARC.  Board 
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Requirements Compliant? Notes and Actions 
participates in an annual risk workshop to focus 
on risk in detail. 

F10 The board must retain overall responsibility for risk management, and 
determine the organisation’s tolerance of risk. The board may delegate the 
detailed scrutiny and evaluation of risk to the committee responsible for 
audit, or to another committee. 

Y Board approves the risk appetite statement and 
overall responsibility for risk.  Detailed scrutiny is 
delegated to ARC. 

Section G – The chief executive 

Main requirement   

There must be clear working arrangements between the board and the 
chief executive and clear delegation of authority. 

Y These are set out in the BCT 7 guiding principles 
and the Scheme of Delegations. 

Provisions   

G1 The chief executive must be clear about the essential duties of the role 
and have clarity over his or her legal responsibilities, delegated authority 
and relationship with the board. 

Y The duties are set out in the CE’s job description, 
and the Scheme of Delegations.  Reinforced 
through meetings with the Chair. 

G2 Like all other employees, the chief executive must have a written and 
signed contract of employment; the board must consider whether it should 
be reviewed at least every three years. 

Y Contract in place.   

G3 Periods of notice of more than six months and other provisions for 
material payments to be made or benefits granted in the event of the 
contract being terminated must be specifically approved by the board with 
the reasons for the decision clearly minuted. 

Y Period of notice is 3 months.  No provisions for 
material severance payments exist. 

G4 The board must delegate to a committee responsibilities that include 
oversight of the appraisal of the chief executive and making a 
recommendation to the board on the chief executive’s remuneration. The 
committee must not include any executive members of the board. 

Y GRC recommend to Board the salaries of CE 
and Chair. 

G5 The chief executive’s remuneration must be disclosed in the annual 
financial statements in accordance with the applicable Statement of 
Recommended Practice (SORP). 

Y Included in the notes to the accounts. 

Section H – Conduct, probity and openness 

Main requirement   

Organisations must maintain, and be seen to maintain, the highest ethical 
standards of probity and conduct. Boards must operate in an open and 
transparent manner, having dialogue with and accountability to tenants and 
other key stakeholders. 

Y As set out in the Board Membership Policy and 
the Code of Conduct. 

Provisions relating to probity and conduct   
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Requirements Compliant? Notes and Actions 
H1 Board membership entails a particular responsibility to avoid any 
suggestion of impropriety. Matters such as conflicts of interest, or 
acceptance of gifts or hospitality, are particularly sensitive. Boards must 
adopt and comply with a code of conduct such as the 
Federation’s Code of conduct 2012. 

Y Board members record gifts and hospitality and 
register their interests.  The Code of Conduct for 
reinforces expectations. 

H2 Boards must consider any potential conflicts of interest and adopt 
appropriate policies and procedures for their declaration and management. 
All conflicts must be dealt with in a way which upholds the organisation’s 
reputation, and reflects, as applicable: 

Y Provisions for management of conflicts of interest 
are set out in the BCT Rules.  Board members 
are required to maintain a register of interests. 

(1) the organisation’s own constitution; Y  

(2) charity law; N/A Not applicable 

(3) The Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, 
concerning 
transactions and dealings with members and committee members; and 

Y  

(4) The Companies Act 2006, concerning how conflicts (of interest, loyalty 
or duty) are to be declared and managed. 

N/A Not applicable to BCT. 

H3 Where conflicts of personal interest arise these must be recorded and, 
if material, the individual concerned must be excluded from the discussion 
or decision by a resolution of the non-conflicted members present. 

Y There is a standing agenda item for this purpose. 

H4 In the case of a fundamental or ongoing material conflict the board must 
consider and determine whether the person concerned should cease to be 
a board member. 

Y This situation has not arisen at BCT. 

Provisions relating to groups   

H5 Where there are persons who are members of more than one board in 
a group, there must be formal arrangements to ensure that if there are any 
actual or potential conflicts of interest, these are identified and managed. 

N/A Not applicable to BCT. 

Provisions relating to openness   

H6 The board must publish an annual report of the organisation’s activities 
and performance. 

Y Annual Report to tenants is published each year. 

H7 The organisation must have in place a strategy for regularly 
communicating information about its work to its shareholders and 
stakeholders, and ascertaining their views. In doing so, it must have regard 
to the communication needs of the diverse groups and communities it 
serves. 

Y BCT reports to its tenants and shareholders 
through the regular Newsletter and an Annual 
report which are overseen by a tenants 
communication group.  Board reports are 
published on the BCT website, as are corporate 
updates and health and safety information.   BCT 
obtains shareholder views through the Tenant 
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Requirements Compliant? Notes and Actions 
Engagement Framework, and formally through 
the new Customer Scrutiny Committee. 

H8 The organisation must respond in a considered and transparent way to 
requests for information about its work and activities. 

Y BCT maintains a balance between transparency 
appropriate for an organisation with charitable 
purposes, and confidentiality required for a 
commercial organisation. 
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Board 29 July 2020 

 
Title: Approval of Annual Accounts and Value for Money Statement 
 
Report By: James Clifford, Director of Finance and Resources  
 
FOR DECISION 
 
Business Implications 

Risk The Annual Accounts have been audited by independent external auditors to 
confirm they give a true and fair view of the BCT financial performance and 
its financial position at 31 March 2020, and that they have been properly 
prepared.  

Financial and Value for Money The Annual Accounts set out BCT’s financial performance in 2019-20 It also 
includes the Value for Money Statement.  

People/Consultation The reports will be laid before Shareholders after being approved by Board.  
They will be published and summarised in the Annual Report to Tenants. 

Equality and Diversity No direct consequences for equality and diversity. 

Environment Implications Environmental improvement works are included in capital expenditure 
approved by Board.   

Contractor Implications The Annual Accounts are used by suppliers and customers to judge BCT’s 
creditworthiness.  

 
1. Executive Summary 

 
1.1 It is a statutory requirement for BCT to produce Annual Accounts and have them audited 

by an independent external auditor.  The audit is complete and the results have been 
scrutinised by the Audit and Risk Committee (A&RC).  The audit report is “clean” with no 
major errors found.  The Committee have made a wording change in the accounts in 
relation to the partnership negotiations.  Signing will be delayed until after the September 
meetings so that the most accurate picture can be given about partnership progress.  The 
Board is asked to approve and confirm a number of items. 
 

1.2 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix Documents  
 

A BCT Annual Accounts 2019-20  

B Statement of Internal Controls 2020 

C Letter of Representation  
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 The Board is recommended to; 

 Approve the 2019-20 Annual Accounts (Appendix A) and agree for the Chair, 
Company Secretary and another Board Member to sign the accounts on the Board’s 
behalf; 

 Approve the Statement of Internal Control (Appendix B); 

 Approve the Letter of Representation (Appendix C); 

 Confirm the independence of the External Auditors; and  
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 Confirm that the value for money (VfM) Statement in the Strategic Report meets the 
requirements of the VfM Standard. 

 
3. Background Information 

 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The approval process for the Annual Accounts is summarised as follows: 
 

Audit and Risk Committee approves terms of Audit and 
accounting policies.  
BCT employees produce Annual Accounts based on 
activity up to 31 March 2020.  

External Audit (Tait Walker) reviews Annual Accounts 
and produce Audit Report  

Audit and Risk Committee scrutinises the Annual 
Accounts and Audit Report in detail with External Audit 
team in attendance. A&RC make a recommendation to 
Board. 

 

Board to approve the Annual Accounts. CURRENT 
STAGE 

The Annual Accounts are laid before the BCT 
Shareholders at the AGM. 

 

The Annual Accounts are submitted to regulators and 
funders as required. 

 

  
4. Annual Accounts 

 
4.1 The Annual Accounts are shown at Appendix A available on VBR and comprise: 

 The Chair’s report 

 The Strategic report (including the Value for Money statement) 

 The Auditors opinion 

 The Financial Statements 

 Notes to the financial statements 
 

4.2 
 
4.2.1 

The Chair’s Report 
 
The Chair’s Report is an overview of the changes to the operating and regulatory 
environment and how BCT has responded during year.  The report highlights the 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the health and safety work that BCT has 
undertaken, and the strong operational performance in the year.   
 

4.2.2 The strategy consultation is outlined in brief, setting out the need for new investment on 
the Estate. 
 

4.3 The Strategic Report (including the Value for Money statement) 
 

4.3.1 The Strategic Report is a factual run through of BCT’s financial and operational 
performance.  The report contains details of BCT’s risk and governance arrangements 
and the Value for Money Statement. 
 

4.3.2 The Value for Money Standard from 2018 requires registered providers to: 
  “publish evidence in the statutory accounts to enable stakeholders to understand the 

provider’s:  
a. performance against its own value for money targets and any metrics set out by 
the regulator, and how that performance compares to peers  
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b. measurable plans to address any areas of underperformance, including clearly 
stating any areas where improvements would not be appropriate and the rationale 
for this.” 
 

4.3.3 The Board is asked to agree that the Value for Money statement meets the requirements 
of the standard. 
 

4.4 
 
4.4.1 

The Auditors’ opinion 
 
The auditors set out their independent opinion of whether the annual accounts represent 
a true and fair view of the state of BCT’s financial affairs and have been prepared in 
accordance with the relevant accounting standards.   
 

4.5 The Financial Statements 
 

4.5.1 The Comprehensive Income Statement shows the income and expenditure for BCT 
during 2019-20.  The Statement of Financial Position (balance sheet) shows BCT’s 
assets and liabilities at 31 March 2020.  The Statement of Cash Flows explains the 
movement in BCT’s bank balance during the year in terms operating, investing and 
financing activities.  The Statement of Changes in Reserves shows the changes to the 
income and expenditure reserve and shareholder capital. 
 

4.6 Notes to the financial statements 
 

4.6.1 The notes give the reader further detail and context to the financial statements, including 
the accounting policies that BCT has adopted in the preparation of its accounts.  There 
has been no change to BCT’s accounting policies from the previous year. 
 

5.  Audit and Risk Committee 
 

5.1 The A&RC met on 21 July 2020 to scrutinise the Annual Accounts in detail. 
 

5.2 MHA Tait Walker were invited to update A&RC on their findings during the Audit and the 
Committee had the opportunity to question the Director of Finance and Audit team on 
matters in detail. 
 

5.3 Disclosure of Partnership negotiations 
 

5.3.1 The Committee discussed how best to describe the ongoing partnership negotiations in 
the annual accounts.  It was agreed that the following wording should be added to the 
Chair’s report to describe the progress so far. 
 

5.3.2 
 
 

“In early 2020, the Board concluded that partnership with another housing association 
was the best means to achieve BCT’s strategy and objectives for 2025.  The Board 
developed a Partnership Prospectus for a potential partner to meet, including financial 
strength to deliver the transformational investment required, well governed with shared 
values, and being a local registered provider of social housing. 
 
In March 2020, the BCT Board approved the beginning of formal, exclusive negotiations 
with another housing provider, to bring about a partnership to benefit its tenants and the 
area.” 

5.3.3 Furthermore, it was agreed that the accounts will be finalised and signed in late 
September after the outcome of the partnership business plan approval Board meetings 
is known. 
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5.3.4 Should the partnership business case be approved by both Boards in September, then 
the following wording will be added to the post balance sheet notes in the accounts on 
page 27 and 57 (subject to confirmation at the time). 
  

5.3.5 “In September 2020, BCT Board and (Name of Housing Association) Board approved an 
outline business case to bring about a merger of BCT and (Name of Housing Association) 
by a transfer of engagements.  Subject to the necessary diligence and approvals, 
completion will take place in April 2021.  At this point all BCT assets, liabilities, operations 
and contractual positions will transfer to (Name of Housing Association).” 
 

5.4 MHA Tait Walker made other minor observations to the Committee, but found no issues 
of concern in the accounts. 
 

5.5 MHA Tait Walker’s Audit Highlights Memorandum stated their independence during the 
audit.  The Board is asked to confirm this statement. 
 

5.6 Having reviewed the 2019-20 Annual Accounts in detail, A&RC recommends that they 
should be approved by the Board. 

 
6. Internal Control 

 
6.1 The Strategic Report includes on page 11 a statement verifying the strength of the 

internal controls at BCT.   
 

6.2 During the year A&RC has managed risk and the internal audit service on behalf of the 
Board.  The system of internal controls and its management has improved during the 
year, and seven internal audits have been completed, all returning a rating of reasonable 
or substantial assurance.   
 

6.3 The Board is asked to approve the Internal Control Statement for 2020 and agree the 
wording in the accounts.  The Internal Control Statement is set out at Appendix B. 
 

7.  Next Steps 
 

7.1 The following steps are required to complete the approval of the annual accounts: 

 MHA Tait Walker requires some final confirmations: 
o The signed letter of representation from the Board (Appendix C) to confirm 

directly particular items in the Accounts; and 
o A recent forecast of cash flows to prove that BCT is a going concern. 

 Board members and the partner at MHA Tait Walker will sign the accounts, following 
the special board meetings in September. 

 The accounts will be formally laid before shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. 

 The accounts will be submitted to the Regulator of Social Housing, Yorkshire Building 
Society and the Financial Conduct Authority. 

 
8. Contact Officer 

 
8.1 If you have any questions about this report that you would like clarifying before the 

meeting, you can contact James Clifford by telephone on 0191 223 8788 or email 
james.clifford@bykerct.co.uk  
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BCT Board’s Internal Controls and Assurance Statement 2020 

 

The Board affirms its ultimate responsibility for ensuring that BCT has in place a system of 

controls that is appropriate to the business environment in which it operates. These controls are 

designed to give reasonable assurance with respect to: 

 the reliability of financial information used within the Company or for publication; 

 the maintenance of proper accounting records; and 

 the safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposal. 

 

It is a matter reserved for the Board to establish, oversee and review a framework of delegation 

and systems of internal control.  The Board accepts that such systems can only provide 

reasonable and not absolute assurance against material financial misstatement or loss.  

 

Key elements of the system include  

 the Board meet regularly to set the strategic direction of BCT and provide leadership of the 

controls environment;  

 ensuring that formal policies and procedures are in place, including the documentation of 

key systems and rules including the scheme of delegations and financial regulations, which 

allow the monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of BCT’s assets;  

 annual appraisal procedures to maintain standards of performance; 

 forecasts and budgets are prepared which allow the Board and managers to monitor the 

key business risks and financial objectives and progress towards financial plans set for the 

year and over the term of the business plan;  

 regular management accounts are prepared promptly, providing relevant, reliable and up-

to-date financial and other information and significant variances from budgets are 

investigated as appropriate; 

 all significant new initiatives, major commitments and investment projects are subject to 

formal authorisation procedures by the Board following scrutiny by the Board committees if 

appropriate; 

 the Board reviews reports from internal auditors, from the external auditors and from its own 

Audit and Risk Committee to provide reasonable independent assurance that control 

procedures are in place and are being followed.  

 Strategic Risks are identified, managed, reported and reviewed.  This process is managed 

by the Audit and Risk Committee and reviewed by Board; and  

 formal procedures have been established for instituting appropriate action to correct 

weaknesses identified from the above reports. 
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Byker Community Trust Limited Registered in England and Wales No: 08385555 
Registered Office: 17 Raby Cross, Byker, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE6 2FF 

   
Byker Community Trust Limited 

 17 Raby Cross 
 Byker 

 Newcastle upon Tyne 
 NE6 2FF 

  Date: 13 July 2020 
  Your ref: SMJB/DR/1002922 

 
MHA Tait Walker  
Bulman House 
Regent Centre 
Gosforth 
Newcastle upon Tyne 
NE3 3LS 
 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
During the course of your audit of our financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2020, the 
following representations were made to you by the Board of Management. 
 
1. We acknowledge as members of the Board of Management under the Co-operative and 

Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 for preparing financial statements that give a true and fair 
view and for making accurate representations to you as auditors. 

 
2. We confirm that all accounting records have been made available to you for the purpose of your 

audit in accordance with your terms of engagement, and that all transactions undertaken by the 
registered society have been properly reflected and recorded in the accounting records. All other 
records and related information, including minutes of all committee members’ meetings, had 
been made available to you. We have given you unrestricted access to persons within the 
registered society in order to obtain audit evidence and have provided any additional information 
that you have requested for the purposes of your audit. 

 
3. We confirm that we have acknowledged our responsibility for the design and implementation of 

internal control systems to prevent and detect fraud. We have disclosed to you the results of our 
risk assessment that the financial statements may be misstated as a result of fraud. There have 
been no irregularities (or allegations of irregularities) involving management, employees who 
have a significant role in internal control or others that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

 
4. We confirm that the registered society had no liabilities or contingent liabilities other than those 

disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
5. We confirm that there had been no events since the balance sheet date which required 

disclosing or which would materially affect the amounts in the financial statements, other than 
those already disclosed or included in the financial statements. 

 
6. We confirm that the registered society has had at no time during the year, any arrangement, 

transaction or agreement to provide advances or credit for directors, nor to guarantee or provide 
security for such matters. 

 
Board's remuneration is as recorded in the registered society’s records and that there are no 
other transactions that require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements. 
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Byker Community Trust Limited Registered in England and Wales No: 08385555 
Registered Office: 17 Raby Cross, Byker, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE6 2FF 

7. We confirm that we are aware that a related party of the registered society is a person or 
organisation which either directly or indirectly controls, has joint control of, or significantly 
influences the registered society or vice versa and as a result will include: members, (as a guide 
with more than 20% of the voting rights), directors, other key management, close family and 
other business interests of the previous.  

8.    We confirm that we have disclosed to you all related party relationships and transactions relevant 
to the registered society and that we are not aware of any further related party matters that 
require disclosure. 

 
9. We confirm that the registered society has not contracted for any capital expenditure other than 

as disclosed in the financial statements. 
 
10. We confirm that we are not aware of any possible or actual instance of non-compliance with 

those laws and regulations which provide a legal framework within which the registered society 
conducts its business and which are central to the registered society's ability to conduct its 
business. 

 
11. We confirm that, having assessed the ability of the registered society to trade for the twelve 

months following the date of the director's approval of the financial statements, in our opinion the 
registered society is a going concern. 

 
12. We confirm that significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including 

those measured at fair value, are reasonable. 
 
13. We agree the adjusting journals made within the financial statements. We confirm that in our 

opinion the effects of unadjusted misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in 
aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole.  

14. We understand that companies are associated for tax purposes if they are under the control of 
the same person or persons. We also understand that for this purpose a person might be treated 
as one and the same person as: a close relative; a business partner; a trustee of a settlement of 
which the person or a relative was the settlor; and any registered society in which any of these is 
also a shareholder. 

 We confirm that there are no companies associated with the registered society for tax purposes. 

15. We confirm the following specific representations: 

 • The bad debt provision of £952,576 is an accurate representation of the doubtful debts. 
 
 • The debtors on payment plans (which total £218,727) are not shown at their net present value 

as this is considered to be immaterial, especially given that they have been fully provided for. 
 
 • The contracted and committed expenditure of £5,002,091, and expenditure authorised but not 

yet contracted for of £706,610, is accurately disclosed within the financial statements. 
 
 • The valuation report dated 11 May 2017 by Aon Hewitt is the most up to date and accurate 

valuation of the Indemnity Bond (£179,200). 
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Byker Community Trust Limited Registered in England and Wales No: 08385555 
Registered Office: 17 Raby Cross, Byker, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE6 2FF 

16. We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as auditors 
and confirm that: 

 
 • so far as the Board of Management is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which 

you as auditors are unaware, and 
 

• the Board of Management has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Board of 
Management to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that 
you are aware of that information. 

 
We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and 
staff with relevant knowledge and expertise (and, where appropriate of supporting documentation) 
sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make these representations to you and that to the 
best of our knowledge and belief they accurately reflect the representations made to you by the Board 
of Management during the course of your audit. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
………………….. 
Date    
 
 
Signed on behalf of the Board of Management 
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Board 29 July 2020  

 
Title: Chief Executive’s Progress Report  
 
Report By: Jill Haley, Chief Executive (CE)  
 
FOR INFORMATION  
 
1. 

 
Recommendations 
 

1.1 
 

The Board is recommended to consider and note the content of the report. 

2. Synopsis 
 

2.1 This report aims to bring Board members an update of information and progress since 
the last meeting, as well as any relevant, regional or national developments. 
 

3. Actions from last Board meeting 
 

3.1 
 

Actions from the minutes of the meeting of 22 May 2020 were reported separately in an 
email to Board on 19 June 2020. Only one action is outstanding:  

 Minute 10.1 - Amanda Senior stated that she had provided a briefing to Pat Ritchie 
(Chief Executive at NCC) and was waiting for a reply, she agreed to contact Pat 
Ritchie again to confirm that she has received the communication from the Chair and 
that there were no outstanding issues. 

Amanda Senior to provide an update at the Board meeting.  
 

4. Delegated Decisions  
 

4.1 There have been no delegated decisions since the last Board meeting on 22 May 2020. 
 

5. Corporate Plan Action Plan (CPAP) 2020/21 - Quarter 1  
 

5.1 The CPAP for 2020/21 including Q1 updates is attached at Appendix A and members 
can also view the full CPAP either in Virtual Board Room (VBR) or on the BCT website.  
 

6. 
 

Karbon Solutions Ltd (KSL) – Cost Sharing Partnership Update 
 

6.1 
 
 
 

A KSL Board Meeting took place virtually on 9 July and a copy of the papers from the 
meeting have been uploaded into VBR for information.  The CE will provide a verbal 
overview at the meeting. 
 

6.2 BCT Executive Team has worked in partnership with key staff from Karbon Homes to 
carry out the 2020 annual review of each Service Level Agreement (SLA), delivered 
through the cost sharing partnership with KSL. The review has ensured that service 
descriptions have been updated, reflecting any minor changes in operational functions, 
agreed key performance indicators and the BCT budgets for 2020/21. 
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7. Board Effectiveness Survey and 2020 Appraisals 
 

7.1 In April, Board members and Executive Team were invited to participate in the annual 
survey of the Board’s Effectiveness. 
 

7.2 During May and June the Chair of the Board held individual appraisal meetings with all 
Board Members. The Chairs appraisal was conducted by the Chair of Governance and 
Remuneration Committee (G&RC), the Chair of the Customer Scrutiny Committee 
(CSC) and the CE on 20 July, when finalised a copy of the appraisal document will be 
shared with the rest of the Board. 
 

7.3 Both exercises confirmed the good working relationship between Board and Executive 
Team, and a continuing improvement in the Board’s effectiveness. 
 

7.4 In the survey and appraisal, Board members highlighted areas to improve the 
effectiveness of meetings, which were: 

 A training programme to include 
o Governance, Regulation, and Finance; and 
o Housing management and BCT’s Tenant Engagement Framework. 

 A review of the Board report template to include an executive summary. 
 

7.5 The suggestions have been collated in an action plan with regular progress reports to 
the Chair by the CE, until all actions are completed.  
 

8. 
 

Regulator of Social Housing (RSH) 
 

8.1 Value for Money (VfM) Metrics – Guidance Note June 2020  

 
8.1.1 In April 2018, the RSH introduced a new VfM Standard and accompanying Code of 

Practice. The Standard introduced a requirement for providers to publish performance 
against their own VfM targets, and a series of common metrics with which to measure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness set by the RSH. The RSH defined these as seven 
metrics as the most appropriate set of measures to capture performance across the 
sector in a fair and comparable way. 
 

8.1.2 The VfM Standard has been updated for 2020 to update references to the 2020 FVA 

(annual electric accounts).  The changes are minor and have had no impact on the 

figures reported in BCT’s Value for Money statement.  The updated Standard has been 

loaded into VBR. 

 

8.2 RSH General Update and Regulatory Activity 
 

8.2.1 Since the last meeting of the Board, the CE has taken part in several meetings with 
senior RSH staff. The main communications have focused on heath and safety, 
essential service delivery, the results of the Coronavirus Operational Response Survey 
(CORS) and the positive impact that housing providers have had on communities.  The 
value of the housing sector during the Covid-19 pandemic has been positively 
recognised by the RSH and by Government. 
 

8.2.2 A main legacy of the Grenfell tragedy three years on, is a landlord’s relationship with its 
tenants. While the housing sector awaits the Government White Paper (a policy 
document setting out proposals for future legislation), due to be published by the end of 
the year, the RSH has confirmed a further commitment to improved consumer 
regulation. During the Covid-19 pandemic it has been encouraging to see more housing 
organisations engaging, listening to tenants, and moving towards improved transparency 
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and scrutiny. The RSH has reconfirmed the sector’s purpose and why we exist to look 
after the most vulnerable in society. A renewed emphasis of listening to tenants and 
learning from their complaints was reinforced by the Housing Ombudsman, who has 
introduced a new ‘Code for Complaint Handling’ and this subject is covered further down 
in the report.  
 

8.2.3 It is refreshing to hear all of this because BCT have always made sure that our tenants 
are part our organisational DNA and that they play a key and meaningful role in 
informing good governance, investment, performance management and ultimately value 
for money.  BCT already knows and has proof that having tenants at the heart of 
customer service and satisfaction is not only the right thing to do for good governance 
but it also improves our bottom line and therefore makes great sense to do so. 
 

8.2.4 BCT’s 2025 strategy is built around the very fact that we have listened and are now 
acting on what our tenants have told us, and in doing so protecting their voice and 
influence over their homes and the area. 
 

8.2.5 Understandably, good risk management when emerging from the lockdown situation has 
been a dominant topic for the RSH. With a stark reminder that we are all only short-term 
custodians of a long-term business, so our operational recovery and resilience must be 
demonstrated in our new business plans and robust stress testing.  
 

8.2.6 In a letter to CEs on 1 July, the RSH requested that up-to-date business plans and 
financial forecast returns (FFRs) be submitted to them by 30 September, delayed from 
30 June. They will be used to build a picture of the impact of Covid-19 on individual 
providers and on the sector. 
 

8.2.7 FFRs will need to take into account new spending commitments on decarbonisation and 
fire safety (already expected to put pressure on existing plans). Undoubtably some 
organisations will be financially weaker as a result of the crisis, with arrears rates going 
up, prices going up, and that may well feed through into their viability grades. The RSH 
suggested more V2 ratings would be imminent. All of the additional risks incurred by 
Covid-19 reinforce the strategic direction that BCT has taken. 
 

8.2.8 BCT’s Business Plan and FFR are an accurate reflection of what we intend to do, based 
on our stock condition survey information and take into account fire and building safety 
or energy efficiency work, as well as the impact of Covid-19. 
 

8.2.9 The RSH has confirmed that Annual Accounts and Value for Money statements need to 
be submitted by the end of the calendar year, although the RSH has encouraged 
organisations to provide them as soon as they are ready. 
 

8.2.10 BCT is on track to complete its Annual Accounts and Value for Money Statement to the 

usual timescales and is aiming to submit them to RSH by the end of September 

following the Annual General Meeting.  

 

8.2.11 The RSH has confirmed the restart of ‘In-depth Assessments’ over the summer, which 

were paused on 18 March because of the pandemic.  

 

9. Housing Ombudsman Service – Complaint Handling Code 

 

9.1 In July the Housing Ombudsman published a new complaint handling code for housing 

organisations. A copy of the Code can be found in the BCT VBR.  
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9.2 The purpose of the Code is to enable landlords to resolve complaints raised by their 

residents quickly and to use the learning from complaints to drive service improvements.  

Every landlord must self-assess against the Code on a comply and explain basis. Non-

compliance could result in the Ombudsman issuing complaint handling failure orders. 

Separate guidance on these orders has also been published by the Ombudsman.  

 

9.3 The Code will act as a clear guide for residents, setting out what they can expect from 

their landlord when they complain. The requirements in the Code also provide residents 

with information about how to make a complaint and how to progress it through the 

landlord’s internal complaints procedure. The Code supports the RSH guidance ensuring 

that a landlord’s approach to complaints is clear, simple and accessible, it ensures that 

complaints are resolved promptly, politely and fairly. 

 

9.4 The Ombudsman expects landlords to carry out regular self-assessments against the 

Code and to take appropriate action to ensure all complaint handling is in line with it. The 

first self-assessment must be completed by 31 December 2020, reported to Board 

Members and published. The Ombudsman may request sight of the assessment and 

evidence which supports it. A copy of the self-assessment form is also included with the 

Ombudsman’s Code in VBR. 

 

9.5 It is intended that BCT will complete the self-assessment as part of the Customer 

Scrutiny Committee’s annual review of their newly introduced ‘Complaints and 

Compliments Policy and Procedure’ in the Autumn. The results and learning from the 

review will be published on the BCT website and in BCT’s Annual Report to Tenants in 

the Autumn. 

 

10. Government (mini) Budget & July 2020 funding announcements 

 

10.1 The Chancellor, Rishi Sunak’s plan for housing post Covid-19 offers very little for the 

social housing sector. July’s budget was not designed to be as comprehensive as 

previous spring or autumn budgets, its aim was to introduce an emergency package of 

measures in response to the Covid-19 crisis. 

 

10.2 The key announcements for the housing sector made in July were: 
 A £2bn Green Homes Grant, which includes vouchers of up to £5,000 per 

household for partial retrofitting costs that homeowners and landlords can apply for.  
The scheme will be launched in September 2020. 

 A £50m pilot on the decarbonisation of social housing. This will be available in 
2020/21 in an attempt to start a national retrofitting programme for social housing 
tenants.  This pilot will only stretch to cover the very worst performing social housing 
stock, benefiting only a fraction of the UK’s social housing tenants. 

 A comprehensive package of support for young people and others facing 
unemployment. This includes a £2bn ‘kickstart scheme’, which will pay employers to 
create new jobs for young people at risk of unemployment, and a boost in funding for 
work-search, skills and apprenticeships.  

 Affordable Homes Programme AHP.  The government announced an AHP totalling 

£12.2bn of grant funding from 2021/22 across England. The funding will be available 

over five years (the Chancellor corrected his original announcement of eight years). 

 Right to Shared Ownership as part of the AHP. Government announced its 

intention to introduce a Right to Shared Ownership (RtSO), as a condition of grant, 

under the new AHP.  It will apply to new homes with tenants able to purchase a 

minimum first share (“tranche”) of 10%. This will result in the loss of social housing 
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and a potential impact on security values for housing organisations. A big risk of 

introducing such a policy at this time, is that it will disincentivise social housing 

organisations from building new homes for rent, thus impacting on the supply and 

development of new homes. 

 

10.3 In summary, there is not much on offer for social housing providers at a time when more 

long term funding, from the Government is needed to kickstart a building boom of social 

homes on the scale which the country desperately needs. This is the only way to create 

enough affordable homes, rebuild left behind communities and create local jobs, at the 

same time as providing young people access to training and employment support. 

 

11. BCT’s Summer Activity Programme 

 

11.1 A four-week period of activities including yoga and stone painting, story-telling with 
activity packs, woodwork, clay and gardening workshops will be delivered as part of the 
Best Summer Ever 2020. In addition, a mobile music studio and dancing, a bike repair 
workshop that includes a bike giveaway, jumps and ramps, disco bingo, football 
coaching, multi sports and photography workshops will also be delivered during August. 
This is being co-ordinated by the Thriving Byker Partnership (TBP) who are aiming to 
reach 60-80 young people per day. The programme will be delivered from four sites 
including Ayton Park, St Michael’s Church, Priory Green and Dunn Terrace. 
 

11.2 
 

In addition to the above, BCT will also be delivering additional activities for BCT tenant’s 
including:  

 A Summer Picnic event that will be held on 20, 21, 24 & 25 Aug. This event will 

provide the essentials for a picnic that tenant’s will be able to obtain from BCT 

collection points. This event will be split over the four days and cover four areas of 

the Estate in order to safely manage numbers. The event will be advertised in the 

summer edition of Byker News and will require tenants to register with BCT.  

 An ice-cream van visit on 27 & 28 Aug. The ice-cream van will visit across the two 

days for four hours per day. A voucher to access the ice-cream van will be included 

the summer edition of Byker News.  

 The Byker Bake Off stottie making competition will provide tenants with the 

necessary ingredients to make a stottie and photographic entries will be submitted. 

Packs will be available for distribution on 20, 21 24 & 25 Aug. 

 The Byker in Bloom garden competition is being held in conjunction with NCC. The 

competition will be judged on Wednesday 19 Aug. 

 BCT will also provide play equipment and activity packs to support the Best Summer 

Ever programme such as footballs, hula-hops, frisbee’s and skipping ropes.   

 

12. Contact Officer  
 

12.1 If you have any questions about this report that you would like clarifying before the 
meeting, you can contact Jill Haley by telephone on 0191 290 3910 or email 
jill.haley@bykerct.co.uk 
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OBJECTIVE ACTIVITY TIME FRAME STAFF RESPONSIBLE IMPACT / OUTCOMES STATUS 

MAKING BYKER AN ESTATE OF CHOICE 
 

1. Secure a 
potential partner 
who will meet 
BCT’s desired 
characteristics  

 

1.1 Achieve a partnership 
agreement which will 
deliver BCT’s beyond 2020 
strategy and: 
a. Invest in Decent 

Homes Plus 
b. Invest in much needed 

new homes in Byker 
c. Invest in 

transformation of the 
Environment 

d. Make further 
improvements to the 
District Heating 
System to reduce 
costs, carbon 
emissions and improve 
efficiency 

e. Invest in 
people/communities   

f. Demonstrate shared 
values and 
understanding of 
BCT’s purpose 

March 2021 Chief Executive/  

Director of Operations/ 

Director of Property/  

Director of Finance 

 

• Customer investment priorities 
in homes and the environment 
will be met  

• Much needed new homes will 
be developed to meet the 
needs of our customers  

• BCT properties will become 
more energy efficient and 
cheaper to run 

• People will have greater access 
to advice, training and 
employment opportunities  

• Transformational investment in 
homes and environment will 
help relaunch Byker as an 
Estate of choice and increase 
its desirability, help towards 
tenancy sustainability, reduce 
tenancy turnover and all of the 
associated costs 

Q1  

• BCT entered discussions 
with KH about a partnership 
to deliver BCT’s vision and 
objectives for the Estate for 
2025. 

• Work on the development of 
the business case is 
progressing.  A risk map 
has been developed and 
due diligence on BCT has 
commenced. 

• An outline business case 
will be presented to KH and 
BCT board in September 
2020.  This will set out the 
main parameters of the 
partnership agreement and 
the benefits that will accrue 
for BCT customers.  A 
community pledge will be 
developed for consultation 
with BCT tenants. 

• In July initial consultation 
has taken place with 
shareholders and members 
of the customer scrutiny 
committee. 

2. Continuing to 
develop BCT’s 
Investment 
Programme and 
complete the 
planned projects 

2.1 District Heating upgrade 
WP3 – Internal upgrade 
works 

December 
2020 

Director of Property • Improve resident’s thermal 
comfort. 2000 homes to be 
completed 

• Improve internal system 
controllability 

• Reduce carbon emissions and 
energy consumption by 5%, 
increasing the efficiency of the 
system 

Q1 

• 1043 properties complete. 

• Work stopped due to CV19 
Government restrictions on 
24/03/2020 and there have 
been no completions during 
Q1.  

• Working with H. Malones & 
Sons on revised risk 
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assessment to resume WP3 
works Q2.  

• Overall operating costs of 
the district heating system 
for 2019/20 reduced by 12.5 
% from 2018/19. 

2.2 Environmental 
improvement projects   

March 2021 Director of Property • To complete phase 1 
environmental health and 
safety works  

• Agree scope of final scheme 

• Contribute to improved STAR 
survey results relating to 
appearance of neighbourhood  

Q1  

• Designs and estimated 
costs nearing completion for 
all elements of the phase 1 
health and safety works.  

• Consultation with NCC 
ongoing with statutory 
consents to commence Q2.  

2.3 Passenger lift replacement 
programme 

May 2020 Director of Property • Complete 13 new lifts 

• Cost savings on responsive 
repairs 

• Improved service reliability and 
customer satisfaction 

Q1 

• Work stopped due to CV19 
Government restrictions on 
27/03/2020 and resumed on 
11/05/2020.  

• 9 out of 13 lifts complete. 

• Revised project completion 
forecast for September 
2020.  

2.4 Roof replacement 
programme  

Nov 2020 Director of Property • Cost savings on responsive 
repairs 

• Increased thermal performance 
of 414 properties 

• Completing external repairs 
and painting at Avondale 
House will improve the 
appearance of the area.  

Q1 

• Work stopped due to CV19 
Government restrictions on 
27/03/2020 and resumed on 
27/04/2020.  

• Reroofing works complete 
to 381 concrete ti-led roofs 
with snagging ongoing. 

• 13 of 33 metal profiled 
properties reroofed with 
snagging ongoing. 

• External repairs and 
painting to Avondale House 
95% complete. 

• Project ahead of 
programme, therefore CV19 
delays will not impact on 
completion date. 
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2.5 Dunn Terrace external 
upgrade  

January 2021 Director of Property • Improve external aesthetics 
and kerb appeal of 145 
properties in the Dunn Terrace 
contract 

• Completing an external 
upgrade including essential 
repairs and painting will 
improve the appearance of the 
area. 

Q1 

• Work stopped due to CV19 
Government restrictions on 
27/03/2020 and resumed on 
11/05/2020.  

• Project 25% complete. 

• Revised project completion 
forecast for March 2021. 

2.6 Bathroom replacement 
programme 

March 2022 Director of Property • Complete bathroom 
installations to 367 BCT 
properties 

• Installation of showers to 
respond to customer feedback 
and improve the amenity of 
BCT properties 

• Cost savings on responsive 
repairs 

• Improve STAR survey results 
relating to condition of 
bathrooms. 

Q1 

• Elvet Construction 
Consultants prepared 
project and delivery plan.  

• Property type surveys 
commenced in voids with 
risk assessment under 
review to commence 
surveys of occupied 
properties Q2.  

• Shower feasibility study 
commenced.  

• Survey arranged in Q2 for a 
proposed pilot property.  

2.7 Kitchen replacement 
programme 

March 2022 Director of Property • Complete kitchen installations 
to 285 BCT properties 

• New kitchens will improve the 
amenity of BCT properties and 
in response to customer 
feedback/investment priorities 

• Cost savings on responsive 
repairs 

• Improved STAR survey results 
relating to condition of kitchens.  

Q1 

• Elvet Construction 
Consultants prepared 
project and delivery plan.  

• Property type surveys 
commenced in voids with 
risk assessment under 
review to commence 
surveys of occupied 
properties Q2.  

2.8 Byker Wall and link blocks 
communal and stairwell 
door replacement 
programme 

January 2021 Director of Property • Improved security and fire 
safety by replacing 254 fire 
doors  

Q1 

• Door replacements included 
in Dunn Terrace external 
upgrade project (see 2.5). 

• 42 doors complete. 

2.9 Tom Collins House (TCH) 
lift upgrade 

July 2020 Director of Property  • Improved service reliability and 
customer satisfaction 

Q1 

• TCH lift upgrades included 
in Passenger Lift 
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• Cost savings on responsive 
repairs 

replacement programme 
(see 2.3). 

• Both TCH lift upgrades 
complete Q1. 

2.10 Byker Wall FRA fire 
breach rectification works 

July 2020 Director of Property • Improved fire safety to 19 
blocks   

• Cost savings on responsive 
repairs 

 

Q1 

• Work stopped due to CV19 
Government restrictions on 
27/03/2020 and pilot 
stairwell works to 
commence on 06/07/2020.  

 2.11 Block communal lighting 
upgrades 

December 
2020 

Director of Property  • Improved VfM and running cost 
of energy efficient lighting to 16 
blocks  

 

2.12 Communal stairwell 
upgrade programme 

September 
2021 

Director of Property • Improve internal aesthetics of 
BCT properties accessed via 
23 stairwells 

  

 2.13 Full review of hobby rooms 
and shops  

December 
2020 

Director of Property  • Improved VfM.  

• Investigate opportunities for 
further conversions into new 
homes. 

Q1 

• Condition surveys complete 
to 75% of hobby rooms. 

• Inspections stopped due to 
CV19 Government 
restrictions on 20/03/20.  

• Surveys will recommence 
as soon as restrictions ease 
and the project completion 
date will be reviewed. 

• Feasibility complete for 
converting 3 commercial 
units into 4 homes for 
affordable rent. Pre-
planning application 
submitted to NCC and 
affordable homes grant 
funding bid submitted to 
Homes England.  

3. Excellent 
customer service 

 
 

3.1 Customer Service 
Excellence Annual Review 

March 2021 
 

Director of Operations  

 
• Driver of continuous 

improvement. 

• Capacity building for service 
delivery. 

Q1  

• CSE logo’s and branding 
now used on BCT email and 
website. 
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• Improved customer focus and 
engagement. 

• Contributing to a thriving Byker 

• Action plan in place to assist 
BCT achieve full compliance 
in all areas of CSE award. 

3.2 2x mystery shopping 
activities for housing 
operations service areas 

March 2021 
 

Director of Operations  

 

• Provide evidence of monitored 
and measured service 
performance 

• Identify any gaps and 
weaknesses in services and 
where improvements can be 
made 

• Identify training needs for staff 

• Improve customer service 

Q1 

• 8 mystery shoppers have 
been recruited and trained. 
The first mystery shopping 
exercise was suspended 
due to CV19 and will be re-
commenced once it is safe 
to do so.  

3.3 Continue to promote and 
grow BCT Valued 
Customer Status target 

March 2021 Director of Operations  
 

• Rewarding and incentivising 
good customers 

• Promote compliance with terms 
of tenancy leading to reduced 
ASB and increased income 
collection 

• Building aspiration amongst 
tenants to take ownership of 
the environment in which they 
live and their tenancy 

Q1 

• 38 Customer Care Visits 
have been completed via 
telephone during the 
lockdown period. with 203 
VCS awarded. 151 
households are outstanding 
of a CCV. 

•  

4. Marketing/PR. 4.1 BCT staff acting as strong 
advocates for Byker 
 

March 2021 
 

Chief Executive/  

Director of Operations/ 

Director of Property/  

Director of Finance 

 

• Building the BCT brand 
regionally and nationally 

• Increased demand for BCT 
properties 

• Improving Byker’s Reputation 

• Promoting BCT’s vision and 
objectives for 2020 and beyond 

Q1 

• BCT have been shortlisted 
for Inside Housing’s national 
awards for Neighbourhood 
Regeneration. 

• Turnover for the first 3 
months was 25 compared to 
57 in Q1 2019 (CV19 
lockdown) 
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OBJECTIVE ACTIVITY TIME FRAME STAFF RESPONSIBLE IMPACT / OUTCOMES STATUS 

CONTRIBUTING TO A THRIVING BYKER   

5. Thriving Byker 
Strategy 
objectives  

 
 

5.1 Health and Wellbeing  

• Develop new and existing 
social groups to reduce 
isolation and loneliness 

• Deliver health and 
wellbeing related training 
courses 

• Work with partner 
agencies to host a health 
and wellbeing related 
Tenants Conference 

• Develop a network of 
health champions across 
the BCT community 

March 2021 Director of Operations  • Improved health and wellbeing 
outcomes by establishing 2 
resident groups  

• Increased participation in 
tenant panels 

• Increased participation in 
tenant events 

• Deliver 2 training courses  

• 1 health champion for each 
management area 

Q1 

• 300 vulnerable tenants are 
being contacted on a 
weekly basis and an 
additional 325 courtesy 
calls made to other 
tenants on a monthly basis 
by a member of BCT staff. 

• 500 food parcels were 
delivered. 

• Social groups have not 
been progressed due to 
CV19. 

• Dear Neighbour letter 
writing initiative launched 
in May 20. 50 packs were 
distributed. 

• In conjunction with St. 
Michael’s Church and 
Byker Mutual Aid luncheon 
clubs have been 
implemented at TCH and 
MP on Mondays and 
Fridays.  

5.2 Financial Inclusion  

• To work closely with KH 
Employability Team to 
develop an employability 
offer that is suitable for 
BCT tenants 

• To promote employment 
and educational 
opportunities that are 
available through BCT’s 
partnership with Newcastle 
United Foundation 

• Promote the Tenants 
Contents Insurance 

March 2021 
 

Director of Operations  • Increased options for BCT 
tenants to access employability 
or training opportunities 

• Increased tenant awareness of 
the need to avoid loan sharks 
and doorstep lenders 

• Tenants appropriately insured 
for any loss of or damage to 
personal goods 

• Work with Prince’s Trust to 
deliver access to work 
programmes for the 18-25 age 
group 

Q1 

• 3 tenants were referred to 
the Building Futures East 
employability programme.  
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Scheme with the 
distribution of annual rent 
statements 

• Work in partnership with the 
Illegal Money Lending Team to 
tackle illegal money lending by 
holding an annual event and 
publicity  

5.3 A safer Byker  

• Work with Northumbria 
Police to continue to 
deliver the mini police 
initiative 

• Work with Northumbria 
Police to ensure 
information sharing 
protocols are established 
that support sustainable 
property allocations 

March 2021 Director of Operations  • Reduction in youth ASB 

• Improved relationships with the 
Police 

• Reduction in ASB 

• Improved Tenancy Sustainment 

• Improved relationships with the 
Police 

Q1 

• Mini police scheme is 
currently suspended due 
to CV19.  

• New ASB policy and 
procedure implemented 
April 20 that ensures 
sufficient data sharing 
arrangements are in place.  

 

6. Contributing to 
economic health 
of the 
neighbourhood 

6.1 Maximising jobs, 
education, schools and 
business opportunities via: 
a. Procurement 
b. Partnering 
c. TBS 

 

March 2021 Chief Executive/  

Director of Operations/ 

Director of Property/  

Director of Finance 

• Improved income and life 
choices for residents 

• Increased income collection 

• Increased tenancy sustainment 
levels leading to reduced rent 
loss and void costs  

• Supporting Byker schools and 
families 

• Working with local businesses 
and SMEs where possible 

• Utilising the BCT 2020/21 
investment programme to 
deliver 16 training opportunities 
and 3 new jobs  

Q1 

• 281 tenants supported 
with benefit and money 
advice. 

• 104 tenants supported 
with rent advice. 

• Following CV19, BCT has 
requested an updated 
position statement from all 
investment contractors on 
employment and training 
outputs and SMEs. Full 
update to be included in 
Q2.  

• NU Foundation have 
delivered online digital 
skills workshops on a 
weekly basis during Q1. 

6.2 Improve perceptions of 
Byker to the wider 
Newcastle housing market 

March 2021 Director of Operations • Advertising one-bedroom 
properties in alternative media 
forums to attract more single 
people and couples 

Q1 

• All one-bedroom 
properties were let via 
Tyne and Wear Homes 
without the need to 
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explore and advertise in 
wider markets.  

• Demand for BCT 
properties has been high. 

7. Ensuring we 
continue to have a 
sustainable 
Business Plan 

7.1 Business development 
opportunities: 
a. Purchasing RTB   

properties 
Exploring potential 
conversions and 
acquisitions  

b. Investigating potential 
grant funding of a new 
Biomass boiler/CHP 

 

March 2021 Chief Executive/  

Director of Operations/ 

Director of Property/  

Director of Finance 
 

A 

• Increase BCT stock numbers 
and supply of affordable 
housing through VfM 
opportunities to purchase or 
convert 8 properties on the 
Estate 

• Achieve much needed new 
homes for older 
people/disabled people/young 
families 

B 
A new Biomass or CHP Plant will: 

• Improve energy efficiency and 
VfM of Byker District Heating 
System. 

• Reduce the carbon footprint of 
the Byker Estate and the 
systems reliance on use of 
fossil fuels 

• Increased income from rent, 
RHI or FIT will improve BCT 
Business Plan longer term. 

Q1 
A 

• Affordable Homes grant 
funding bid submitted to 
Homes England to convert 
3 commercial units into 4 
homes for affordable rent.  

B 

• As part of the 
Government’s mini budget 
there was no provision for 
grant funding of biomass 
and CHP boilers. 

7.2 Carry out a detailed 
valuation and NPV 
calculation for BCT stock 

 
 

December 
2020 

Chief Executive/ 

Director of Property/  

Director of Finance/ 
Director of Operations  

• Demonstrate the value of 
different BCT properties to the 
Business Plan 

• Identify actions to improve 
poorly performing stock and 
target investment 

• Improve VfM of BCT properties 

• Use the NPV information in 
conjunction with an EPC review 
for BCT stock to develop action 
plans for poorly performing 
stock 

Q1 

• A stock wide Net Present 
Value (NPV) analysis of 
BCT properties has been 
completed and will be 
reported to ARC July 
2020. 

• Review of BCT stock EPC 
ratings commenced prior 
to exploring thermal 
efficiency options.   
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• Identify opportunities to 
improve thermal efficiency of 
BCT properties below EPC 
band C 

 7.3 Carry out a review of 
service charge costs and 
income by block 

July 2020 Chief Executive/ 
Director of Property/ 
Director of Finance 

• Demonstrate the income value 
of different BCT properties to 
service charge income in the 
Business Plan 

• Identify a plan to address 
subsidisation of service 
charges across the stock  

Q1 

• Further analysis of service 
charge, income and cost 
by block has also been 
carried out. The results of 
these analyses were 
reported to ARC in July 
2020. 

 7.4 Identify and evaluate 
how BCT can generate 
more capacity through 
innovative funding 
sources and/or by 
levering in funding from 
strategic partners 

March 2021 Chief Executive/  

Director of Operations/ 

Director of Property/  

Director of Finance 
 

• New/additional income will help 
narrow debt level in the 
Business Plan 

• Provide more opportunities for 
investing in the fabric of the 
Grade II* listed Estate 

• Additional financial capacity 
and strategic partnerships to 
improve BCT’s service, 
capability, quality and content  

• Improve the lives of residents 

Q1 

• Affordable Homes grant 
funding bid submitted to 
Homes England to convert 
3 commercial units into 4 
homes for affordable rent.  
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OBJECTIVE ACTIVITY TIME FRAME STAFF RESPONSIBLE IMPACT / OUTCOMES STATUS 

ENSURING BCT’S COMMUNITY ETHOS IS SUSTAINED  
 

8. Secure a 
partnership where 
tenants remain at 
the heart of 
decision making 
for the Byker 
Estate  

8.1 Commitment to the 
continued influence of 
tenants in governance, 
service delivery standards 
and investment 

 

March 2021 Chief Executive  • The successful bottom up 
Byker approach model will be 
sustained and residents will 
continue to be empowered in 
and involved in decision making 
in a meaningful way 

Q1 

• The BCT partnership 
prospectus requires co-
regulation and local 
accountability, ensuring 
that tenants will continue 
to be involved in a 
meaningful way. 

9. Engaging, 
empowering and 
supporting 
residents 

9.1 BCT Family Fun Day 
9.2 Summer Events  
9.3 Deliver a Tenant 

Conference  
9.4 Review of repairs and 

maintenance service by 
the CSC  
 

July 2020 Director of Operations 

 
• Face to face consultation with 

customers 

• Increased levels of customer 
engagement 

• Customer relationship/trust 
building 

• Supporting community 
cohesion 

• Summer trips specifically for 
families  

• Target of 100+ to attend the 
tenants conference 2020 

• Better repairs and maintenance 
service delivery and VfM. 

Q1 

• As a result of CV19 as 
new range of summer 
events will take place 
during August 2020. 

• BCT also involved in the 
delivery of Best Summer 
Ever running throughout 
August as part of Thriving 
Byker Strategy.   

• R & M review has been 
taken as far as possible 
with remote working. Will 
recommence when it is 
safe to do so.  
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OBJECTIVE ACTIVITY TIME FRAME STAFF RESPONSIBLE IMPACT / OUTCOMES STATUS 

ENSURING BCT’S CONTINUED PERFORMANCE AND BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT  

10. Development of a 
strategic 
partnership 
project plan and 
timeline that sets 
out clearly to 
Board and tenants 
the business 
transformation 
process 

10.1 Delivering the partnership 
programme and action list 
within a set time frame  

April 2020 Chief Executive  • Clear and transparent 
information and progress 
reporting to Board and tenants 
to ensure a smooth transition  

Q1 

• A Partnership project 
plan consisting of 3 
stages was agreed in 
May 2020 with key 
milestone dates up to a 
planned completion on 
31 March 2021. 

11. Being a first-class 
strategic partner 
 

11.1 Zero tolerance approach to 
ASB 

March 2021 Director of Operations • Improved reputation of BCT 
and the Byker Estate 

• Reduction in fear of crime for 
residents 

• Improved STAR results 

• Reduced tenancy turnover by 
20, resulting in increased 
income levels, less rent loss 
and void costs 

• New ASB policy including 
bespoke partnership working 
arrangements with Northumbria 
Police 

Q1 

• Close working 
relationship in place with 
Northumbria Police using 
the new ASB policy, 
implemented in April 
2020 has resulted in a 
number of joint police 
operations both on the 
ground and covertly to 
ensure a safer Byker. 

 

12. Establishing a 
Framework and 
timetable for new 
contracts 

12.1  

• Review of external 
contracts  

 

March 2021 Chief Executive/  

Director of Operations/ 

Director of Property/  

Director of Finance 
 

• Ensure VfM (price and quality) 
and added value of 
employment and training 
opportunities through 
competitive tendering of large 
projects 

• 4 capital investment contracts 
as per 2 

• 3 business contracts  
- insurance 
- security  
- cleaning  

Q1 

• Cleaning contract is in 
place until October 2021. 

• Security contract in place 
until March 2022.  

• One-year extension to the 
insurance contract agreed 
April 2020. 

• All current BCT contracts 
being reviewed as part of 
the partnership 
preparation work. 
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13. Securing 
outcomes which 
balance efficiency, 
economy and 
effectiveness in all 
we do 

13.1 Moving towards median 
performance 

 

March 2021 Chief Executive/  

Director of Operations/ 

Director of Property/  

Director of Finance 
 

• Aim to exceed 2020 Business 
Plan and deliver an increased 
surplus for the year of: 

• Void rate below 1.30%; 

• Collection rate above 96.0%; 

• Cost of void £2460; 

• Cost of repair £102.50; 

• Turnover target 188 properties 

• Re-let target 30 days  

Q1 

• Void rate: 1.7% 

• Collection rate: 93.61% 

• Cost of void: £3,662 

• Cost of repair: £56 

• Turnover: 25  

• Re-let target: 32 days 

13.2 Implement digital and data 
strategy 

December 
2020 

Director of Finance 
 
 
 
 

• To improve efficiency of BCT 
operations. 

• Improve services through 
greater customer insight. 

• Providing better access online 
and self-service. 

Q1 

• Work on this project has 
been postponed during 
the CV19 lockdown. 

13.3 Review and update of 
district heating legal 
agreements  

July 2020 Director of Property 
Director of Finance 

• Implement a loan agreement 
with NCC for the district heating 
WP1 & WP2 upgrade works 

• Revise and implement a new 
residential heat supply 
agreement (RHSA) with NCC 

• Improved VFM 

• Long term certainty relating to 
district heating services 

Q1 

• NCC commissioned VAT 
advice. 

• The district heating legal 
documents and proposed 
loan agreement have 
been the subject of early 
due diligence in the 
partnership discussions.  

14. Continuing to aim 
for excellence in 
Governance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14.1 Board member recruitment 
for AGM 

September 
2020 

Chief Executive 
Director of Finance 

• Effective succession planning 
for members of the 
Board/Committee Chairs 

• Continuity of good governance 
and strategic leadership by 
completing 4 sessions 

• Board members have the 
required skills and knowledge 
to oversee all BCT business 

Q1 

• Board member 
appraisals and Board 
Effectiveness Survey was 
completed.  The matters 
arising will form the basis 
of an action plan to be 
delivered by the CE and 
progress updates 
reported to the Chair. 

• Additional training 
identified including 
finance, governance and 
housing management 
services which will be 
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A&RC Audit and Risk Committee  

AGM Annual General Meeting  

ASB Anti-Social Behaviour 

CE Chief Executive  

CV19 COVID-19 

CSC Customer Scrutiny Committee 

delivered by HQN and in-
house. 

14.2 Deliver the final of 5 
Board member training 
sessions: 

• Health and Safety 

 Director of Property  • Board has the required skills 
and knowledge to oversee all 
BCT business. 

 

Q1 

• To be included as part of 
the good governance 
training as per 14.1 
above.  

15. Ensuring staff are 
proud of their 
work for Byker 
through support 
for training, 
development and 
remuneration 
policies 

15.1 Annual staff appraisals / 
Annual staff conference / 
Triennial staff survey / 
Team brief sessions  

 

March 2021 Chief Executive/  

Director of Operations/ 

Director of Property/  

Director of Finance 

• BCT employees will understand 
the BCT strategy and 
Corporate Plan objectives 

• Staff will give feedback on their 
view of BCT as an employer 
and workplace 

• Deliver 6 Team Briefs  

Q1 

• Employees receive a 
team brief after every 
board meeting. 

• Following Executive team 
meetings, information 
relating to strategy and 
performance etc is 
communicated via 
Director’s operational 
meetings.   

• Every staff member 
completed a working 
from home survey in May 
2020 and received 121 
feedback afterwards. 

• A Health and Safety & 
Wellbeing Committee has 
been established 
involving a cross section 
of employees who have 
also supported BCT’s 
remobilisation plan and 
risk assessments 
following the CV19 
lockdown period.  
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FFR Financial Forecast Return  

FIT Feed in Tariff 

FRA Fire Risk Assessment  

FRA Fire Risk Assessment  

G&RC Governance and Remuneration Committee 

KH Karbon Homes 

NCC Newcastle City Council  

NPS Net Promoter Score 

NPV Net Present Value  

Q1, Q2, Q3, Q4 Quarter 1, 2, 3 and 4  

RHI Renewable Heat Incentive  

SDR Statistical Data Return  

SME Small or Medium Enterprise  

STAR Survey of Tenants and Residents  

TBS Thriving Byker Strategy  

VfM Value for Money 

WP1 Work Package One  

WP2 Work Package Two 

WP3 Work Package Three 

WP4 Work Package Four 
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BCT Board 29 July 2020 

 
Title:  Operational and Financial Performance Quarter 1 Report 2020/21 
 
Report By: Philip Pollard, Director of Operations 
 
FOR INFORMATION  
 

Business Implications 

Risk Performance reporting against Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) allows 
Board to evaluate any potential risks to the Business Plan targets not being 
met. Where satisfactory performance is not being achieved, mitigations are 
outlined to ensure performance improvement.    

Financial and Value for Money KPIs and the monitoring of Service Level Agreements (SLAs) is contained 
within the scorecard. Where performance is not satisfactory, mitigations are 
outlined to ensure that cost, quality and customer satisfaction targets are 
achieved and that BCT continue to achieve Value for Money (VFM).  

People/Consultation By working with our tenants through Customer Care Visits and the Tenant 
Engagement Framework BCT can establish customer priorities whilst also 
maintaining open communication channels.  

Equality and Diversity Byker has a very diverse community and by engaging with all residents 
through various methods we are able to reach people whose characteristics 
are detailed in the Equality Act.    

Environment Implications The failure to meet Business Plan targets, particularly income collection and 

repairs and maintenance spend, could impact adversely upon the Investment 

Plan Budget.  

Contractor Implications The performance of contractors is closely monitored through SLAs by the 
Senior Management Team to ensure that performance is achieved.  

 

 
1. 
 

 

Executive Summary  
 

1.1 This report is a quarterly agenda item providing the Board with an overview of BCT’s 
operational and financial performance against a number of key performance indicators, 
including: 

 Income Collection 

 Empty Homes 

 Responsive Repairs 

 Satisfaction and Demand 

 Income and Expenditure 

 Financial Indicators 
 

1.2 BCT Board have set a number of challenging targets with the aim of meeting the median 
level of benchmarked performance, against a peer group with similar attributes to BCT, 
by 2020.  
 

1.3 Board should note that some performance indicators, particularly the income collection 
target, has fallen below the required performance level during Quarter 1 2020/21, as a 
result of the impact of Covid-19.  
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1.4 Appendix Documents 
 
 
 
 

 

A   Operational and Financial Performance Scorecard 

B    Income Collection and Payment Methods 
 

2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 The Board is recommended to note and discuss the contents of the report. 
 

3. Synopsis 
 

3.1 This report covers the BCT Operational and Financial Performance Scorecard (OFPS) 
(Appendix A) for Quarter 1 of 2020/21.  
 

3.2 BCT’s HouseMark benchmarking peer group includes 12 housing associations with 
similarities to BCT and was established in 2018. The same peer group remains relevant 
and has been used for 2020/21.  
 

3.3 Where possible, the OFPS identifies median levels of peer performance, using 
HouseMark benchmarking guidelines, against all indictors in line with the BCT Board 
objective of achieving the median level by 2020. 
 

4. Operational and Financial Performance Scorecard 
 

4.1 The OFPS places a focus upon key operational and financial performance indicators 
that are grouped into the following areas: 

 Executive Summary; 

 Rent Collection; 

 Empty Homes; 

 Responsive Repairs; 

 Satisfaction and Demand; 

 Income and Expenditure; and 

 Financial Indicators. 
 

4.2 The OFPS includes a description of how each indicator is calculated, statistical and 
graphical information. In addition there are comments detailing performance as well as 
any identified future actions that will improve or maintain levels of performance. 
 

4.3 A benchmarking exercise has been completed using HouseMark guidelines that is 
reflective of BCT in terms of size and demographics. This will assist Board in monitoring 
performance against the objective of achieving median levels of performance by 2020. 
 

4.4 Board should consider that the HouseMark data that is used for the comparison of 
median levels of performance relates to the Q4 2019/20 information for operational 
measures and 2018/19 information for financial measures. HouseMark data for 2019/20 
covering financial measures should be available from the Autumn 2020.  
 

5. Key Performance Headlines 
 

5.1 
 
 
 

Income Collection for Q1 was 93.61% of the total debit, which is 4.1% below the 
comparative collection rate 97.72% for Q1 2019/20. The collection rate is also below the 
BCT Business Plan expectations of 96% for the year.  

5.2 
 
 

Board should note that a there was a large reduction in income collection during the 
month of April as a result of Covid-19. Collection rates have stabilised during May and 
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June, returning to pre-Covid-19 levels.  Further detail of payment methods for the period 
February 20 – June 20 is attached at Appendix B. 
 

5.3 Due to the suspension of the County Court process, BCT currently have 19 pending 
court and eviction cases. The rent arrears balance of the 19 cases at the point of 
lockdown on 23 March was £39,350. As a result of non-payment and no evictions taking 
place, this balance increased by £12,918 to £52,268 during the quarter. Court action for 
an eviction is currently on hold until at least 23 August. 
 

5.4 Universal Credit (U/C) roll out continues, with 739 tenants now in receipt, increasing by 
51 cases from 688 at the end of 2019/20, equating to £610,454 of arrears as a result. 
This represents an increase of £121k since the start of the year. There was an increase 
of 139 U/C cases during 2019/20 as a comparison, with an average of 35 cases per 
quarter.  
 

5.5 Payment Breakdown Total 

Universal Credit 739 

Housing Benefit 347 (See breakdown)  

HB Full 107  

HB Partial 240 

HB 65+ 233 

 
 

5.6 
 
 

The above table provides a breakdown of how rent is paid to BCT and is based on 
information as of the end of Q1 2020/21. 
 

5.7 Void rent loss was for Q1 was 1.7% compared to 1.02% in Q1 of 2019/20.  
 

5.8 It was not possible for BCT to let properties other than in emergency circumstances for 
the majority of Q1 due to Covid-19. Tyne and Wear Homes was suspended on 23 March 
and re-opened on 8 June. At the point of re-opening, BCT had 22 ready-to-let 
properties. The number of ready-to-let properties was reduced to two by 17 July. 
 

5.9 The average re-let time for Quarter 1 stood at 32 days, which is a slight increase on the 
2019/20 average of 30.7 days. Performance is just outside of the agreed target of 30 
days.  
 

5.10 The turnover of properties during Q1 2020/21 was 25 properties, which is below target 
by 21 terminations at the end of the quarter. In 2019/20, there were 57 property 
terminations during the first quarter. Performance is averaging 8.3 terminations per 
month against a target of 15.6.  An analysis of property turnover data shows that 52% of 
turnover related to one-bedroomed properties, 24% to two-bedroom properties and 20% 
for three bedroomed properties.  
 

5.11 The cost of responsive repairs for Q1 2020/21 was £46,650 against a budget of 
£184,513. There were a total of 827 responsive repairs completed against an 
assumption of 1,800 with no trends emerging. The average cost per responsive repair 
was £56. This is below the SLA target of £102.50 per responsive repair and the median 
target of £106. All activity in Q1 has been impacted upon by Covid-19 restrictions 
including some material shortages and a delay to acquire some required Personal 
Protective Equipment (PPE). 
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5.12 The cost of void works for Q1 2020/21 was £91,542 which includes some work in 
progress including work on two omit properties, against a budget of £150,675. There 
was a total of 25 void works completed against an assumption of 61 during the quarter 
at an average of £3,662. This is £1,202 above the SLA target of £2,460 and £1,566 
above the median level of performance of £2,096. Again, activity in Q1 has been 
impacted upon by Covid-19 restrictions including material shortages and the sourcing of 
PPE. 
 

5.13 BCT budgets are performing well as at the end of Q1, resulting in a surplus of 
£1,004,000 against a budget surplus of £721,000 £283,000 ahead of Business Plan 
expectations.   
 

5.14 
 

 

Budget performance against the Karbon Solution SLA’s show a year to date expenditure 
at £321,000, this compares to £549,000 this time last year.  The £228,000 cost 
reduction reflects the low volume of repairs and void reinstatements during the lockdown 
period.  
 

5.15 BCT budgets for the year include provisions for the expected impact of Covid-19 on 
repair volumes, rent collection and void rates. 
 

6. 
 
6.1 

Contact Officer  
 
If you have any questions about this report that you would like clarifying before the 
meeting, you can contact Philip Pollard by telephone on 0800 533 5442 or email 
philip.pollard@bykerct.co.uk  
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Operational and Financial Performance Report 

Q1 2020-21

Executive Summary

Collection Rate Void rent loss (non-occupancy)

Surplus vs. Budget Investment Programme

Executive Team Summary:

Collection Rate
Approximate gap to Median: £152,800

Void rent loss
Approximate gap to Median: £21,700

Budget
BCT operating surplus for the year is £1,004,085 better than 
the budget set by the Board.  This is a very positive result and 
is due partly to improved cost control, however the COVID-19
epidemic has had a significant impact  on expenditure when 
running  the business, the result being operating expenditure 
has had a slow start to the year in all areas.

The rent and service charge is showing a favourable variance 
of £44,104.

There are underspends in most of the operating expenditure 
budgets and is partly due to the result of  the COVID-19 
epidemic. The IT and Finance SLA's costs are less than we 
estimated when budget setting. - the District Heating budget is 
returning an operating surplus and is the result of 2020-21 
charges being less than anticipated.

The housing management budget is on budget.  Savings have 
been made within Employee services due to a delay in 
recruitment during the COVID-19 epidemic.                      
The contingency budget year to date of £50,000 remains 
unspent.

Investment Programme
BCT has invested £521,000 in major capital repairs in the first 
quarter.  This is  £471,00 more than was expected when the 
budget was revised for lockdown restrictions.   The Re-
Roofing programme and the Lift programme  quickly got back 
on site as restrictions were eased and safe methods of 
working were agreed. 

The re-roofing programme Q1 1 expenditure is £138,024 and 
the lift programme £233,000.  

Work has commenced on the external upgrade of the Dunn 
Terrace section of the Byker Wall.

Work Package 3 has not yet resumed, as it is more difficult to 
implement safe working methods for internal works. 

The investment is around £1.4m lower than the original plans. 
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Operational and Financial Performance Report 

Q1 2020-21

Rent Collection

RC1 - Current arrears as a % of debit

Definition:

This is the amount of arrears owed to BCT by current tenants, shown as a 

percentage of all rent due for the year.

HouseMark Calculation:

This is calculated as:

                                    Rent arrears at end of period                                    

(annualised rent and charges for year - cum. rent loss due to empty properties)

                                                       x 100

Comments: There was a increase in rent arrears of £198k during the quarter, based on the position at the end of 19/20. Current arrears as a percentage of the debit stood at 9.40% at the end of Q1, 

increasing from 7.98% at the end of 19/20. During Q1 there was an increase of 51 tenants in receipt of Universal Credit (U/C) equating to an increase of U/C related arrears of £121k since the start of the 

year. In addition there are 19 pending court and eviction cases that have seen an increase of £12k in arrears balances. Additionally there was a reduction in payment transactions during Q1 of 339 during 

April accounting for approximately £49k in lost income. 
Future actions: Monthly monitoring meetings are held with Karbon Solutions (KSL) covering the Income Management SLA.  An additional management report has been introduced to monitor UC cases 

which has subsequently been adapted to consider changes in circumstances caused as a result of Covid-19 and is closely monitored to ensure that tenants receive appropriate support.  In addition all 

payment methods are being closely monitored on a monthly basis to observe any Covid-19 related trends. 

Apr May Q1 Jul Aug Q2 Oct Nov Q3 Jan Feb Q4

Median 2.94% 2.94% 2.94% 2.94% 2.94% 2.94% 2.94% 2.94% 2.94% 2.94% 2.94% 2.94%

Median (£) £273,009 £273,014 £273,018

2020-21 (£) £800,281 £845,557 £911,652

2020-21 8.51% 9.05% 9.40%

2019-20 8.63% 8.38% 8.64% 8.76% 9.05% 9.13% 9.61% 9.71% 9.61% 8.81% 8.94% 7.98%
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Operational and Financial Performance Report 

Q1 2020-21

Rent Collection

RC2 - Former tenant arrears

Definition:

This is the amount of money still owed to BCT relating to former tenancies.  

The monthly levels of collection and write off for non-recoverable amounts is also 

shown.

Comments: The Former Tenants Arrears (FTA) total balance has increased during the quarter by £3,400 with £11,453 in total being collected.  All FTA accounts are at the correct stage of the collection 

process.  The has been no write off of FTA during Q1. There were no evictions during Q1 as the County Court process is currently suspended until at least 23 August.  

Future actions: FTA accounts are monitored closely and discussed during monthly monitoring meetings with KSL.  There are 60 active payment arrangements in place which will continue to reduce FTA 

debt. There are 19 cases with rent arrears that are pending eviction or court action that equates to £52k of arrears which could impact upon FTA in the future.  

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

2020-21 £293,697 £293,217 £295,063

2019-20 £293,442 £273,601 £296,842 £303,925 £309,376 £335,281 £345,465 £331,686 £335,161 £342,988 £341,608 £292,573

Written Off £0 £0 £0

Collected £2,659 £3,382 £5,412
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Operational and Financial Performance Report 

Q1 2020-21

Rent Collection

RC3 - Universal Credit analysis

Comments:  There was an increase of 51 tenants who are now in receipt of UC during the quarter, bringing the total to 8739.  Of the 347 working age tenants who are still in receipt of Housing Benefit, 

107 receive full HB which would indicate that BCT are wel over two thirds of the way through the UC transition. The Tenancy Sustainment and Welfare Reform Team have obtained £88k in additional 

income for tenants throughout the year.  It should be noted that HouseMark has recently predicted that across the sector it will take between 3 and 5 years for collection rates to even out above 100% due 

to the impact of UC.
Future actions: BCT have been actively engaging with tenants during the lockdown period to offer advice and support concerning welfare benefits and universal credit. This approach will continue 

moving forwards. Pre-tenancy support continues to be offered to all BCT tenants where a financial risk is identified.  BCT continues to have access to the DWP Landlord Portal which allows support to be 

provided to tenants making UC claims.  BCT promotes the work of the Tenancy Sustainment and Welfare Reform Team through publications and social media channels.

Definition:

This is a breakdown of arrears of BCT tenants that are in receipt of Universal 

Credit compared with those that pay by other methods and the proportion of 

arrears between the two groups.

There are currently 40% of our tenants now in receipt of Universal Credit, with a 

potential of a further 19% still to be transferred to Universal Credit.  The chart 

below illustrates the proportions:

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Arrears £548,174 £575,525 £610,454

Tenants on UC 719 723 739

Arrears £252,737 £270,977 £302,225

Tenants Non UC 1095 1088 1086
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Operational and Financial Performance Report 

Q1 2020-21

Empty Homes 1

EH1 - Average Number of Days to Relet

HouseMark Definition:

This indicator measures the average time (in calendar days) to re-let vacant 

properties during the period benchmarked. It is calculated by dividing the total 

number of days re-let properties were vacant in the period, by the number of re-

lets in the period.

The number of days vacant of a re-let is the number of days between the tenancy 

end date and the tenancy start date. Note that the termination date does not 

count as one day. Hence if a tenancy ends on a Sunday and is let the following 

day, this counts as a 0 day re-let time. Negative re-let times cannot exist.

The table below shows KSL's completion performance by void category against 

Service Level Agreement KPIs (times shown in working days):

Comments: The KPI for survey (2 working days) and repair (17 working days) across minor, routine and major voids totals 19 working days and equates to 27 calendar days. Survey and repair 

performance for Q1 was 23.3 calander days.  Overall performance for reletting a property during Q1 2020-21 averaged 32.4 calendar days (or approximately 23.1 working days) against the HouseMark 

median of 34.6 (or approximately 24.7 working days). Void work stopped due to COVID-19 on 20 March 2020 and restarted on 22 April 2020 so this period has been excluded from the duration 

calculations.  Tyne and Wear Homes closed due to COVID-19 and did not open until 8 June 2020 preventing any moves. The table above identifies the number of voids by category for Q1 2020-21 in 

working days and illustrates that there are a higher number of major voids (14) than routine (4) and minor (1). BCT have monitored, inspected and recorded a sample of 21% voids.  Quality has been good 

with some minor issues identified for rectification.  

Future actions: High demand voids are being prioritised for turnaround to maximise income and the fixed labour resource is being carefully managed to balance resources between voids and responsive 

repairs. 

Void Type Count Average Days Count Average Days Count Average Days Count Average Days

Follow Through (1 day) - - 0 0 0 0 0 0

Minor (5 days) - - 1 10 0 0 1 10

Routine (10 days) - - 4 8 0 0 4 8

Major (20 days) - - 10 21 4 26 14 23

Structural (33 days) - - 0 0 0 0 0 0

Totals - - 15 17 4 26 19 19

April May June Year to Date

A M J J A S O N D J F M YTD

Keys In n/a 0 0.5 0.4

Survey & Repair n/a 15 25.9 23.3

Ready to Let n/a 2.8 10.3 8.8

Monthly Average n/a 17.8 36.6 32.4
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Q1 2020-21

Empty Homes

EH2 - Turnover of properties

Definition:

This is the number of BCT properties that change hands after a tenancy ends, 

shown as a percentage of all stock owned.

HouseMark Calculation:

                                       Total number of re-let properties          x 100

                                      total number of properties in stock

Comments: There was a total of 25 tenancy terminations as at the end of quarter 1. The reduction in terminations is largely due to a lack of people moving during the COVID-19 lockdown period and the 

suspension of Tyne and Wear Homes.  The property type with the highest number of terminations was one bedroom properties (11) followed by two bedroom (6) and three bedroom (5). A Local Lettings 

Plan (LLP) remains in place for Shipley Rise, Shipley Walk, Dalton Crescent and Rabygate in order to create more sustainable tenancies and address ASB issues that have been overserved in those 

areas previously. 
Future actions: BCT continue to monitor the Shipley Rise, Shipley Walk, Dalton Crescent and Rabygate arears closely. There is close partnership working in place with Northumbria Police to ensure 

appropriate  property allocations in these areas and timely action is taken in any cases of ASB.

A M J J A S O N D J F M

Stock 1775 1775 1775

Terminations 4 8 13

Turnover % 0.23% 0.45% 0.73%

YTD 4 12 25

Cumul. % 0.23% 0.68% 1.41%

Median 0.59% 0.59% 0.59% 0.59% 0.59% 0.59% 0.59% 0.59% 0.59% 0.59% 0.59% 0.59%

Median (Cumul.) 0.59% 1.17% 1.76% 2.34% 2.93% 3.51% 4.10% 4.68% 5.27% 5.85% 6.44% 7.02%
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Q1 2020-21

Empty Homes

EH3 - Cost Per Void Repair

Definition:

This is the average cost of the works carried out to make a property ready for a 

new tenant once the previous tenant moves out.  It is worked out by dividing the 

total amount spent on void repairs completed in a period and dividing the amount 

by the total number of void properties completed during the same period.

May figure has been averaged across two months as no accounts are produced 

in April.

Comments: The average void cost for Q1 2020/21 at £3,662 exceeds the HouseMark median benchmark of £2,096 by £1,566 per void and the KPI target of £2,460 by £1,202 per void. Overall during  Q1 

2020/21 the number of major and structural voids exceeds routine and minor voids by 280%.  All tenant damage or recharges continue to be recharged and during Q1 2020/21 rechargeable repairs 

across voids and responsive repairs was £2,140.  The increase in average cost of void has been distorted by the inclusion of 2 decent homes omit properties totalling £20k to date, which will be 

capitalised once works are complete. The figures will be updated for the Q2 scorecard to reflect the capitalisation of these two properties. COVID-19 restrictions have also impacted the duration of working 

in voids due to implementing safe systems of work and delays in sourcing of materials and PPE. BCT reviews, records and authorises all voids exceeding £3k. 

Future actions: BCT will continue to monitor the costs of voids and notify Board of any impending budget pressures for at the earliest opportunity. BCT's fixed labour resource is being carefully managed 

to balance resources between voids and responsive repairs.

A M J J A S O N D J F M TOTALS

Direct Costs £27,432.00 £27,432.00 £36,678 £91,542

No. Voids Completed 9.5 9.5 6 25

Average Void Cost 20/21 £2,888 £2,888 £6,113 £3,662

Average Void Cost 19/20 £2,365 £2,365 £4,672 £1,467 £2,562 £2,186 £2,209 £2,481 £2,895 £3,295 £3,603 £2,505 £2,563

Target £2,460 £2,460 £2,460 £2,460 £2,460 £2,460 £2,460 £2,460 £2,460 £2,460 £2,460 £2,460 £2,460

Median £2,096 £2,096 £2,096 £2,096 £2,096 £2,096 £2,096 £2,096 £2,096 £2,096 £2,096 £2,096 £2,096
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Q1 2020-21

Responsive Repairs

RR1 - Cost per Repair

*Above table and graph show all financial data for Q1 combined in June as split for accounts was not made for April and May

Definition:

This is the average cost  a responsive repair.  It is calculated by dividing the total 

amount spent on responsive repairs in a period and by the total number of 

repairs completed during the same period.       

May figure has been averaged across two months as no accounts are produced 

in April.

Comments: The average repair cost for Q1 2020/21 at £56 is below the HouseMark median benchmark of £120, and below the KPI target of £102.50 by £46.50 per repair. The volume of repairs in Q1 

2020/21 is 827 against the SLA target of 1800 as due to COVID-19 restrictions only emergency and essential repairs could be reported during the lockdown period. The number of responsive repairs has 

steadily started to increase from May 2020 due to KSL commencing the backlog of repairs reported pre COVID-19 in external and communal areas. In addtiion from 15 June 2020, KSL have commenced 

completing the backlog of non-essential repairs inside customers homes.  Normal activity should resume in Q2 with customers able to report new non-essential repairs from 6 July 2020. All tenant 

damage or recharges continue to be recharged and during Q1 2020/21 rechargeable repairs across voids and responsive repairs totals £2,140. BCT has carried out monthly repairs analysis during the 

period and no trends have been identified.  

Future actions: BCT continue to review repair costs to ensure any high value or repetitive works are captured as soon as possible. This is also the subject of monthly meetings with trade operatives to 

capture direct feedback. BCT will closely monitor the costs of responsive repairs and notify Board of any impending budget pressures at the earliest opportunity. The Customer Scruitiny Committee will 

continue their review of repair timescale categories once Governments Covid-19 restrictions are lifted.

A M J J A S O N D J F M TOTALS

Direct Costs n/a n/a £46,316 £46,316

No. Repairs Completed n/a n/a 827 827

Average Repair Cost 20/21 n/a n/a £56 £56

Average Repair Cost 19/20 £97 £97 £92 £87 £115 £136 £102 £67 £77 £82 £109 £70 £94

Target £103 £103 £103 £103 £103 £103 £103 £103 £103 £103 £103 £103 £103

Median £120 £120 £120 £120 £120 £120 £120 £120 £120 £120 £120 £120 £120
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Q1 2020-21

Responsive Repairs

RR2 - Number Repairs per Property

Definition:

This is an average of how many repairs have been reported on each of our 

properties.  This is calculated by dividing the number of repairs by the total 

number of properties we own.

Comments: The average number of repairs per property for 2020/21 at 2.2 jobs is below the HouseMark median benchmark of 3.8. Figures include tenants not in for their scheduled appointment of which 

there were have been 9 during Q1 2019/20. There are no emerging trends identified from the operative feedback. 

Future actions: BCT continues to monitor repair volumes monthly for any emerging trends that could be included in a planned capital programme. The text messaging service to tenants in advance of 

their repair being carried out appears to be working well due to the improved number of tenants that are not in when their appointment has been scheduled.

A M J J A S O N D J F M

2020-21 1.0 1.6 2.2

2019-20 3.7 3.6 3.8 3.6 3.8 3.0 4.1 3.5 3.5 3.8 3.7 2.9

Median 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8 3.8
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Operational and Financial Performance Report 

Q1 2020-21

Responsive Repairs

RR3 - Days to Complete a Repair

HouseMark Definition:

The number of calendar days taken to complete a repair should be measured 

from the date that the repair was brought to the landlord’s attention by the tenant 

until the date that the repair was complete, as confirmed by the 

contractor/operative.

A responsive repair is an unplanned report of a defect that is the landlord ’s 

responsibility to make good. Landlords’ repair responsibilities are set out in the 

Landlord and Tenant Act 1985.

Includes all emergency and standard repairs completed during the period. Does 

not include repairs to empty properties (voids) or any planned cyclical 

maintenance.

Comments: The average number of days to complete a repair in Q1 2020/21 at 6.2 working days is below the Housemark median benchmark of 7.96 days, and below the KPI target of 9 days by 2.8 days 

per repair.  Figures include tenants not in for their scheduled appointment of which there were 9 year to date. Q1 activity in April and May was impacted by COVID-19 with only emergency or essential 

being carried out. KSL commenced completing the backlog of non-essentail repairs in customers homes from 15 June 2020 and the full repair service will resume from  6 July 2020. 

Future actions: The fixed operative resource requires a balance to be achieved between voids and responsive repairs in order to meet KPI and median benchmark performance.  BCT will continue to 

monitor demand and resources across both service areas.

A M J J A S O N D J F M

Average Days 2020-21 2.0 1.6 11.4

Average Days 2019-20 9.6 8.5 8.9 10.4 10.1 7.7 9.3 10.2 8.7 10.7 12.3 14.8

Median 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.7 9.7
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Operational and Financial Performance Report 

Q1 2020-21

Satisfaction and Demand

SD1 - Satisfaction with Repairs

 

Definition:

This is data gathered from customer satisfaction surveys of those tenants that 

have had repairs completed within the last quarter.  The HouseMark standard 

defines anything that is rated below 'Fairly Satisfied' is classed as a negative 

response.

Satisfaction surveys are completed by Voluntas, an organisation who are 

independent of both BCT and Karbon.

Comments: Overall the customer satisfaction on the repairs service during Q1 2020/21 at 94% exceeds the Housemark median benchmark of 88.3% and exceeds the KPI target of 93%. This illustrates a 

continuous improvement in customer satisfaction of the repairs service which averaged 94% of customers satisfied across 2019/20 and 89% across 2018/19. 

Future actions: All tenants who request a call back are contacted to resolve any outstanding issues or identify areas for service learning, and any outstanding issues are monitored until completion and 

the satisfaction of the tenant. 

Very 

Satisfied

Fairly 

Satisfied

Neither 

Satisfied 

nor 

Dissatisfied

Fairly 

Dissatisfied

Very 

Dissatisfied Total

% 

Satisfied Target Median

April 10 5 0 2 1 18 83% 93% 88.3%

May 28 4 0 0 1 33 97% 93% 88.3%

June 39 7 2 0 0 48 96% 93% 88.3%

TOTAL: 77 16 2 2 2 99 94% 93% 88.3%
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Operational and Financial Performance Report 

Q1 2020-21

Satisfaction and Demand

SD2 - Terminations reasons

Definition:

Termination reasons are recorded by categories agreed by Tyne and Wear 

Homes and the Abritas Choice Based Lettings (CBL) system is built around 

these categories.

Comments: The main reason for tenancy termination at the end of Q1 was due to medical or health reasons (7).  Neighbour problems or ASB was second highest reason (4).  

Future actions: Termination reasons continue to be monitored closely. BCT reviewed the termination process during 2018-19, which brought about a positive reduction in terminations by the end of 

19/20, Additional training was provided to staff and performance continues to be monitored through weekly team and individual meetings which has continued to support a downward trend in property 

terminations. 
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Operational and Financial Performance Report 

Q1 2020-21

Satisfaction and Demand

SD3 - Customer Care Visits

Definition:

Customer Care Visits are keep in touch visits which include a satisfaction survey 

conducted face to face with every BCT tenant.

Comments: Customer Care Visits (CCV) continue to be completed by telephone due to COVID-19. Over 2000 CCV's have now been completed with 203 customers having achieved Valued Customer 

Status as at the end of Q1. 125 customer care visits remain outstanding and a targeted approach is being taken by the Neighbourhood Housing Team to complete outstanding visits before the end of Q2.  

Future actions: Customer Care Visits will continue to be completed, with the second phase of visits now underway. Work is being undertaken to address those properties where a successful visit has not 

been completed by September 2020 and staff will continue to complete telephone CCV's in line with Government Covid-19 guidelines. 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2017 63 138 51 262

Cumulative 63 201 252 514

2018 237 169 163 180

Cumulative 751 920 1083 1263

2019 231 191 171 145

Cumulative 1494 1685 1856 2001

2020 38

Cumulative 2039 2039 2039 2039

18
. A

pp
en

di
x 

A

Page 101 of 112



Glossary of Terms

Average Number of days 

to re-let

This is the average time it takes for BCT to complete any works 

and re-let the property to a new tenant after the end of the 

previous tenancy.

Benchmark

Standard, or a set of standards, used as a point of reference for 

evaluating performance or level of quality.

Benchmarks in this case are drawn from a selected peer group 

of similar organisations.

Budget

This shows the amount BCT has to spend on its services  

against the amount actually spent.

Collection Rate

This is the amount of rent BCT has collected from current and 

former tenants, shown as a percentage of the rent due.

Cost per Repair

This is the average amount that each repair costs.  It is worked 

out by dividing the total amount spent on repairs in a period and 

divided by the total amount of repairs carried out during the 

same period.

Cost per void repair

This is the average cost of the works carried out to make a 

property ready to let upon the end of a tenancy.  It is calculated 

by dividing the total amount spent on void repairs in a period 

and diving the amount by the total number of void properties 

repaired during the same period.

Current Arrears as % of 

Debit

This is the amount of arrears owed to BCT by current tenants, 

shown as a percentage of all rent due.

Days to complete a 

repair

This is the average number of days it takes for BCT to complete 

a repair after it has been reported.  This is calculated out by 

dividing the total number of days taken to complete all repairs 

by the total number of repairs completed.

Former Tenant Arrears

This is the amount of money still owed to BCT by former 

tenants.

Investment Programme

This shows the amount invested by BCT on the upkeep and 

maintenance of its properties and estate.

Median

Divides the range in the middle and has 50 percent of the data 

below it.

Number of repairs per 

property

This is an average of how many repairs have been carried out 

on each of our properties.  This is calculated by dividing the 

number of repairs by the total number of properties we own.

Satisfaction with repairs

This is data gathered from customer satisfaction surveys of 

those tenants that have had repairs completed by us within the 

last month.

Termination Reasons

These are the reasons why people have ended their tenancy 

with BCT.

Turnover of Properties

This is the amount of BCT properties that become empty after a 

tenancy ends, shown as a percentage of all stock owned.

Universal Credit 

Analysis

This is a breakdown of the number of BCT tenants that are in 

receipt of Universal Credit compared with those that pay by 

other methods and the proportion of arrears between the two 

groups.

Void Rent Loss

This is the amount of rent BCT cannot charge because 

properties are unoccupied.  This is shown as a percentage of all 

rent due.
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Appendix B 

Performance Scorecard – Quarter 1 2020/21            

 

Allpay payment method Mar-20 Apr-20 May-20 Jun-20 

Direct Debit Transactions 1,829 251,003.16 1,610 216,730.80 1,747 223,572.62 1,818 242,736.63 

Host - Allpay Mobile App 33 7,139.40 24 6,766.86 31 9,755.56 29 8,663.24 

Host - Allpayments (Credit Card) 8 604.78 9 498.52 11 828.55 12 1,250.30 

Host - Allpayments (Debit Card) 119 19,286.90 115 21,889.99 135 26,503.08 137 26,528.35 

Host - CallPay (Credit Card) 5 506.92 7 613.42 7 1,086.92 11 917.44 

Host - CallPay (Debit Card) 215 52,526.32 236 61,533.42 255 67,925.88 247 64,815.12 

Host - Recurring Payments (Debit 
Card) 

67 8,108.48 61 7,850.78 52 7,144.51 65 8,181.50 

PayPoint Transactions 746 48,489.20 664 43,290.78 716 49,317.18 689 47,909.70 

Post Office Transactions 514 59,971.79 471 61,273.11 489 68,489.05 529 68,200.91 

Total 3,536 447,636.95 3,197 420,447.70 3,443 454,623.35 3,537 469,203.20 
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Board 29 July 2020 

 

 

Title: Quarterly Investment Programme Update 
 

Report By: Michelle Bell, Director of Property and Development  
 

FOR INFORMATION 
 

Business Implications 

Risk  Progress and cost updates to Board provide close monitoring of the BCT Investment 
Programme and any potential risks.  

 Continuous review of Government guidelines in relation to Covid-19 (CV19) in order 
to assess the impact of the delay in delivering BCT’s Investment Programme.  

 Emerging health and safety (H&S) issues are reported to ensure risk/emerging risk 
is minimised, monitored and where applicable, appropriate action implemented.   

Financial and Value for 
Money (VfM) 
 

 Maximising value for money (VFM) and social/economic benefits via delivery of the 
Investment Programme by ensuring projects align with BCT’s Procurement Strategy 
and BCT’s Capital Investment Strategic Brief.  

 Costs are closely monitored to align with the Business Plan budgets. 

 Opportunities for grant funding are explored and progressed where appropriate. 

People/Consultation 
 

 Achieving added value and maximising training and job opportunities for the benefit 
of residents through the delivery of its Investment Programme is a key objective. 

 The Investment Programme can be shaped to address resident’s needs and 
concerns. Full consultation is undertaken with residents affected by each project. 

Equality and Diversity  A non-discriminatory approach is adopted in procurement and consultation 
processes. 

Environment Implications 
 

 The Investment Programme will help to improve homes on the Byker Estate and the 
lives of residents who live here, contributing to the delivery of BCT’s Vision of 
making Byker an Estate of Choice.   

Contractor Implications  A strategic partnership approach and a commitment to BCT’s Mission, Vision and 
Values are adopted by all BCT’s contracting partners. 

1. Executive Summary 
 

1.1 The report provides a quarterly progress update on the delivery of BCT’s Investment 
Programme and advises Board of issues that may affect its delivery. The main issues to 
highlight are: 

 All external investment contracts have resumed following the CV19 lockdown, with 
revised completion dates agreed; 

 BCT are working closely with contractors to resume contracts inside tenants homes, 
operating safe systems of work in accordance with revised risk assessemnts and 
method statements (RAMS). Revised contract completion dates to be agreed; 

 Following the issue of guidance note 14 by the Ministry of Housing Communities and 
Local Government (MHCLG), BCT have sourced an intumescent paint system for its 
communal blocks, that will comply with the Estates grade II* listed status and will 
achieve the  European Class rating of B S1 d0. Work has commenced to apply this 
product at Dunn Terrace and BCT are reviewing the financial impact of using this 
product on the next external paint cycle of all communal blocks. (see item 9.4-9.6). 
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1.2 
 
 
 
 

Appendix Documents  
 

A Investment Programme Cost Update 

B Q1 2019/20 Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) actions and progress  
 

2. Recommendations 
 

2.1 The Board is recommended to: 

 Note the content of this report and progress of the BCT Investment Programme; 

 Note the confidential Appendix A, BCT Investment Programme Cost Update; and 

 Note the progress of Fire Risk Assessemnt (FRA) Actions in item 13 and Appendix B. 
 

3. District Heating Upgrade 
 

3.1 Work Package 1 (WP1) – Secondary Mains Renewal Contract 
 

3.1.1 
 
 

The WP1 works completed in August 2019 and the defects liability period for this contract 
will end in August 2020. 
 

3.1.2 On 30 June 2020 essential work commenced to repair a burst on the primary mains 
network near Walker Road. Whilst the repair is carried out, properties on the system are 
receiving temporary heating and hot water from the backup boilers. Works will complete in 
July 2020, and will be funded through the 2020/21 Residentail Heat Supply Agreement.  
 

3.2 Work Package 3 (WP3) – Internal Upgrade Works 
 

3.2.1 H. Malone and Sons started on site on 25 June 2018 and have completed 1043 property 
upgrades. Works stopped due to CV19 on 24 March 2020. BCT are working closely with 
H. Malone and Sons to resume WP3,  to deliver safe systems of work in accordance with 
a satisfactory RAMS. Tenants will be contacted to arrange new appointments and the 
programme revised.  
 

3.2.2 
 
 
 

BCT will be contacting 156 Freeholders (home oweners) during Q2 to provide an update 
on the upgrade works to their homes. Freeholders will be asked to sign an indemnity form 
and provide a valid electrical installation condition report, prior to their upgrade works 
being programmed.  
 

4. Decent Homes Omit Programme 
  

4.1 
 

BCT are progressing works to the 11 remaining omit properties which have an 
unsatisfactory electrical test and have been working with each tenant to ensure their 
homes are electrically upgraded together with a package of kitchen, bathroom and 
heating improvements where required.  
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4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Below is a summary of the 11 electrical systems that have tested unsatisfactory and the 
action being taken: 

Action Status No Comments 

Electrical 
upgrade 
agreed 

Unsatisfactory  2 
Two properties scheduled for work in March 20 
but postponed due to CV19. Reprogrammed for 
August 20. 

Work 
package 
progressing  

Unsatisfactory- 
Full rewire to be 
completed 

9 

One tenanted property commenced in March 20 
but works temporarily postponed due to CV19. 
Awaiting restart date.  
Eight tenants are receiving a package of 
improvements with all tenants requiring a level of 
support.  

 

 
4.3 
 
 

 
Subject to the easing of Government restrictions, BCT are planning to procure sub-
contractors to complete all outstanding omits by the end of 2020. 
 

5. Comprehensive Environmental Upgrade  
 

5.1 BCT are continuing to progress the Phase 1 H&S works identified during the consultation 
process. Progress of each of the H&S works is as follows: 
 

5.1.1 Creation of external bin stores to tackle FRA recommendations at four blocks:  

 FRAs identified four blocks where bin stores are located too close to the buildings. 
Two of these locations are at Dunn Terrace;  

 Following the Q4 pilot study, a neighbourhood wide bin strategy has been developed 
for the Dunn Terrace area which details positioning of communal bin stores, capacity, 
design and material options; 

 Todd Milburn Partnership have prepared budget costing for the Bin Store options; 

 JDDK are finalising their proposals for the two remaining FRA blocks; and   

 The next stage is to consult Newcastle City Council (NCC) on the design and locations 
across the pilot area, ahead of consultation with residents. This will allow detailed 
designs, specificiations and costings to be prepared ahead of submitting the planning 
application and listed building consent applications. 

 
5.1.2 Additional litter bins across the Estate:  

 BCT have obtained prices for a preferred bin option which combines recycling and 
general waste disposal. These will be managed by BCT’s grounds maintenance team; 

 The design team are preparing a schedule of proposed locations and implications for 
foundation types and installation methods; and 

 The design team are consulting with NCC highways and planning departments to 
clarify any adoption or listing issues. 

 
5.1.3 Construction of a new footpath link along the east side of Raby Way where currently there 

is no path: 

 NCC have advised that the proposed new footpath on Raby Way could not be to 
adoptable standard if constructed due to the location of a large tree; and  

 A costed proposal is being developed for an unadopted footpath to be constructed. 
  

5.1.4 Production of a tree management survey and plan for future growth: 

 A scope of work has been agreed for a tree management plan with NCC outlining the 
content and brief for the arboricultural survey; and 

 JDDK obtained three quotes from arboriculturists on their framework and Elliott 
Consultancy has been appointed to undertake the tree survey.  
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5.1.5 
 
 

Provision of barriers on staircases where falls are >0.6m, handrails/surfacing on key 
pedestrian through routes in areas of greatest need:  

 A comprehensive Estate wide survey has been completed detailing H&S works and 
their priority to pedestrian routes on adopted and unadopted paths; 

 This was issued to NCC in Q4, who are continuing to review their approach internally 
to identified adopted highways works;  

 NCC have advised they would not undertake additional handrail works to adopted 
highways and that new handrails should be located just outside the highway boundary, 
designed in accordance with inclusive mobility legislation and maintained by BCT. 
Hand rail adopted by NCC would normally be part of overall ‘highway structure’ works 
to which a commuted sum maintenance contribution would be required; and  

 Todd Milburn Partnership have prepared a cost estimate for all highway work, split by 
areas of responsibility. A proposal to complete these works will be finalised once a 
response is received from NCC highways.  

 
6. 

 
Disabled Adaptations Programme 
 

6.1 During Q1, there have been two disabled adaptation referrals and 11 carried over from 
2019/20 of which: 

 Five minor adaptations have been approved and work is being programmed by BCT;  

 Eight are major adaptations being delivered through NCC’s Disabled Facilities Grants 
(DFG). 

 
7. Lift Replacement Programme 2018/20 

 
7.1 
 
 

Classic Lifts started on site 23 April 2019 on the passenger lift replacement programme.  
Works stopped due to CV19 on 27 March 2020, and resumed on 11 May 2020 following 
approval of satisfactory RAMS.  
 

7.3 Passenger lift replacements are complete to nine lifts with the final four in progress at 
Byker Crescent, Kendal House, Northumberland Terrace and Shipley Walk. The 
programme has been reviewed and the original completion date of April 2020 will now 
extend to September 2020. 
 

7.4 
 
 
 

Classic Lifts started on site 16 March 2020 with essential upgrade works to renew the 
controls and wiring to the two lifts at Tom Collins House. Following a temporarily 
suspension of works due to CV19, works resumed on 7 April 2020 and both lifts are now 
complete and in service.  
 

8. Re-roofing Programme 
 

8.1 
 
 
 

Esh Property Services started on site on on 24 June 2019. The scheme includes the 
replacement of 319 roofs, benefitting 411 properties. Works stopped due to CV19 on 27 
March 2020 and resumed on 27 April 2020, following approval of satisfactory RAMS. 

8.2 
 

All concrete tile roof replacements are complete with snagging in progress and external 
repairs and painting to Avondale House 95% complete. The final phase of 33 metal roof 
replacements is progressing with 13 complete.  All works are programmed to complete by 
the original completion date of the end of October 2020. 
 

8.3 Customer satisfaction surveys will commence on completion of snagging works. 
 

9. Dunn Terrace External Upgrade 
 

9.1 Esh Construction started on site on the external upgrade of the Dunn Terrace section of 

19
.

Page 107 of 112



 

 
 
 

the Byker Wall from Wolseley House to Salisbury House on 24 February 2020. Door 
replacements identified in the Byker Wall FRAs are included in this scheme. 

9.2 
 
 
 

Works stopped due to CV19 on 27 March 2020 and resumed on 11 May 2020, following 
approval of satisfactory RAMS. The programme has been reviewed and the original 
completion date of November 2020 will now extend to March 2021. 

9.3 
 

Work is progressing well with the commencement of FRA door replacements and overall 
the project is 25% complete. 
 

9.4 
 
 
 
9.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In May 20, Board were advised that following the issue of guidance note 14 by MHCLG, 
recent FRA’s across communal buildings have identified timber construction materials 
particularly on the decorative balconies as a potential source of fuel.  
 
In response to this BCT undertook a thorough investigation of intumescent paint systems 
that would improve the fire rating whilst complying with the Estates grade II* listed status. 
A product by Envirograf was chosen that will achieve a European Class rating of B S1 d0 
and can be applied as a one off and overcoated in future painting programmes without 
affecting the fire rating. Any timber replacments would require the Envirograf base 
coating. Building Control and the Fire Risk Assessor have confirmed this system is 
acceptable. BCT has commenced applying intumescent paint to external timber work and 
cladding to the blocks included in the Dunn Terrace external upgrade scheme. Wolsley 
House has been the first block to be completed. Estimated costs are included in 
Confidential Appendix A and this will be funded from the projects contingency.  
 

9.6 
 

Work has now commenced to assess the financial impact on the use of this product to the 
next external paint cycle of all communal blocks, including whether external paint 
programmes need to be brought forward to mitigate the risk from the external timbers.  
 

9.7 
 
 
 
 
 

Following BCT’s stock condition surveys 110 doors across the Estate were identified for 
replacement up to 2025. RNJ Partnership LLP have been appointed to survey, specify 
and schedule the replacement of these doors. Surveys are scheduled to commence in 
Q2, following which costs will be negotiated with Esh to maximise value for money and  
complete these door replacements as part of the Dunn Terrace. 

10. Byker Wall Fire Rectification Works 
 

10.1 
 
 

Following a competitive tender process, Novus Solutions were appointed to complete the 
fire breach rectifications works identified across the Byker Wall and its link blocks. 
 

10.2 
 
 
 

Following a pre-start meeting, Novus Solutions commenced site set up late February 
2020. Start on site was initially delayed due to the requirement for additional asbestos 
surveys which were completed, then works were temporarily suspended due to CV19.   
 

10.3 
 

Novus Solutions will be recommencing work on a  pilot stairwell on 6 July 2020, following 
which the programme will be revised.  
 

11. 
 

Kitchen & Bathroom Replacement Programme 
 

11.1 
 

Following BCT’s stock condition survey and investment profiling, 272 kitchens and 354  
bathrooms across the Estate have been identified for replacement up to 2025. These  
properties form the 2020-2022 Kitchen and Bathroom Replacement Programmes. 
 

11.2 Elvet Construction Consultants Ltd were appointed for consultancy services to support  
with the procurement and contract/project management. 
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11.3 
 
 
 
 

11.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Elvet have commenced surveys in void properties and occupied properties will commence 
Q2, following approval of satisfactory RAMS. Feasibility options for kitchens and the 
technical review of showers has commenced.  Upon completion, survey information will 
be collated and drawings and specifications prepared for the tender documentation.  
 

The estimated project timeline is as follows: 

Feasibility & option appraisal for showers, bathrooms and Kitchens July 20 

Surveys July-August 20 

Tender documents issued to tenderers September 20 

Tender evaluation November 20 

BCT Board approval of selected contractor December 20 

Start on site January 21 

Practical completion January 23 
 

 
12. 
 

 
Conversion of Three Commercial Units 
 

12.1 
 

In May 2020, Board were presented with the findings of the stage 1 feasbility study to 
convert three commercial units to create four one-bedroomed properties for affordable 
rent. Board approved to develop the project to stage 2 and progress is as follows: 
 

12.2 
 

The former district heating office and 71 Dunn Terrace are now vacant. NCC has served a 
notice to the tenant of 66 Northumberland Terrace to surrender the tenancy of the shop 
unit. 
 

12.3 
 

A grant application has been submitted to Homes England (HE) for affordable homes 
grant funding towards the conversion of the three commercial buildings into four 
properties for affordable rent, recycling the grant obtained for 82 Raby Street. 
 

12.4 
 

RNJ Partnership LLP are progressing with stage 2 design works. A pre-planning 
application was submitted to NCC on 29 June 2020 and feedback is expected August 
ahead of submitting the planning and listed building consent applications. 
 

12.5 
 

RNJ are now preparing for a competitive tendering process, which will include: 

 Full plans and elevations including specification for Planning and Listed Building 
Consent; 

 Full working drawings for Building Regulation approval; and 

 Quantified pricing summary including tender documentations and report. 
 

13. Emerging H&S Issues 
 

13.1 There have been no emerging H&S issues identieid during Q1 2019/20.  
 

13.  Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) actions and progress  
 

13.1 
 

A Q1 update on the delivery of FRA actions is included in Appendix B.  

13.2 
 

The frequency of BCT’s Type 3 FRAs is recommended in the completed building FRA. 
Normally these are every three years with an annual review (AR), except for BCT’s multi-
occupancy buildings which require a FRA annually. All FRAs are up to date. 
 

13.3 
 

During Q1, one FRA has been completed at Mount Pleasant and no ARs. Due to 
Government restrictions relating to CV19 only a Type 1 FRA was completed, however 
Type 3’s will resume in Q2. Mount Pleasant FRA will be revisited in Q2 and updated to 
Type 3.  
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13.4 
 

During the Mount Pleasant FRA two high risk items were identified. These related to a 
flammable item stored in the laundry room, and the door closer to the laundry room 
required adjusting to close correctly. Both were actioned immediately.  
 

13.5 
 

Good progress has been made during Q1 in completing FRA actions. All FRA actions are 
complete from FRAs at Tom Collins House, The Chevron, The Brow and Headlam Green 
and ARs at Salisbury House, Northumberland Terrace, Shipely Walk and Shipley Rise.  
 

13.6 
 

FRA Actions, which are currently amber status, are major works being delivered through 
BCT’s investment programme. These major works have not been completed in 
accordance with their FRA recommended timescale due to the lead in time for 
comprehensive surveys and procurement of capital works. These relate to the installation 
of fire safety door replacements being undertaken as part of the Dunn Terrace External 
Upgrade by Esh Construction and fire breach rectification works being undertaken by 
Novus Solutions. Both capital contracts had commenced on site, but works were 
temporarily suspended due to CV19. Esh Construction have resumed work on 11 May 
2020 with the fire door replacements which are now 17% complete. Novus Solutions have 
resumed work on a pilot stairwell on 6 July 2012. 
 

13.7 Two outstanding FRA actions at Avondale House relate to the replacement of fire glazing 
to the server room door and two storage cupboards that require plywood panels to be 
replaced with a fire resistant material. The work has been ordered with Karbon Solutions 
Limited (KSL), who have encountred delays sourcing materials due to CV19. KSL are 
chasing suppliers to confirm a completion date. 
 

14. 
 

Contact Officer  
 

14.1 If you have any questions about this report that you would like clarifying before the 
meeting, you can contact Michelle Bell by telephone on 0800 533 5442 or email 
michelle.bell@bykerct.co.uk 
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Investment Programme Update Appendix B 
 
Q1 2019/20 Fire Risk Assessment (FRA) actions and progress  
 

FRA and Annual 
Review (AR) 

Risk 
Profile 

Status 
Target Completion 

Date 

Brinkburn Close 
Headlam Green 
Graham House 
Salisbury House  
10-14 Raby Cross 

Low/ 
Medium 

These actions relate to the 
relocation of wheelie bins too 
close to the proximity of the 
buildings. JDDK have been 
commenced design solutions 
that can be delivered in 
accordance with the Grade II* 
listed status.  

Included in Phase 1 
environmental H&S 

works  
 
 

Avondale House Medium 
2 Complete 

April 2020 
2 In progress  

Kendal House 

Low 
1 In progress 

Feb 2020 
7 Complete  

Medium 
1 In progress Aug 2019 

2 Complete Jun-Aug 2019 

Kendal House AR 

Low 
2 In progress Oct 2020 

3 Complete July 2020 – Jan 2021  

Medium 
2 In progress  July 2020 

3 Complete July 2020 

Headlam House 

Low 4 Complete Feb 2020 

Medium 
4 In progress August 2019 

2 Complete  June 2019 

Headlam House AR 

Low 2 Complete  Oct 2020 

Medium 
4 Complete May-July 2020 

2 In progress  July2020 

Brinkburn House 
Medium 

2 In progress 
Aug 2019 

1 Complete 

Low 5 Complete Feb 2020 

Brinkburn House AR 
Medium 

1 In progress 
July 2020 

2 Complete  

Low 2 Complete Jan 2021 

Graham House 

Low 6 Complete  Feb 2020 

Medium 
4 Complete Jun-Aug 2019 

1 In progress Aug 2019 

Felton House AR  
Medium 5 In progress July 2020 

Low 3 Complete Oct 2020 

Dunn Terrace Medium 
2 In progress 

Aug 2019 
1 Complete 

Byker Crescent  Medium 
4 In progress 

Aug 2019 
1 Complete  

Wolseley House 
Low 

5 Complete  Oct 2019 - Feb 2020 

1 In progress Oct 2019 

Medium 2 Complete Jun-Aug 2019 
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Dalton Crescent  Medium 
4 In progress 

Aug 2019 
4 Complete 

Dalton Crescent AR  Medium 1 In progress  Aug 2020 

Gordon House Medium 
1 in progress 

Aug 2019 
3 Complete  

Bamburgh Terrace Medium 
1 Complete 

Aug 2019 
2 In progress 

Salisbury House 
Low 

4 Complete Nov 2019-Feb 2020 

2 In progress Feb 2020 

Medium 2 Complete  Jun - Aug 2019 

Long Headlam Medium 
4 In progress 

Aug 2019 
1 Complete  

Northumberland Terrace  

Medium 
2 In progress 

Aug 2019 
3 Complete 

Low 
5 In progress 

Feb 2020 
3 Complete 

Felton Walk Medium 
4 In progress 

Aug 2019 
2 Complete  

Shipley Walk Medium 
4 In progress 

Aug 2019 
1 Complete 

Rabygate  Medium  
2 In progress 

Aug 2019 
2 Complete 

Rabygate AR Medium 
1 In progress 

Aug 2020 
1 Complete 

Shipley Rise Medium 
3 In progress 

Sept 2019 
1 Complete  

Tom Collins House 
General 

Medium 3 Complete July 2020 

Low 
2 Complete 

Nov 2020 
1 In progress  

Brinkburn Close 

Medium 1 In progress July 2020 

Low 
2 Complete 

Jan 2021 
1 In progress 

Ralph Erskine House 
(AR) 

High  1 Complete March 2020 

Medium 
1 In progress 

July 2020 
1 Complete 

Low 1 In progress  Jan 2021 

10-14 Raby Cross 
Medium 1 In progress Aug 2020 

Low 2 Complete Feb 2021 

Mount Pleasant 
High 2 Complete Aug 2020 

Medium 1 in Progress Dec 2020 
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